Marin County Transit District Board of Directors
Monday, December 2,2024,9:30 a.m.

Marin County Civic Center Join via Zoom or Teleconference:
Board of Supervisors' Chambers https://www.zoom.us/j/87972683373
3501 Civic Center Drive, Room 330 +1 669 900 6833
San Rafael, CA 94903 Webinar ID / Access Code: 879 7268 3373

Providing Public Comment

To provide written public comment prior to the meeting, email info@marintransit.org or use
the comment form at www.marintransit.org/meetings. Submit your comments no later than
5:00 P.M. Sunday, December 1, 2024 to facilitate timely distribution to the Board of
Directors. Include the agenda item number you are addressing, your name, and

address. Your comments will be forwarded to the Board of Directors and will be included in
the written public record.

Public comment is limited to two minutes per speaker unless a different time limit is
announced. The Board President may limit the length of comments during public meetings
due to the number of persons wishing to speak or if comments become repetitious.

Participating on Zoom or teleconference: Ensure that you are in a quiet environment with no
background noise. To raise your hand on Zoom press *9 and wait to be called upon by the
President or the Clerk to speak. You will be notified that your device has been unmuted
when it is your turn to speak. You will be warned prior to your allotted time being over. Your
comments will be included in the public record.

General Meeting Information

Late agenda material can be inspected at the office of Marin Transit, between the hours of
8:00 a.m. and 5:00 p.m. Monday through Friday.

In case of Zoom outage, dial 515-604-9094; meeting ID: 142-334-233
All Marin Transit public meetings are conducted in accessible locations.

Documents are available in accessible formats or additional languages by request. If you
require translation or other accommodation, call (415) 226-0855 or 711. Requests must be
received no less than five working days prior to the meeting.

Si usted requiere una traduccién u otra adaptacion, llame al (415) 226-0855 or 711. Para
acceder a estas instrucciones en espafiol, haga clic aqui.

NBEREEF N EMMENARS - BRI E(415) 226-0855 5711, MIEEEFXLLIHABAIE

RPARA - IER L,
Néu ban can théng dich hodc cac ho trg khac, hay goi (415) 226-0855 hodc 711. D€ truy cdp
cac hudng dan nay bang tiéng Viét, hay nhap vao day.

711 Grand Avenue #110 San Rafael, CA 94901 | 415.226.0855 | marintransit.org


http://www.marintransit.org/
https://www.zoom.us/j/87972683373
https://www.zoom.us/j/87972683373
mailto:info@marintransit.org
http://www.marintransit.org/meetings
https://marintransit.org/sites/default/files/events/2023/Public%20Comment%20-%20Translated%20Instructions_6.13.23.pdf
https://marintransit.org/sites/default/files/events/2023/Public%20Comment%20-%20Translated%20Instructions_6.13.23.pdf
https://marintransit.org/sites/default/files/events/2023/Public%20Comment%20-%20Translated%20Instructions_6.13.23.pdf

. Marin County Transit District Board of Directors
marin Page 2 of 2

9:30 a.m. Convene as the Marin County Transit District Board of Directors

1.

Consider approval of Directors request to participate remotely and utilize Just
Cause or Emergency Circumstance per AB 2449

Open Time for Public Expression
(Limited to two minutes per speaker on items not on the District’s agenda)

Board of Directors’ Matters

General Manager’s Report

a. General Manager’s Oral Report
b. Monthly Monitoring Report: September 2024

Consent Calendar

a. Minutes for November 12, 2024 Board Meeting

b. Minutes for October 24, 2024 Special Board Meeting

¢. Marin County Transit District First Quarter FY 2024/25 Financial Report

d. Marin Transit Quarterly Performance Report for the First Quarter of FY 2024/25
e

f.

Consideration of Compensation Increase for General Manager

Annual School Transportation Services Report

Recommended Action: Approve.

Marin Transit Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2023/24

Recommended Action: Accept report.

Contract with Ghilotti Bros., Inc. for the Construction of Bus Parking Lot and Solar
Canopy at 3010/3020 Kerner Blvd

Recommended Action: Authorize General Manager to execute a contract with Ghilotti
Bros., Inc. for an amount not to exceed $3,674,402 and approve Budget Amendment
2025-03, pending the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) response to a bid protest
appeal filed by Bauman Landscape & Construction.

Adjourn

marintransit.org


http://www.marintransit.org/
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3875&meta_id=1350919
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3875&meta_id=1350921
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3875&meta_id=1350923
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3875&meta_id=1350925
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3875&meta_id=1350927
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3875&meta_id=1350929
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3875&meta_id=1350931
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3875&meta_id=1350933
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3875&meta_id=1350935
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3875&meta_id=1350935

711 Grand Ave, #110
San Rafael, CA 94901
ph: 415.226.0855
marintransit.org

Board of Directors

Brian Colbert
President
Town of San Anselmo

Eric Lucan
Vice President
Supervisor District 5

Mary Sackett
Second Vice President

Supervisor District 1

Katie Rice
Director

Supervisor District 2

Stephanie
Moulton-Peters
Director

Supervisor District 3

Dennis Rodoni
Director
Supervisor District 4

Maribeth Bushey
Director
City of San Rafael

Fred Casissa
Alternate
Town of Corte Madera

December 2,2024

Honorable Board of Directors
Marin County Transit District
3501 Civic Center Drive

San Rafael, CA 94903

Subject: General Manager Report - Monthly Report: September 2024

Dear Board Members:

Recommendation

This is a recurring information item.

Summary

The attached monthly report provides an overview of Marin Transit operations
for the monthly period ending September 30, 2024. The monthly reports
summarize statistics on the performance of Marin Transit services and
customer comments.

Overall, Marin Transit experienced strong systemwide ridership in September
2024. Total ridership was 10% higher than the previous year (September 2023)
and 3% lower than pre-COVID (September 2019).

Fixed route ridership continued to be strong this month, with ridership being
10% higher than the previous year (September 2023) and 3% higher than pre-
COVID (September 2019).

Marin Access ridership had plateaued at just below half of pre-pandemic
ridership starting in September 2022. January 2024 was the first month since
then where Marin Access ridership exceeded the prior year. This month,
September 2024, continued that trend, with Marin Access ridership increasing
by 22% relative to the prior year (September 2023). Staff believe that this trend
of increasing ridership is due to the Marin Access service changes implemented
lastyear, in July 2023, and are optimistic it will continue to have a positive effect
on ridership going forward.

Additional detailed analyses of system performance and trends are provided in
separate quarterly and annual reports, including route-level statistics and
financials. These reports are available on the District’s website at
https://marintransit.org/service-performance-and-reports.

Fiscal/Staffing Impact

None.

Iltem 4b


https://marintransit.org/service-performance-and-reports

Respectfully Submitted,

Nancy Whelan
General Manager

Attachment A: Monthly Ridership Report and Customer Comments

Page 2 of 2

ltem 4b



Attachment A

Monthly Customer Feedback Report

marin September 2024
transit
Month: September 2024
Program
Fixed-Route Fixed-Route = Stagecoach & Supplemental & Demand Mobility
Category Local Shuttle Muir Woods Yellow Bus Response Management Systemwide Total
Commendation 0 0 0 0 6 0 0 6
Service Delivery Complaint 38 16 1 0 1 4 1 71
Accessibility 2 0 2 0 0 4 0 8
Driver Conduct Complaint 7 3 0 0 0 0 0 10
Driving Complaint 8 4 2 0 1 0 0 15
Early Trip 1 1 3 0 0 0 0 5
Equipment Issue 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Farebox 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Late Trip 6 1 0 0 0 0 0 7
Missed Connection 1 0 0 0 0 0 0 1
Missed Trip 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 2
No-Show 5 2 0 0 0 0 0 7
Off-Route 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Pass-Up Complaint 8 5 3 0 0 0 0 16
Service Structure Complaint 15 1 3 2 0 0 1 22
Bus Stop Improvement Request 2 0 0 0 0 0 0 2
Fares 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Other Complaint 7 0 0 1 0 0 0 8
Scheduling Complaint 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Service Improvement Suggestion 6 1 3 1 0 0 1 12
Safety Complaint 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Service Hours 9,976 3,340 1,325 242 2,402 0 17,285 17,285
Commendations per 1,000 Hours 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 2.5 - 0.0 0.3
Complaints per 1,000 Hours 5.3 5.1 10.6 8.3 04 - 0.1 54
Total Passengers 219,631 37,947 10,605 5,321 4,592 2,334 296,824 296,824
Commendations per 1,000 Passenger 0.0 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0
Complaints per 1,000 Passengers 0.2 04 1.3 0.4 0.2 1.7 0.0 0.3
Page 1 of 1

ltem 4b



Attachment A

FISCAL YEAR MONTH
2025 All

Year-to-Date Ridership Trends
Fixed-Route Passengers (incl. Yellow Bus & MWS) by Month

320,000

289,898

/ 273,990
262,796 264,713 263,463
255,326
240,738 240,339 24%825

235,991
240,000~ =220 232,259
222,789 227,059 228,268

286,679

160,000 -
80,000 -
0
July August September  October ~ November December  January February March April May June
@ Prior Fiscal Year Passengers @ Current Fiscal Year Passengers

Demand Response Passengers by Month

8,000
6,836 6,926 6,854
% 273/’?__0 6,788 6,771
6,000 - 5,806 5,661 5,751 5,781
5’193/0'_\0_,__4
22
4,000
2,000
0
July August September  October  November December  January February March April May June
[ Prior Fiscal Year Passengers B Current Fiscal Year Passengers

Iltem 4b


https://analytics.transtrack.net/embedded.html#project=%2Fgdc%2Fprojects%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz&dashboard=%2Fgdc%2Fmd%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz%2Fobj%2F50135&tab=a489474901cb&export=1&ctx=%2Fgdc%2Fprojects%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz%2FexecutionContexts%2Ftmp6737b6a39ffc453a27c9a001&request_id=uixaab7ad30bfc6_100%3A7E9ErNVIAaAU2MjL%3Acdo29l7mj1839yrk%3A5&s=/gdc/workspaces/ph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz|analysisPage|head|/gdc/md/ph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz/obj/50133
https://analytics.transtrack.net/embedded.html#project=%2Fgdc%2Fprojects%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz&dashboard=%2Fgdc%2Fmd%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz%2Fobj%2F50135&tab=a489474901cb&export=1&ctx=%2Fgdc%2Fprojects%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz%2FexecutionContexts%2Ftmp6737b6a39ffc453a27c9a001&request_id=uixaab7ad30bfc6_100%3A7E9ErNVIAaAU2MjL%3Acdo29l7mj1839yrk%3A5&s=/gdc/workspaces/ph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz|analysisPage|head|/gdc/md/ph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz/obj/64518

Attachment A

Monthlv Comparison
MONTH

Sep

Average Systemwide Daily Passengers

12,000.00

11,080.86
9.,899.71
9,000.00
7,058.25
6,702.20
6,000.00 5,860.40 e
B l
0.00
Weekday Saturday Sunday
Prior Fiscal Year Average Daily Passengers @ Current Fiscal Year Average Daily Passengers
Productivity (pax/hr) by Typology
36.0 Route Typologies
32.2
1. Local:
Routes 17, 22, 23, 35, 36, 49, 71
28.6
27.0 2. Community:
Routes 219, 228, 29, 233, 245, 57
4. Supplemental
Routes 613, 619, 625, 654
18.0 5. Rural:
Routes 61, 68
9. Demand Response:
10.0 Local Paratransit, Marin Access
: Shuttles
9.0
17 1.8
00 I
= 2 E T b
K s § 2 5
. £ € . Q.
- I 2 o ]
Q % 4
J : T
o~ wn &
< £
[0}
[a)
o
Prior Fiscal Year Productivity B Current Fiscal Year Productivity

ltem 4b


https://analytics.transtrack.net/embedded.html#project=%2Fgdc%2Fprojects%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz&dashboard=%2Fgdc%2Fmd%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz%2Fobj%2F50135&tab=a489474901cb&export=1&ctx=%2Fgdc%2Fprojects%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz%2FexecutionContexts%2Ftmp6737b6a39ffc453a27c9a001&request_id=uixaab7ad30bfc6_100%3A7E9ErNVIAaAU2MjL%3Acdo29l7mj1839yrk%3A5&s=/gdc/workspaces/ph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz|analysisPage|head|/gdc/md/ph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz/obj/51565
https://analytics.transtrack.net/embedded.html#project=%2Fgdc%2Fprojects%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz&dashboard=%2Fgdc%2Fmd%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz%2Fobj%2F50135&tab=a489474901cb&export=1&ctx=%2Fgdc%2Fprojects%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz%2FexecutionContexts%2Ftmp6737b6a39ffc453a27c9a001&request_id=uixaab7ad30bfc6_100%3A7E9ErNVIAaAU2MjL%3Acdo29l7mj1839yrk%3A5&s=/gdc/workspaces/ph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz|analysisPage|head|/gdc/md/ph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz/obj/64580

REGULAR MEETING OF THE MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Held Tuesday, November 12,2024 at 9:30 A.M.

Roll Call

Present: President Colbert, Vice President Lucan, Second Vice President Sackett,
Director Rice, Director Moulton-Peters, Director Casissa

Absent: Director Bushey, Director Rodoni

Director Casissa was in attendance as a voting member.
Board President Cobert opened the meeting at 9:33 A.M.

1. Consider approval of Directors request to participate remotely and utilize Just

Cause or Emergency Circumstance per AB 2449

President Colbert reported there were no requests for remote participation by any
Directors.

2. Open Time for Public Expression

President Colbert asked if any member of the public wished to speak. Seeing none he
called for Board of Director’s Matters.

3. Board of Directors’ Matters

Director Colbert expressed appreciation for the District’s staff.

4, General Manager’s Report

a. General Manager’s Oral Report
b. Monthly Monitoring Report: August 2024
i [tem 4b - Staff Report

General Manager Nancy Whelan announced that staff closed escrow on the purchase of the
property at 1075 Francisco Boulevard East. Ms. Whelan reported that the Marin County
Council of Mayors & Councilmembers (MCCMC) appointed Fred Casissa and Maribeth
Bushey to the Marin Transit Board of Directors for 2025. Ms. Whelan highlighted the 2025
Board meeting schedule on the consent calendar. She summarized staff’s recent and
upcoming community engagement efforts. Ms. Whelan outlined how staff would be

ltem 5a


https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348738
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348738
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348739
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348740
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348741
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348742
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348743
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348744

celebrating the District’s 60" anniversary, and she noted the District’s recent fare free day
on Election day. She provided an update on regional accessibility. Ms. Whelan reported on
fixed route and demand response ridership from August 2024.

5. Consent Calendar

Minutes for October 7, 2024 Board Meeting

Federal Legislative Report

2025 Marin County Transit District Board Meeting Calendar
Regional Transfer Pilot

® 00 T oW

Authorizing Resolution 2024-07 for Filing Applications with the Federal Transit
Administration

Recommended Action: Approve.
M/s: Director Casissa - Director Moulton-Peters

Ayes: President Colbert, Vice President Lucan, Second Vice President Sackett,
Director Rice, Director Moulton-Peters, Director Casissa

Noes: None
Absent: Director Bushey, Director Rodoni
Abstain: None

6. Marin Sonoma Coordinated Transit Service Plan (MASCOTS) Update

Staff Report

Director of Planning Cathleen Sullivan listed the agencies participating in the Marin
Sonoma Coordinated Transit Service Plan (MASCOTS) effort. She explained the
background and purpose of MASCOTS. She listed the key questions that MASCOTS would
address. Ms. Sullivan outlined the approach, outcomes, and phases of MASCOTS. She
highlighted MASCOTS’ key findings regarding existing conditions of travel throughout the
region. She summarized key findings within Sonoma and Marin County. She listed
MASCOTS’ next steps.

Vice President Lucan asked if MASCOTS had considered adding regional service between
Novato or Petaluma and San Francisco.

ltem 5a


https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348745
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3867&meta_id=1348578
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3867&meta_id=1348580
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3867&meta_id=1348598
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3867&meta_id=1348584
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3867&meta_id=1348586
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3867&meta_id=1348586
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348756
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3867&meta_id=1348588

Ms. Sullivan responded that MASCOTS is looking at SMART to Route 101 as a direct service
into San Francisco.

Vice President Lucan commented that a positive aspect of Route 154 and Route 164 is the
express service to San Francisco.

Ms. Sullivan noted that Route 101 does not make any stops between the San Rafael Transit
Center and San Francisco. Route 130 and Route 150 both make stops between the San
Rafael Transit Center and San Francisco. MASCOTS is assessing the purposes of Route 130
and 150 in an effort to reconsider the whole system. MASCOTS will keep Route 101 an
express route between the San Rafael Transit Center and San Francisco.

Vice President Lucan commented on the transfer between the SMART Train and the Golden
Gate ferry. He suggested that an express bus from the Larkspur SMART station to San
Francisco would be useful.

Ms. Sullivan suggested riders could get off the SMART Train at the San Rafael Transit Center
and transfer to Route 101.

Director Rice asked if MASCOTS considers transit-dependent versus commuter
demographics.

Ms. Sullivan confirmed they do, and MASCOTS can access travel market data for Equity
Priority Communities (EPCs). She noted that Golden Gate has all day routes and commute
routes. MASCOTS is considering SMART span and frequency as well. Outreach will be done
to ensure that changes are reviewed by community members.

Director Rice asked if MASCOTS is considering that the bus pads along Highway 101 are a
deterrent.

Ms. Sullivan responded that the Highway 101 bus pads are a follow-up item that MASCOTS
intends to discuss in the future. There are several other efforts currently addressing
Highway 101 bus pads.

Director Moulton-Peters asked about transfers between the Golden Gate Ferry and the
SMART Train.

Director Moulton-Peters highlighted how MASCOTS provides opportunities to optimize
service.

ltem 5a



Director Cassisa asked if the costs of fares are considered in MASCOTS analyses.

Ms. Sullivan confirmed that MASCOTS considers costs to riders, and they will include fare
information in their public outreach and that further fare coordination efforts will follow
the service planning phase.

Director Colbert asked about the coordination between the bus system and SMART
regarding student ridership. He asked about bus service from Ross Valley to the SMART
Train and the San Rafael Transit Center.

Second Vice President Sackett suggested that people associate Route 101 with a “milk
run” that stops everywhere, and asked if MASCOTS will consider route number changes as
part of messaging this to the public.

Ms. Sullivan stated that MASCOTS would assess bus numbering structure.

Recommended Action: Receive information update on the Marin Sonoma Coordinated
Transit Service Plan (MASCOTS).

7. Marin Transit FY 2023/24 Year End Financial Report

Staff Report

Director of Finance & Capital Programs Lauren Gradia summarized the District’s FY 2023/24
budget. She reported expenses by program area and listed the percentages of budgeted
services provided. She outlined Operations revenue for the last five fiscal years. Ms. Gradia
listed Operations expenses for FY 2023/24. She provided an overview of the District’s fixed
route purchase transportation contracts. She explained the District’s Capital expenditures
in FY 2023/24. Ms. Gradia presented financial projections for the next five fiscal years.

Vice President Lucan asked what staff anticipate will lead to a decline in revenue in future
fiscal years.

Ms. Gradia stated that there is a structural difference in how fast expenses are increasing
compared to revenues, and the District is spending down reserves.

Vice President Lucan asked if the District would pull a larger share from Measure AA funds
during the next four years, then after that, the District would not be able pull as large of a
share.

Ms. Gradia confirmed that was staff’s projection.

ltem 5a


https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348758
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3867&meta_id=1348590

Vice President Lucan asked if Measure AA revenue would increase each year, assuming
sales tax would continue to grow.

Ms. Gradia confirmed it would. She clarified that staff used the Transportation Authority of
Marin (TAM)’s projections, which are about a 2.2 percent increase each year, whereas the
District’s contract costs are projected to increase at a higher rate.

Recommended Action: Accept report.

8. Marin Transit FY 2023/24 System Performance Report

Staff Report

Senior Transit Planner Asher Butnik reported on overall fixed route service levels in FY
2023/24 and summarized changes made to fixed route and Marin Access services in 2023.
Mr. Butnik presented total systemwide ridership each year since FY 2018/19. He compared
total systemwide ridership for each month in FY 2018/19, FY 2021/22, FY2022/23, and FY
2023/24. He reported on productivity and cost effectiveness targets for FY 2023/24. Mr.
Butnik compared peer agency ridership trends. He listed staff’s future considerations and
potential changes in FY 2024/25.

President Colbert asked about the relevance of the District’s ridership data when
compared to peer agencies.

Mr. Butnik explained that the District has returned to pre-COVID-19 ridership levels quicker
than peer agencies, however staff are unsure what will happen in the future.

President Colbert suggested staff should consider how to deliver that message to the
community, as he sometimes hears community members commenting on ridership.

Director Moulton-Peters encouraged staff to continue to work on increasing ridership on
Marin Access and school services. She stated she would like to better understand service to
Marin City.

Vice President Lucan suggested staff could report on miles traveled when analyzing cost
effectiveness targets.

Recommended Action: Accept report.

Convenein Closed Session

ltem 5a


https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348760
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3867&meta_id=1348592
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348762

The Board went into closed session.

Report from Closed Session

President Colbert stated there was nothing to report.

Adjourn President Colbert adjourned the meeting at 11:47 A.M.

SINE DIE

PRESIDENT
ATTEST:

CLERK

ltem 5a


https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348763
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12402&meta_id=1348764

SPECIAL MEETING OF THE MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Held Thursday, October 24, 2024 at 3:30 P.M.

Roll Call

Present: President Colbert, Vice President Lucan, Second Vice President Sackett,
Director Rice, Director Moulton-Peters, Director Rodoni, Director
Casissa

Absent: Director Bushey

Director Casissa was in attendance as a voting member.
Board President Colbert opened the meeting at 3:32 P.M.

1. Consider approval of Directors request to participate remotely and utilize Just

Cause or Emergency Circumstance per AB 2449

President Colbert reported there were no requests for remote participation by any
Directors.

2. Open Time for Public Expression

President Colbert asked if any member of the public wished to speak.
Jody Timms expressed she would like to speak in favor of the third agenda item.
President Colbert requested that Ms. Timms wait until the third agenda item to comment.

3. Consider and Act on City of San Rafael Report on Conformity With its General Plan
2040 Pursuant to Government Code 65402(c); 1075 East Francisco Blvd, San Rafael

Staff Report

President Colbert provided background information on the agenda item, and addressed
comments made by the City of San Rafael regarding the agenda item. He introduced an
amendment to the agenda item’s recommended action.

General Manager Nancy Whelan introduced attorneys Deborah Miller from Shute Mihaly &
Weinberger and Kerry Gerchow from the County of Marin. Ms. Whelan summarized the

Item 5b


https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12393&meta_id=1346944
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12393&meta_id=1346944
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12393&meta_id=1346945
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12393&meta_id=1346946
https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12393&meta_id=1346946
https://marin.granicus.com/MetaViewer.php?view_id=31&event_id=3852&meta_id=1344918

District’s ten year property search efforts. Ms. Whelan listed characteristics of the property
at 1075 Francisco Boulevard East and reported on the status of the property. She provided
an overview of the property acquisition process for 1075 Francisco Boulevard East. She
explained the environmental review process of the property and summarized the
community coordination and engagement with the project thus far. Ms. Whelan
announced that the City of San Rafael had submitted a comment regarding the third
agenda item that day.

Ms. Miller reported that the City of San Rafael issued a letter determining that the
acquisition of the property at 1075 Francisco Boulevard East and potential future use of it
for electric vehicle charging and maintenance would not be consistent with the City’s
General Plan. Staff believe there is an adequate basis for the Board to exercise its authority
to overrule the City’s determination. Ms. Miller stated that the District has observed that
acquisition of the property and potential use for electric vehicle charging and maintenance
is consistent with the City’s General Plan’s climate change, mobility, and equity goals;
harmonious with surrounding land uses; and critical to meeting the statewide Zero
Emission Vehicle (ZEV) fleet transition requirements, and continuing to provide transit
service in Marin County at existing service levels. Ms. Miller noted that without acquiring a
property, the District will be extremely challenged in meeting State mandates. Ms. Miller
highlighted how the acquisition of the property is consistent with many of the provisions of
the City’s mobility and climate change elements in the General Plan, as well as the City’s
equity goals that are stated in the General Plan. Ms. Miller explained how the use of the
property would be harmonious with uses in the general vicinity of the project. Ms. Miller
reviewed the recommended Board action.

Director Moulton-Peters requested an explanation of the amended recommended action
for the agenda item.

President Colbert stated that a few of the items in the amended recommended action
came from a grant that was awarded to the District, and a few of the items were in
response to the comments from the City. He clarified that at that day’s meeting, the focus
was the purchase of the property. President Colbert reviewed and expanded upon each
part of the amended recommended action.

Director Moulton-Peters noted how the amended recommended action reflected the
grant. She asked if at that day’s meeting the Board would be voting to commit to exploring
the items in the amended recommended action. She asked if the community engagement
process would commence or end on January 1, 2025.

Iltem 5b



President Colbert clarified that staff would commit to planning the community
engagement process by January 1, 2025.

Vice President Lucan emphasized the importance of clarity and not being too prescriptive.
He asked Ms. Whelan to speak regarding the Memorandum of Understanding (MOU)
mentioned in the City’s letter. He said that there should be flexibility to facilitate a positive
partnership with the City.

Ms. Whelan explained that there would be a roadmap for public engagement throughout
the project. Staff would have a public engagement plan by January 1,2025. Ms. Whelan
noted that the listin the amended recommended action is not exhaustive and could be
adjusted to indicate that.

Director Rice expressed appreciation for the effort to memorialize staff’'s commitment to
the community process and partnership with stakeholders. She noted that the list is not
inclusive of all that may come up with community engagement. She asked what
responsibility staff will have in making improvements beyond the property line of 1075
Francisco Boulevard East. Director Rice stated the recommended action should clearly
state its exploratory nature. She explained that staff should not indicate they are
committing to improvements or elements of a future project that there is not enough
funding or other resources for. She expressed appreciation for staff’s intention to work
collaboratively with the community.

Ms. Whelan acknowledged that funding would limit what staff can do. She noted that some
portions of the grant that the District received may be used as seed funding to raise
additional funds. The District may also apply for additional funding. Staff will explore
whether some of their goals are eligible expenses within the grant. If they are not eligible,
staff will help other entities pursue these goals.

Director Rodoni expressed support for an MOU. He asked about the timing of the MOU. He
expressed concern over the prescriptiveness of the amended recommended action. He
asked what an MOU would look like if the District and the City had a clean slate and if the
MOU reflected additional needs of the District.

Ms. Miller clarified that the scope of that day’s meeting would be to consider the
Conformity Report. The action that would immediately follow would be closing on the
purchase of the property. The recommended action would not approve an MOU or bind
the District to any format of an MOU. The recommended action is to have a proposal for

Iltem 5b



engagement by January 1, 2025. The bulleted list in the recommended action would be
exploratory, not binding.

Ms. Whelan stated staff would need to consider what an MOU could look like if they were to
pursue one. Staff were not considering an MOU regarding community engagement.

Second Vice President Sackett expressed concern regarding the notion of high-quality
design elements supporting a gateway to San Rafael. She noted that she had not heard any
discussion of the gateway at the October 21, 2024 San Rafael City Council meeting. She
clarified that the idea of high-quality design elements sounds fantastic to her, and she
stated that the District has a history of showing that. She highlighted the City of San
Rafael’s words regarding communication and collaboration between the City and the
District. Second Vice President Sackett emphasized the importance of committing to
improving communication.

Director Casissa suggested staff should indicate in the recommended action that they are
open to other ideas for community engagement, and that they will not be limited to what
is listed. He suggested that the recommended action should emphasize its exploratory and
collaborative nature.

President Colbert summarized comments made by Directors.
President Colbert called for public comment.

John Stefanski highlighted the City of San Rafael’s concerns regarding the purchase of
1075 Francisco Boulevard East. He explained that the City remains committed to
partnering with the District and the community.

David Schonbrunn spoke in favor of the District’s purchase of 1075 Francisco Boulevard
East. He raised concerns pertaining to the agenda item’s amended recommended action.
He commented on the District’s consistency with the City’s General Plan. He provided
input concerning the City’s actions regarding vehicle emissions.

Susannah Saunders expressed support for the District’s purchase of 1075 Francisco
Boulevard East. She suggested staff should consider bidirectional buses and place
additional electric vehicle chargers at the property for community members to use.

David Moller suggested that the property at 1075 Francisco Boulevard East should include
public electric vehicle chargers for community members to use.

Iltem 5b



Aaron Burnett spoke in favor of public transportation and the District’s purchase of 1075
Francisco Boulevard East. He expressed support for community engagement and a
Community Benefits Agreement (CBA) for the project.

Director Moulton-Peters cited a September 13, 2024 letter from the City of San Rafael’s
Community & Economic Development Director Micah Hinkle, regarding Francisco
Boulevard East being a neighborhood gateway.

Vice President Lucan suggested that the recommended action could be further amended
to reflect the discussion at that day’s meeting as well as the October 21, 2024 San Rafael
City Council meeting. He noted that the January 1, 2025 deadline in the recommended
action may need to be extended.

President Colbert expressed support for the consideration and collaboration of the
Directors regarding the agenda item.

Director Rice asked if the recommended action could better reflect the comments made at
that day’s meeting.

Ms. Whelan acknowledged the requests for language changes in the recommended action.

President Colbert suggested that the recommended action should state that it is not
exhaustive. He stated that the January 1, 2025 deadline stated in the recommended action
could be extended to March 31, 2025.

Ms. Whelan agreed that March 31, 2025 should be the proposed deadline.
Director Rice asked what the March 31, 2025 deadline would indicate.

President Colbert clarified that March 31, 2025 would be the deadline for development of a
community engagement plan.

Ms. Miller read the new amended recommended action.
Director Rice expressed support of the amended recommended action.

President Colbert thanked the Directors and staff. He highlighted the importance of
partnership and collaboration with stakeholders.

Director Rodoni emphasized the importance of engaging with and not speaking for the
Canal neighborhood.

Iltem 5b



Ms. Miller read the agenda item’s finalized recommended action.

Recommended Action: Adopt the findings specified in this report and exercise the
agency’s authority under state law to overrule the City’s disapproval with Marin
Transit’s commitment to include a robust community engagement and
communication process, in partnership and collaboration with the City of San Rafael
and other community organizations, the plan for which would be determined no later
than March 31, 2025. The community engagement process would include, among
other things, exploration of:

e The potential for housing, retail, or other supportive transportation uses in
conjunction with the needs of the District’s transit use of the site as one or
more of the alternatives studied

e The potential for the facility to serve as a Community Electric Resilience site in
the event of an emergency or disaster

¢ The potential for high quality design elements supporting the gateway to the
Canal neighborhood

¢ The potential for circulation, streetscape and pedestrian/bike improvements
to the site and in support of the Bellam Blvd. improvements currently being
studied by TAM

e The potential for adding or relocating the existing bus stop on Bellam Blvd.
with rider feedback to improve traffic and pedestrian flow near the potential
future roundabouts on Bellam Blvd.

e The potential for pedestrian circulation and safety improvements on the site
including sidewalk widening and lighting on E. Franciso Blvd and the
surrounding area, and explore a potential new pedestrian connection from E.
Francisco to Kerner Blvd along the southern perimeter of the property

e The potential for enhancements and expansion of existing childcare facilities
and workforce development programs in San Rafael that would serve transit
workers and community needs

M/s: Director Rice - Vice President Lucan

Iltem 5b



Ayes: President Colbert, Vice President Lucan, Second Vice President Sackett,
Director Rice, Director Moulton-Peters, Director Rodoni, Director Casissa

Noes: None
Absent: Director Bushey

Abstain: None

Adjourn President Colbert adjourned the meeting at 4:29 P.M.

SINE DIE

PRESIDENT
ATTEST:

CLERK

Iltem 5b


https://marin.granicus.com/MediaPlayer.php?view_id=31&clip_id=12393&meta_id=1346947

711 Grand Ave, #110
San Rafael, CA 94901
ph: 415.226.0855
marintransit.org

Board of Directors

Brian Colbert
President
Town of San Anselmo

Eric Lucan
Vice President
Supervisor District 5

Mary Sackett
Second Vice President

Supervisor District 1

Katie Rice
Director

Supervisor District 2

Stephanie
Moulton-Peters
Director

Supervisor District 3

Dennis Rodoni
Director
Supervisor District 4

Maribeth Bushey
Director
City of San Rafael

Fred Casissa
Alternate
Town of Corte Madera

December 2,2024

Honorable Board of Directors
Marin County Transit District
3501 Civic Center Drive

San Rafael, CA 94903

Subject: Marin County Transit District First Quarter FY 2024/25

Financial Report

Dear Board Members:

Recommendation

Accept report and approve associated budget amendment.

Summary

The quarterly report is an opportunity for your Board to review the District’s
financial status and to provide fiscal and operational accountability. This report
represents all financial transactions for the District through the first quarter of
Fiscal Year 2024/25 and requests your approval of budget amendment 2025-02
(Attachment B).

Background

Unaudited revenues and expenditures are shown on a full accrual basis
consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for special
districts. All known revenues and expenditures for the period are reported even
if they have not been received or are awaiting payment. These include recorded
estimates for property tax and other significant transactions.

Discussion

First quarter operations and capital expenses and revenues were consistent
with the Board-adopted budget (Attachment A). Capital expenditures were 18%
of the capital budget due to timing of vehicle purchases.

Transit Operating Expenses

FY 2024/25 transit operating expenditures through the first quarter (Attachment
A, Page 1) are $11.1 million, which is 25 percent of the annual budget of $45.3
million. With these expenditures, Marin Transit delivered 25 percent of
budgeted fixed route service hours and 18 percent of budgeted paratransit
service hours as identified in Table 1.

Iltem 5¢



marin
transit

Transit Operating Revenues

Marin Transit’s FY2024/25 operating revenues through the first quarter (Attachment A, Page 1) are $12.6
million or 27 percent of the annual budget of $45.8 million.

Capital Budget

Through the first quarter, Marin Transit’s expenditures in the Capital Budget (Attachment A, Page 1)
were $6.6 million or 18% percent of the $35.8 million budget. Capital revenues typically tie closely to
expenditures as they tend to be on a reimbursement basis. Attachment C includes a complete Capital
Report for all major Marin Transit capital projects for the current period.

Table 1: FY2024/25 Year to Date (YTD) thru Third Quarter Service Operations
Budgeted Annual YTD thru Q1

Service Revenue Hours |Actual Revenue Hours “oofAnnual
Regular Fixed Route 167,400 41,344 25%
School Supplemental Service 1,725 232 13%
Muir Woods Shuttle 4,200 2,128 51%
West Marin Stagecoach Service 16,500 4,055 25%
Fixed Route Subtotal 189,825 47,759 25%
Marin Access Shuttles 2,500 174 7%
Local Paratransit Service 30,000 6,993 23%
Regional Paratransit Service 5,000 1,161 23%
Yellow School Bus Service 4 buses 4 buses

e ] 258 e
Catch ARide 16,000 4,787 30%
Volunteer Driver 10,000 2,077 21%

Source: Marin Transit

Fiscal/Staffing Impact

This item includes Board adoption of budget amendment 2025-02. This amendment adjusts the
current year capital budgets based on the FY2023/24 actuals to retain the total project budgets. The
amendment increases FY2024/25 capital expenses by $6,262,807. The shift of costs between fiscal
years does not change the multi-year capital budgets for the projects.

Page 2 of 3

Iltem 5¢



Respectfully Submitted,

Karina Sawin
Accounting Manager

Attachment A: FY 2024/25 First Quarter Financial Report
Attachment B: FY 2024/25 Budget Amendments
Attachment C: Capital Projects Report

Page 3 0of 3

Item 5¢



Attachment A

(In Whole Numbers)

Revenue
Vehicle Operations
Capital

Total Revenue
Expenses
Vehicle Operations
Capital
Total Expenditures

Expenditures

Net Revenue Over Expenditures

Marin Transit
FY2024/25 Q1 Budget Report

From 7/1/2024 Through 9/30/2024

Total Budget -

Total Budget -

Percent Total

FY24 Actual Original Revised Current Period Actual Budget Used
46,688,114 49,283,402 45,783,402 12,580,874 27%
2,441,429 9,751,108 34,316,414 6,996,139 20%
49,129,543 59,034,510 80,099,816 19,577,013 24%
41,350,242 45,290,112 45,290,112 11,099,995 25%
2,400,336 9,751,108 35,763,915 6,607,328 18%
43,750,578 55,041,220 81,054,027 17,707,323 22%
43,750,578 49,220,186 81,054,027 17,707,323 22%
5,378,965 3,993,290 (954,211) 1,869,690 -196%

1

Item 5¢



Attachment A Marin Transit
FY2024/25 Q1 Budget Report
From 7/1/2024 Through 9/30/2024

Operations Summary - Admin, Local, Rural, Marin Access, Yellow Bus

Total Budget - Total Budget - Current Period Percent Total

FY24 Actual Original Revised Actual  Budget Used

Fare Revenue 3,489,555 3,434,005 3,434,005 713,703 20.78%
Advertising & Other Revenue 48,325 50,000 50,000 12,081 24.16%
Fee for Service 1,493,935 1,521,924 1,521,924 416,830 27.39%
Interest 922,103 800,700 800,700 319,460 39.90%
Measure A 942,866 80,832 80,832 80,830 100.00%
Measure AA 17,754,997 18,561,868 18,561,868 4,143,808 22.32%
Measure B 793,674 913,000 913,000 377,338 41.33%
Property Taxes 5,909,281 6,166,642 6,166,642 1,430,080 23.19%
Redevelopment Area (RDA) Fees 84,675 84,000 84,000 - 0.00%
State Transit Assistance (STA) 5,245,116 5,784,253 5,784,253 1,152,508 19.92%
Transit Development Act (TDA) 7,881,923 11,412,830 11,412,830 2,853,208 25.00%
Other State 26,132 22,300 22,300 2,743 12.30%
FTA Funds 1,550,942 1,773,055 1,773,055 785,819 44.32%
National Park Service 548,596 658,047 658,047 292,468 44.44%
Cost Center Revenue Transfers (4,003) (1,980,054) (5,480,054) - 0.00%
Total Revenue 46,688,117 49,283,402 45,783,402 12,580,874 27.48%
Salaries and Benefits 3,317,126 3,833,506 3,833,506 866,980 22.62%
Consultant Services 622,871 692,088 692,088 56,669 8.19%
Professional Service-Legal 27,563 154,500 154,500 6,085 3.94%
Security and Maintenance 195,017 260,783 260,783 43,334 16.62%
Mobility Management Support Programs 6,472 63,506 63,506 784 1.23%
Grants to External Agencies 771,899 768,388 768,388 - 0.00%
Office Supplies 349,611 405,102 405,102 205,068 50.62%
General Insurance 125,419 162,000 162,000 125,803 77.66%
Contract Service Operation 32,699,205 35,065,755 35,065,755 8,859,363 25.26%
Membership & Prof Development 71,176 91,000 91,000 39,315 43.20%
Mileage and Travel 23,933 26,500 26,500 1,055 3.98%
Marketing 105,570 169,486 169,486 41,687 24.60%
Communication 171,859 268,648 268,648 178,121 66.30%
Fuel 2,948,794 3,563,954 3,563,954 682,070 19.14%
Utilities 55,363 70,072 70,072 14,619 20.86%
Vehicle Leases 27,130 27,944 27,944 5,632 20.15%
Office - Rental and Overhead - 192,000 192,000 47,518 24.75%
Cost Center Transfers (168,764) (525,121) (525,121) (74,107) 14.11%
Total Expenses 41,350,244 45,290,111 45,290,111 11,099,995 24.51%
Net Revenue Over Expenditures 5,337,873 3,993,291 493,291 1,480,879 300.20%
2

Item 5¢



Attachment A Marin Transit
FY2024/25 Q1 Budget Report
From 7/1/2024 Through 9/30/2024

Detall - Administration Total Budget - Total Budget - Current Period Percent Total
FY24 Actual Original Revised Actual Budget Used
Revenue
Interest 4070400 922,103 800,700 800,700 319,460 39.90%
Redevelopment Fees 4079950 45,589 49,000 49,000 0 0.00%
Residual ABX 126 4079954 39,086 35,000 35,000 0 0.00%
PropTax-CurrntSecured 4080101 5,185,538 5,468,100 5,468,100 1,367,025 25.00%
County Fee-SV2557Admin Basic Tax 4080102 (59,603) (68,959) (68,959) 0 0.00%
Property Tax-Unitary 4080103 53,542 50,000 50,000 0 0.00%
PropTax-CurrntUnSecur 4080104 108,969 90,000 90,000 0 0.00%
Educ Rev Augm Fund-Redist 4080105 510,865 513,500 513,500 61,933 12.06%
PropTax-Supp CY SECR 4080106 97,015 100,000 100,000 0 0.00%
PropTax-Supp Unsecured 4080107 6,279 5,000 5,000 0 0.00%
PropTax-Redemtion 4080108 984 3,500 3,500 1,122 32.06%
Property Tax-Prior Unsecured 4080109 5,692 5,500 5,500 0 0.00%
Other State 4119940 192 300 300 0 0.00%
Total Revenue 6,916,251 7,051,641 7,051,641 1,749,540 24.81%
Transfers
Property Tax Transfer 4700001 (1,643,981) (2,535,380) (6,035,380) 0 0.00%
Total Transfers (1,643,981) (2,535,380) (6,035,380) 0 0.00%
Net Revenue 5,272,268.00 4,516,262.00 1,016,261.00 1,749,540 172.15%
Expense
Salaries 5010200 2,020,831 2,376,983 2,376,983 641,298 26.98%
Employee Benefits 5020000 1,296,294 1,456,523 1,456,523 225,682 15.49%
Consultant Services 5030301 185,859 240,400 240,400 36,969 15.38%
Professional Svcs - Legal 5030303 27,563 154,500 154,500 6,085 3.94%
Prof Svcs - Accounting and Audit 5030305 36,571 38,500 38,500 0 0.00%
Security Services 5030701 1,843 3,000 3,000 502 16.73%
Office Supplies 5049901 6,220 14,626 14,626 1,260 8.61%
Small Furn/Equip 5049902 7,306 10,300 10,300 2,904 28.19%
Software 5049903 108,247 97,850 97,850 65,762 67.21%
Copier Suppl & Srvc 5049904 8,113 10,300 10,300 2,202 21.38%
Postage 5049905 4,970 9,000 9,000 99 1.10%
Computers 5049906 32,525 23,690 23,690 310 1.31%
Communication - Phone 5050201 32,922 37,500 37,500 8,904 23.74%
Insurance - Gen Liability 5060301 125,419 162,000 162,000 125,803 77.66%
Membership & Prof Development 5090101 71,176 91,000 91,000 39,315 43.20%
Mileage and Travel 5090202 23,933 26,500 26,500 1,055 3.98%
Marketing 5090801 17,160 15,000 15,000 1,365 9.10%
Office Rental 5121200 180,444 192,000 192,000 47,518 24.75%
Total Expense 4,187,396 4,959,672 4,959,672 1,207,033 24.34%
Transfers
Cost Center Salary/Benefit Transfers 5100100 (3,449,455) (3,773,191) (3,773,191) (913,247) 24.20%
Cost Center Transfer Overhead 5100101 (718,177) (658,490) (658,490) (137,170) 20.83%
Total Transfers (4,167,632) (4,431,681) (4,431,681) (1,050,417) 23.70%
Total Expense 19,764 527,991 527,991 156,616 29.66%
3

Item 5¢



Attachment A Marin Transit
FY2024/25 Q1 Budget Report
From 7/1/2024 Through 9/30/2024

Total Budget - Total Budget - Current Period Percent Total

Detail- Local FY24 Actual Original Revised Actual Budget Used
Revenue

Special Fares - Paid By Another Agency 4020000 337,289 350,000 350,000 35,909 10.26%

Advertising Revenue 4060301 48,324 50,000 50,000 12,081 24.16%

Local Government Payments 4090101 11,792 - - 40,776 N/A

Measure A Sales Tax 4092001 712,000 61,039 61,039 61,038 100.00%

Measure AA - Sales Tax 4092005 12,905,349 13,500,000 13,500,000 3,133,627 23.21%

State Transit Assistance -Population Based 4110101 2,685,116 3,224,253 3,224,253 497,508 15.43%

Transit Develoment Act (TDA) 4110102 7,881,923 11,412,830 11,412,830 2,853,208 25.00%

State Transit Assistance - Revenue Based 4110104 2,500,000 1,000,000 1,000,000 625,000 62.50%

SREC Credits 4119911 7,579 6,000 6,000 2,743 45.72%

Fed- FTA 5307 STP 4139912 284,002 - - - -

National Park Service 4139951 548,596 658,047 658,047 292,468 44.44%

Fare Revenue 4140100 2,364,674 2,213,000 2,213,000 560,440 25.32%

Total Revenue 30,286,644 32,475,169 32,475,169 8,114,798 24.99%
Transfers

Property Tax Transfer 4700001 137,566 100,000 100,000 96,694 96.69%

Program Revenue Transfer 4700002 110,369 100,000 100,000 0 -

Total Transfers 247,935 200,000 200,000 96,694 48.35%

Net Revenue 30,534,579 32,675,169 32,675,169 8,211,492 25.13%
Expense

Consultant Services 5030301 331,055 267,800 267,800 7,810 2.92%

Fare Processing Charges 5030310 42,142 23,340 23,340 5,977 25.61%

Bus Stop Maintanence 5030501 105,172 160,000 160,000 21,722 13.58%

Custodial Service 5030602 55,773 74,483 74,483 18,043 24.22%

Fuel 5040101 2,131,968 2,471,839 2,471,839 454,525 18.39%

Electrical Power 5040160 94,701 222,789 222,789 40,080 17.99%

Utilities (Facility) 5040180 40,339 38,245 38,245 8,573 22.42%

Small Furn/Equip 5049902 11,935 10,609 10,609 2,652 25.00%

Software 5049903 47,219 65,000 65,000 53,903 82.93%

Communication 5050200 94,517 157,430 157,430 120,962 79.29%

Purchased Transportation - In Report 5080101 24,373,401 25,987,128 25,987,128 6,711,069 25.82%

Marketing 5090801 55,020 95,000 95,000 25,697 27.05%

Total Expense 27,383,242 29,573,663 29,573,663 7,471,013 25.26%
Transfers

Cost Center Salary/Benefit Transfers 5100100 2,608,290 2,664,770 2,664,770 643,783 24.16%

Cost Center Transfer Overhead 5100101 543,046 436,817 436,817 96,696 22.14%

Total Transfers 3,151,335 3,101,588 3,101,588 740,479 23.87%

Total Expense 30,534,577 32,675,251 32,675,251 8,211,492 25.13%

4

Item 5¢



Attachment A

Detail - Rural

Revenue
Measure A Sales Tax
Measure AA - Sales Tax
State Transit Assistance - Revenue Based
Fed-FTA 5311 Rural
Fare Revenue
Total Revenue
Transfers
Property Tax Transfer
Total Transfers

Net Revenue

Expense
Consultant Services
Fuel
Small Furn/Equip
Communication-AVL
Purchased Transportation - In Report
Marketing
Total Expense
Transfers
Cost Center Salary/Benefit Transfers
Cost Center Transfer Overhead
Total Transfers

Total Expense

Marin Transit
FY2024/25 Q1 Budget Report
From 7/1/2024 Through 9/30/2024

Total Budget -

Total Budget -

Current Period

Percent Total

FY24 Actual Original Revised Actual Budget Used

4092001 57,672 4,944 4,944 4,944 100.00%
4092005 926,812 933,109 933,109 667,604 71.55%
4110104 - 1,500,000 1,500,000 - 0.00%
4139920 413 - - - 0.00%
4140100 77,818 70,000 70,000 19,861 28.37%
1,062,715 2,508,053 2,508,053 692,409 27.61%

4700001 1,442,593 255,326 255,326 5,712 2.24%
1,442,593 255,326 255,326 5,712 2.24%

2,505,308 2,763,379 2,763,379 698,121 25.26%

5030301 - 16,480 16,480 - 0.00%
5040101 268,984 338,697 338,697 83,517 24.66%
5049902 118 5,000 5,000 - 0.00%
5050205 3,384 19,868 19,868 10,540 53.05%
5080101 2,051,073 2,207,290 2,207,290 552,301 25.02%
5090801 5,882 21,855 21,855 8,011 36.66%
2,329,441 2,609,190 2,609,190 654,369 25.08%

5100100 149,488 140,495 140,495 38,039 27.07%
5100101 31,123 41,273 41,273 5,713 13.84%
180,612 181,768 181,768 43,752 24.07%

2,510,053 2,790,958 2,790,958 698,121 25.01%

5

Item 5¢



Attachment A Marin Transit
FY2024/25 Q1 Budget Report
From 7/1/2024 Through 9/30/2024

Total Budget - Total Budget - Current Period Percent Total
Detail - Marin Access FY24 Actual Original Revised Actual Budget Used
Revenue
Measure A Sales Tax 4092001 173,194 14,848 14,848 14,848 100.00%
Measure AA - Sales Tax 4092005 2,830,506 3,020,411 3,020,411 226,176 7.49%
Measure B 4099950 793,674 913,000 913,000 377,338 41.33%
State Transit Assistance -Population Based 4110101 60,000 60,000 60,000 30,000 50.00%
State Prop Tx Relief HOPTR 4119910 18,361 16,000 16,000 0 0.00%
Fed-FTA 5307 Urbanized Area Formula 4139910 1,065,277 1,006,374 1,006,374 763,631 75.88%
Fed-FTA 5310 Mobility 4139915 201,250 766,681 766,681 22,188 2.89%
Fare Revenue 4140100 201,181 200,500 200,500 41,457 20.68%
GGBHTD Payment for Local Paratransit 4601003 668,028 736,916 736,916 173,535 23.55%
GGBHTD Payment for Regional Paratransit 4601004 800,005 766,040 766,040 199,616 26.06%
Total Revenue 6,811,476 7,500,770 7,500,770 1,848,789 24.65%
Transfers
Property Tax Transfer 4700001 59,819 200,000 200,000 459 0.23%
Program Revenue Transfer 4700002 (110,369) (100,000) (100,000) - 0.00%
Total Transfers (50,550) 100,000 100,000 459 0.46%
Net Revenue 6,760,926 7,600,770 7,600,770 1,849,248 24.33%
Expense
Consultant Services 5030301 16,605 88,265 88,265 2,643 2.99%
Fare Processing Charges 5030310 1,551 - - 555 0.00%
Custodial Service 5030602 16,557 19,500 19,500 2,925 15.00%
Security Services 5030701 1,150 2,300 2,300 - 0.00%
Fuel 5040101 453,142 530,629 530,629 103,948 19.59%
Utilities (Facility) 5040180 15,024 31,827 31,827 6,046 19.00%
Small Furn/Equip 5049902 - 10,000 10,000 - 0.00%
Software 5049903 121,751 148,727 148,727 75,739 50.92%
Communication-MERA Radio 5050204 33,742 34,754 34,754 34,463 99.16%
Communication-Data 5050206 11,863 19,096 19,096 3,052 15.98%
Purchased Transportation - In Report 5080101 4,781,903 5,380,048 5,380,048 1,288,490 23.95%
Purchased Transportation - Regional 5080102 737,591 700,009 700,009 179,978 25.71%
Marketing 5090801 27,507 37,132 37,132 6,592 17.75%
Misc-Exp Transit User Training 5098001 6,390 13,506 13,506 784 5.80%
Gap Grant 5098002 82 50,000 50,000 - -
Total Expense 6,224,858 7,065,793 7,065,793 1,705,215 24.13%
Transfers
Cost Center Salary/Benefit Transfers 5100100 443,695 401,414 401,414 125,224 31.20%
Cost Center Transfer Overhead 5100101 92,377 117,923 117,923 18,809 15.95%
Total Transfers 536,072 519,337 519,337 144,033 37.31%
Total Expense 6,760,930 7,585,130 7,585,130 1,849,248 24.38%
6

Item 5¢



Attachment A

Detail - Yellow Bus

Revenue
Yellow Bus Fares - Paid by Another Agency
Local Government Payments
Measure AA - Sales Tax
Fare Revenue - Yellow Bus
Total Revenue

Net Revenue

Expense
Consultant Services
Fare Processing Charges
Custodial Service
Software
Yellow Bus School Service
Marketing
Measure AA Yellow Bus Grants
Leases and Rentals - Passenger Vehicles
Total Expense
Transfers
Cost Center Salary/Benefit Transfers
Cost Center Transfer Overhead
Total Transfers

Total Expense

Marin Transit
FY2024/25 Q1 Budget Report
From 7/1/2024 Through 9/30/2024

Total Budget -

Total Budget -

Current Period

Percent Total

FY24 Actual Original Revised Actual Budget Used

4030000 171,000 177,840 177,840 - 0.00%
4090101 14,110 18,969 18,969 2,903 15.30%
4092005 1,092,330 1,108,348 1,108,348 116,400 10.50%
4140105 337,593 422,665 422,665 56,036 13.26%
1,615,033 1,727,822 1,727,822 175,339 10.15%

1,615,033 1,727,822 1,727,822 175,339 10.15%

5030301 11,102 5,000 5,000 903 18.06%
5030310 11,961 13,803 13,803 1,866 13.52%
5030602 545 - - 87 0.00%
5049903 1,383 - - 437 0.00%
5080103 755,237 791,280 791,280 127,525 16.12%
5090801 - 500 500 22 4.40%
5098008 771,899 768,388 768,388 - 0.00%
5120401 27,130 27,944 27,944 5,632 20.15%
1,579,257 1,606,915 1,606,915 136,472 8.49%

5100100 108,300 80,283 80,283 41,771 52.03%
5100101 22,548 23,585 23,585 6,274 26.60%
130,849 103,867 103,867 48,045 280.43%

1,710,106 1,710,782 1,710,782 184,517 10.79%

7

Item 5¢



Attachment A Marin Transit
FY2024/25 Q1 Budget Report
From 7/1/2024 Through 9/30/2024

Detail: Capital Budget

P-rr:jt:;t Prior _Year FY2024/25 FY20_24125 FY2024/25 Total P!'oject
Expenditures Budget Revised Actual Expenditures

Budget
HZ 10 Hybrid Bus Battery Replacements 716,431 0 716,431 716,431 561 561
LE Purchase 7 35 ft Hybrids 6,423,974 40,936 0 6,383,038 6,067,067 6,108,003
LF Purchase 3 35ft Hybrids 2,850,000 0 5,000 5,000 0 0
PE Purchase 1 electric paratransit 677,208 9,862 667,913 667,346 0 9,862
PG Purchase 12 Paratransit Replacements 1,308,000 0 5,000 5,000 0 0
Subtotal Vehicles 11,975,613 50,798 1,394,344 7,776,815 6,067,628 6,118,426
BN Novato Bus Stop Shelters 61,115 3,257 55,143 57,858 73,654 76,911
BP ADA Bus Stop Improvements 1,803,000 361,024 1,461,679 1,441,985 31,646 392,670
BQ Capital Corridor Improvements 2,000,000 78,245 800,000 806,755 64,817 143,062
Subtotal Bus Stop Improvements 3,864,115 442,526 2,316,822 2,306,598 170,117 612,643
FG Facility Maintenance Facility 45,678,000 253,542 355,902 20,096,458 222,396 475,938
FH rs;;‘gzer:g:g 3020 Kerner 3,535,967 471,923 3,164,040 3,064,044 52,109 524,032
FI  Facility - Kerner Driver Break Room 650,000 0 650,000 650,000 0 0
YF Yellow Bus Parking Facility 3,000,000 0 0 0 0 0
Subtotal Facility 52,863,967 725,465 4,169,942 23,810,502 274,505 999,970
OD On Board Equipments 1,250,000 0 1,250,000 1,250,000 12,580 12,580
Subtotal On Board Equipment 1,250,000 0 1,250,000 1,250,000 12,580 12,580
GG Golden Gate Capital Costs (GG) 24,000 74,127 20,000 20,000 3,566 3,566
VR Major Vehicle Repairs (VR) 200,000 285,443 200,000 200,000 42,284 42,284
IF  Infrastructure Support (IF) 400,000 1,652,015 400,000 400,000 36,647 36,647
Subtotal Ongoing Capital Expenses 624,000 2,011,585 620,000 620,000 82,497 82,497

Total Expenditures 70,577,695 3,230,374 9,751,108 35,763,915 6,607,328 7,826,117

8
Iltem 5¢



Attachment B

FY2024/25 Q1

Budget Amendments

Board - . . o .
Number Authorization Description Function Program Project GL Original Change Final
Moved budget from future years to
FY2024/25 for the purchase of property. Capital Capital FG 5230104 Facilities 355,902 19,750,000 20,105,902
No change to total project cost.
2025-01 08/05/2024
Total Change for 2025-01 19,750,000
LE 5230101 Vehicles 0 6,383,038 6,383,038
PE 5230101 Vehicles 667,913 -567 667,346
BN 5230104 Facilities 55,143 2,715 57,858
Roll for\_/vard of FY2024 Capital Project Capital Capital BP 5230104 Facilities 1,461,679 19,694 1,441,985
expenditures.
2025-02 pending
BQ 5230104 Facilities 800,000 6,755 806,755
FG 5230104 Facilities 20,105,901 -9,444 20,096,458
FH 5230104 Facilities 3,164,040 -99,996 3,064,044
Total Change for 2025-02 6,262,807

Item 5¢



VEHICLES

Attachment C

Capital Projects Report FY2024/25

This capital project report provides details through the First Quarter FY2024/25. Project descriptions and status are given for all
major capital projects. Projects are grouped according to project type as shown below.

Total Project Total Expended Total Project
Budgets FY2025 Expenditures
Vehicles $11,975,613 $6,067,628 $6,118,426
Bus Stop Improvements $3,864,115 $170,117 $611,643
Facility $52,863,967 $274,506 $999,969
Technology Projects $1,250,000 $12,580 $12,580
Ongoing Capital Expenses $624,000 $82,498 $82,497 (annual)
$70,577,695 $6,607,328 $7,825,116
Hybrid Battery Refresh Total Project Budget $716,431
Concept: Purchase replacement batteries for Hybrid buses
Funding: $716,431 Measure AA

*Federal funds allocated will be spent on preventive maintenance

Description: Perform required mid-life hybrid battery refresh on 10 2017 35ft buses
Status: Procurement process has started and is expected to finish in 2025.

Expended to Anticipated
Project ID Budget Date Percent Complete = Completion Date
HZ $716,431 $561 0% Dec-25
Purchase Seven 35ft Hybrid Vehicles (Replacement) Total Project Budget $6,423,974

Concept: Replace seven 35ft Hybrid vehicles to replace vehicles beyond their useful life.
Funding: $4,882,220 Federal Section 5307
$770,877 State

$770,877 Measure AA
Description: Purchase seven 35ft Hybrid vehicles

Status: Vehicles have been delivered and entered service in July 2024. An additional spare parts order for
this purchase is in process.

Expended to Anticipated
Project ID Budget Date Percent Complete  Completion Date
LE $6,423,974 $6,108,003 95% Dec-24
Purchase Three 35ft Hybrid Vehicles Total Project Budget $2,850,000
Concept: Purchase Three 35ft Hybrid Vehicles
Funding: $2,166,000 Federal 5307

$684,000 Measure AA

Description: Purchase 3 35ft Hybrid Vehicles to replace one shuttle and narrow XHF
vehicles that are no longer available.

Status: This purchase is anticipated to start in Spring 2025.

Expended to Anticipated
Project ID Budget Date Percent Complete  Completion Date
LF $2,850,000 S0 0% Jun-26

page 1
Item 5¢



VEHICLES

BUS STOP IMPROVEMENTS

Attachment C

marin
transit
Purchase 12 Paratransit Replacements Total Project Budget
Concept: Purchase 12 paratransit replacements
Funding: $1,046,400 Federal Section 5307
$261,600 Measure AA
Description: Replace 12 paratransit vehicles beyond their useful life

Status: This purchase has been modified in recent vehicle replacement plan and
will be updated with an upcoming budget adjustment

Expended to Anticipated
Project ID Budget Date Percent Complete  Completion Date
PG $1,308,000 S0 0% Aug-25
Purchase 1 Electric Paratransit Total Project Budget
Concept: Purchase One Electric Paratransit Vehicle
Funding: $677,208 State LCTOP

Description: Replace 1 paratransit vehicles that is beyond its useful life

Status: Marin Transit will replace one paratransit vehicle with two electric paratransit vehicles. The
District is waiting for the release of a upcoming vehicle that may have improved range and

$1,308,000

$677,208

features. Staff plans to bring this purchase to the Board for authorization in early 2025.

Expended to Anticipated
Project ID Budget Date Percent Complete  Completion Date
PE $677,208 $9,862 1% Dec-25
Bus Stop Improvements - Novato Bus Shelters Total Project Budget

Concept: Replace Bus Shelters in Novato
Funding: $48,892 Federal Lifeline Program
$12,223 Measure AA

$61,115

Description: Marin Transit will replace up to eight advertising shelters previously under contract with
an advertising company through the City of Novato with low-maintenance shelters.

Status: Shelters were delivered in Summer 2024. They are being installed by the City of Novato

staff as schedules allow

Expended to c letion Dat
i Completion Date
Project ID Budget Date Percent Complete OMPIElion £0Ls
BN $61,115 $60,113 98% Feb-25
Bus Stop Improvements - County Wide Stop Improvements Total Project Budget

Concept: Complete construction of Bus Stop Improvements
Funding: $1,362,400 Federal
$440,600 Measure AA
Description: Design & Constrution for ADA Bus Stop Improvements

$1,803,000

Statyus: Design is complete and the project is delay due to Caltrans review process for stops on

and adjacent to Caltrans ROW. Staff would like to release construction bid
documents in late 2024.

Expended to
Completion Date

Project ID Budget Date Percent Complete
BP $1,803,000 $408,468 23% Jun-25

page 2

Item 5¢



BUS STOP IMPROVEMENTS

ADMIN AND OPERATIONS FACILITY

Attachment C

marin
transit

Bus Stop Improvements - Capital Corridors Improvements

Total Project Budget $2,000,000

Concept: Improve High Ridership Corridors
Funding: $1,600,000 Federal OBAG 3
$400,000 Measure AA

Description: Evaluate and make improvements to three high ridership corridors.

Statyus: Marin Transit has procured communication needed for buses to use signal priority
features in San Rafael. Staff is working with San Rafael to enable the system in San
Rafael. Staff initiated a task order with On-Call planning team to start the corridor

evaluation process and identify improvement opportunities.

Expended to
Completion Date

Project ID Budget Date Percent Complete
BQ $2,000,000 $143,062 7% Jan-26

Facility - Maintenance Facility

Total Project Budget $45,678,000

Concept: Purchase/Build Fixed Route Maintenance Facility
Funding: $14,178,000 Capital Reserve
$31,500,000 FTA 5339
Description: Purchase/Build Fixed Route Maintenance Facility
Status: Marin Transit is completing due diligence activities on potential properties.

Project ID
FG

Budget
$45,678,000

Expended to
Date

Percent Complete

Anticipated
Completion Date

$475,938

1%

Jul-27

Facility - Kerner Driver Break Room Improvements

Total Project Budget

Concept: Improve Driver Break Room at Kerner
Funding: $650,000 Local Property Tax

Description: Make improvements to Kerner Maintenance Facility to provide drivers
with a Break Room area.

StALS: pyoject anticipated to begin in 2025.

Project ID
FI

Budget
$650,000

Expended to
Date

Percent Complete

Anticipated
Completion Date

$0

0%

Jun-26

Facility - 3010/3020 Kerner Improvement

Total Project Budget

Concept: Improvements to the 3010/3020 Kerner Parking Facility
Funding: $655,747 LCTOP Funding
$1,192,790 FTA 5307
$300,000 Local Property Tax

Description: Prepare site for vehicle parking and electric bus charging

$650,000

$3,535,967

Status: Board authorized contract for design of a new parking facility at 3000 Kerner Blvd in

December 2022. Staff completed the 90% design in November 2023 and is going through
the review process with the City of San Rafael and PG&E. Pending PG&E permits, staff
released bid documents in September 2024, with bids due in October. Marin Transit
anticipates awarding the contract in December 2024.

Expended to

Anticipated

Project ID Budget Date Percent Complete  Completion Date
FH $3,535,967 $524,032 15% Dec-25

page 3
Item 5¢



ADMIN AND OPERATIONS FACILITY

TECHNOLOGY PROJECTS

ONGOING CAPITAL EXPENSES

Attachment C

marin
transit
Facility - Yellow Bus Parking Facility Total Project Budget $3,000,000 i

Concept: Identify and purchase property for vehicles
Funding: $3,000,000 Capital Reserve
Description: Replace temporary leased parking with a permanent location
Status: Marin Transit is evaluating and identifying opportunities for land acquisition.

Expended to Anticipated
Project ID Budget Date Percent Complete  Completion Date
YF $3,000,000 S0 0% NA
Technology Projects - On Board Technology Total Project Budget $1,250,000

Concept: Fund the purchase of equipment needed for farebox transition.
Funding: $1,000,000 Federal 5307
$250,000 Measure AA

Description: Fund purchase of new passenger counting equipment, replacement fareboxes, ad
associated advanced vehicle location equipment.
Status: This project is anticipated to begin in 2025

Expended to Anticipated
Project ID Budget Date Percent Complete  Completion Date
oD $1,250,000 $12,580 0% Jun-25
Ongoing Capital Expenses Annual Budget $624,000
Concept: Ongoing capital expenses
Funding: $624,000 Measure A
Total Project Expended in
Projects: Budgets Annual Budget FY2025
GG Golden Gate Capital Costs $24,000 $20,000 $3,566
VR Major Vehicle Repairs $200,000 $200,000 $42,284
IF Infrastructure Support $400,000 $400,000 $36,647

Description: Ongoing capital costs associated with the Golden Gate operations contract, major vehicle repairs,
and other small capital expenses.
Status: Capital depreciation expenses for equipment owned by Golden Gate Transit are billed monthly.
Major vehicle repairs, such as transmissions, are expended as needed. Infrastructure support
includes small capital projects, staff support, and work on partner agency capital projects.

page 4
ltem 5¢



711 Grand Ave, #110
San Rafael, CA 94901
ph: 415.226.0855
marintransit.org

Board of Directors

Brian Colbert
President
Town of San Anselmo

Eric Lucan
Vice President
Supervisor District 5

Mary Sackett
Second Vice President

Supervisor District 1

Katie Rice
Director

Supervisor District 2

Stephanie
Moulton-Peters
Director

Supervisor District 3

Dennis Rodoni
Director
Supervisor District 4

Maribeth Bushey
Director
City of San Rafael

Fred Casissa
Alternate
Town of Corte Madera

December 2,2024

Honorable Board of Directors
Marin County Transit District
3501 Civic Center Drive

San Rafael, CA 94903

Subject: Marin Transit Quarterly Performance Report for the First

Quarter of FY 2024/25

Dear Board Members:

Recommendation

Information only.

Summary

As part of the District’s service monitoring process, staff prepare a quarterly
performance report. Attached is the report for the first quarter of FY 2024/25.

The quarterly report provides route-level statistics and performance measures
with financial data and an in-depth analysis of trends. The report discusses any
relevant external factors such as weather, operator shortages, and service
changes.

Additional detailed analyses of system performance and trends are provided in
an annual system performance report. This report is available on the District’s
website at https://marintransit.org/service-performance-and-reports in
addition to the monthly reports.

Fiscal/Staffing Impact
None.

Respectfully Submitted,

Asher Butnik
Senior Transit Planner

Attachment A: Quarterly Performance Report for FY 2024/25 Q1

Attachment B: FY 2025 Q1 (July - September) Marin Transit Outreach and
Travel Training


https://marintransit.org/service-performance-and-reports

Attachment A

Quarterly Performance Report for FY 2024/25 Q1

This report summarizes the operational performance of Marin Transit services for the first quarter of FY
2024/25 from July 1, 2024 through September 30, 2024. The Quarterly Performance Report provides
detailed route-level statistics, analyzes trends, and evaluates performance measures established under
Measure A and Measure AA.

Report Format

The data presented in this report is generated directly from TransTrack, Marin Transit’s data
management system. TransTrack enables Marin Transit to consolidate and analyze all operational data
from the District’s transit programs and contractors in one system. TransTrack reports all costs
associated with service operations, not just contractor costs. This reporting format most accurately
represents the District’s actual costs of providing service.

Route performance is presented relative to typology-based targets. The Board adopted updated targets
on September 9, 2024. These typology-based targets aim to match routes and service levels to the
markets they are intended to serve. All performance and financial data are consistent with the District’s
reporting for the National Transit Database.

Performance Goals

Performance goals at the route level are measured in both productivity (unlinked passengers per hour
and per trip) and cost-effectiveness (subsidy per unlinked passenger trip). Table 1 below summarizes
route level performance goals by typology. Note that there are no productivity or cost-effectiveness
goals identified for the Yellow Bus, Muir Woods Shuttle, Volunteer Driver, and Catch-A-Ride programs.

Table 1: Productivity and Subsidy Goals by Service Typology

Unlinked Passenger | Subsidy per

Service Typology Trips per Hour Passenger Trip
(at or above) (at or below)
Local 17,22, 23, 35, 36, 49, 71 18 $10.88
Community 29,57, 219, 228, 233, 245 8 $19.04
Supplemental 613,619, 625, 654 20 per trip $16.32
Rural 61, 68 6 $29.92
Demand Response Local Paratransit, Marin Access Shuttles 2 $108.80

Note: Subsidy targets reflect an escalation of 8.8% from the prior year, in accordance with the Transportation Services
Consumer Price Index 12-month increase at the start of the fiscal year.

Performance Summary

In the first quarter of FY 2024/25, Marin Transit carried a total of 809,120 passengers systemwide. This
represents a ridership increase of 9% compared to the first quarter of the previous fiscal year and is 6%
lower than pre-pandemic ridership (Q1 FY2019/20).

Item 5d



Attachment A

On fixed route transit services, Marin Transit carried 746,178 riders. This is an increase of 9% compared
to the first quarter of FY 2023/24. The Muir Woods Shuttle carried 25,242 passengers. This represents a
decrease of 18% from the prior year. The Yellow Bus program carried 17,265 passengers. This represents
an increase of 16% compared to the first quarter of the previous fiscal year. Marin Access services
carried 20,435 trips on demand response and mobility management programs. This reflects a decrease
of 17% compared to the first quarter of the last fiscal year. The tables at the end of this report provide
a breakdown of all route-level statistics.

Local (Routes 17, 22, 23, 35, 36,49, and 71)

In the first quarter of FY 2024/25, Local routes carried 610,472 passengers. This represents an increase
of 7% compared to the first quarter of the prior fiscal year. The Local typology carried 20 passengers per
revenue hour, meeting the goal of 18 or higher, and the average subsidy per passenger was $8.64,
meeting the goal of $10.88 or lower. Local service accounted for 68% of fixed route service in revenue
hours and 82% of fixed route ridership in the first quarter of FY 2024/25.

Community (Routes 29, 57, 219, 228, 233, 245)

During the first quarter of the fiscal year, Community routes carried 97,965 total passengers. This
represents an increase of 16% from the first quarter of the last fiscal year. The Community typology
carried 9 passengers per revenue hour, meeting the goal of 8 or higher, and the average subsidy per
passenger was $17.54, meeting the goal of $19.04 or lower. Community services accounted for 23% of
fixed route service in revenue hours and provided 13% of fixed route ridership in the first quarter of FY
2024/25.

Supplemental School (Routes 613, 619, 625, and 654)

Supplemental School routes carried 7,150 passengers in the first quarter of FY 2024/25. This represents
a 24% increase from the first quarter of the prior fiscal year. The Supplemental typology carried 21
passengers per trip, meeting the goal of 20 or higher, and the average subsidy per passenger was $11.53,
meeting the goal of $16.32 or lower. Supplemental service accounted for 1% of fixed route service in
revenue hours and provided 1% of fixed route ridership in the first quarter of FY 2024/25.

Rural (West Marin Stagecoach Routes 61 and 68)

In the first quarter of the fiscal year, the two Stagecoach routes carried 30,591 passengers. This
represents a 27% increase from the first quarter of the prior fiscal year. The Rural typology carried 8
passengers per trip, meeting the goal of 6 or higher, and the average subsidy per passenger was $22.80,
meeting the goal of $29.92 or lower. Rural service accounted for 9% of fixed route service in revenue
hours, and ridership represented 4% of fixed route ridership in the first quarter of FY2024/25.

Muir Woods Shuttle

For the first quarter of FY 2024/25, the Muir Woods Shuttle ran daily service prior to August 16" and
weekend/holiday only service starting on August 17". In this quarter, the Muir Woods Shuttle carried
28,242 passengers. This represents a decrease of 18% from the first quarter of FY 2023/24. Note that, in
consultation with the National Park Service, less service was offered on the Shuttle this year thanin the
prior year.

Page 2 of 5

Item 5d



Attachment A

Yellow Bus

In the first quarter of FY 2024/25, the Ross Valley School District yellow bus service carried 17,265
passengers. This represents an increase of 16% compared to the first quarter of the prior year, which is
roughly double the 8% increase in school days from the prior year.

Marin Access

In the first quarter of FY 2024/25, Marin Access offered ADA-paratransit service, the Marin Access
Shuttles program, the Volunteer Driver program, and the Catch-A-Ride 2.0 pilot program. Note that,
beginning this quarter, Catch-A-Ride riders had access to an additional provider, Lyft, via the digital
voucher option.

The Demand Response typology represents the subset of Marin Access services that are operated by the
District’s Demand Response contractor, Transdev, and includes ADA-paratransit service and the Marin
Access Shuttles program. In the first quarter of FY 2024/25, Demand Response services carried 13,571
passengers, an increase of 8% over the prior year. The service productivity average of 1.9 passengers
per revenue hour did not meet the 2.0 standard, and the average subsidy per passenger of $108.92
missed the target of $108.80 by less than 1%.

The Volunteer Driver Program completed 2,077 trips in the first quarter of FY 2024/25. This represents a
16% decrease compared to the previous fiscal year.

The Catch-A-Ride 2.0 pilot program provided 4,787 one-way trips. This represents an increase of 188%
compared to the prior year. The Catch-A-Ride 2.0 pilot has seen strong and sustained growth for the five
consecutive quarters since its inception.

Community Engagement

Staff perform various activities on an ongoing basis to engage the community and share information
about Marin Transit and Marin Access programs and services. In the first quarter, there was a significant
focus on establishing a more regular presence at locations across the County to meet people where
they are at and provide the general public with information about Marin Transit and Marin Access
programs and services. Events were held in various formats, at various locations, and on varying days
and times to meet the needs of the community. The attached report outlines our community
engagement initiatives for various target audiences, including community members, fixed route riders,
and Marin Access riders.

In the first quarter of FY 2024/25, staff successfully completed eighteen events, including eight
Navigating Transit Presentations, eight events where informational resource tables were staffed, and
two direct rider engagement events at the San Rafael Transit Center. Nearly all events had Spanish
translation services available. In total, staff reached over 2,600 community members. In Q1, our reach
was slightly less than during the same period of FY 2022/23. Although our reach was slightly lower, the
amount of events staff were able to participate in was tripled, with several events allowing staff to
engage with 50+ community members. The increase in the number of events for the first quarter of FY
2024/25 can be directly attributed to staff and their efforts to reinstate Satellite Hours at both new and
familiar locations across Marin County.

Digital outreach has proven to be an effective tool for engaging with those who currently use our
services and those who may be considering trying transit. In Q1 of FY2024/25 staff distributed 3 E-

Page 3 of 5

Item 5d



Attachment A

Newsletters, created 108 social media posts across several platforms, and were featured on KWMR’s
“Epicenter” show as well as the Transit Unplugged Podcast. In total, these efforts generated over 6,800
individual digital engagement events. We are excited to continue to test our engagement strategies and
see the outcome of campaigns planned through the end of the fiscal year.

Ridership Trends

The District continues to experience strong ridership; total ridership reached 94% of pre-pandemic
levels in Q1. However, ridership recovery has not been spread evenly across Marin Transit programs.
Fixed route ridership recovery was swift and has remained strong; fixed route services exceeded pre-
COVID ridership by 2% in the first quarter of FY 2024/25. Marin Access services by contrast were at 47%
of pre-COVID ridership levels this quarter. For about a year and a half, Marin Access ridership had
plateaued at around half of pre-pandemic levels. The current quarter represents the third consecutive
quarter where year over year ridership on Marin Access services has increased. Marin Transit staff
believe that the restructuring of Marin Access programs, which took effect on July 1, 2023, has had a
positive effect on Marin Access ridership and mobility of seniors and people with disabilities in the long
term.

This quarter, Marin Transit experienced strong ridership growth compared to the national average.
According to the National Transit Database, in the first quarter of FY 2024/25, nationwide bus ridership
was 4% higher than the prior year, compared to Marin Transit’s 9% increase over the prior year for fixed
route services.

Marin Transit continues to have one of the strongest ridership recoveries in the Bay Area at 102% of pre-
COVID for fixed route services, and one of the strongest in the country when comparing to pre-COVID
levels (the national average this quarter was 79%). Compared to other North Bay transit agencies, Marin
Transit fixed route services continue to perform well. In the first quarter of FY 2024/25, Golden Gate
Transit carried 392,062 passengers on its fixed route bus service, representing just over half of Marin
Transit’s fixed route ridership (746,178), while SMART carried 272,771 passengers. Golden Gate Transit
experienced a 5% increase in fixed route bus ridership in this quarter compared to the first quarter of
FY2023/24, bringing overall recovery to 48% of pre-COVID ridership. SMART experienced a 32% increase
in ridership compared to the first quarter of last year, bringing overall recovery to 143% of pre-COVID
ridership.

Other Bay Area transit agencies that provide local transit service experienced comparable ridership
growth trends in the first quarter of FY 2024/25. Comparing to other Countywide peer agencies, Napa
Valley Transportation Authority (VINE), SamTrans, and Solano County Transit (SolTrans) experienced a
9%, 10%, and 8% increase in ridership, respectively, relative to the first quarter of FY 2023/24, bringing
their ridership relative to pre-COVID to 54%, 93%, and 79%, respectively.

Demand for Marin Access mobility management and demand response programs was 23% higher
during the first quarter of FY 2024/25 compared to the first quarter of the prior year. This is the third
consecutive quarter where ridership on demand response services was higher than the same quarter of
the prior year. However, ridership on Marin Access services remains low relative to pre-COVID (47%).
Staff conducted a robust assessment of Marin Access programs and ridership to explore reasons for
these trends. The assessment concluded that a significant portion of former ridership has switched to
alternative programs that better meet their needs. One of these programs is the new Catch-A-Ride 2.0
pilot, which is experiencing very strong growth (188% compared to the prior year). It remains to be seen
where Marin Access ridership will land when the current growth spurt subsides.

Page 4 of 5

Item 5d



Attachment A

marin
transit

Table 2 below compares several other factors and qualitatively evaluates their potential impact on
ridership.

Table 2: Factors Impacting Ridership Comparison

Factor FY 2023/24 Q1 FY 2024/25 Q1 Impact
Days Operated Weekdays 63 64 A
School Days 26 28 A
Weekends & Holidays 29 28 --
Muir Woods Shuttle 58 62 V *See note
Service Disruptions (cancelled/missed service) 386 74 AAA
Rainfall (inches) 0 0 --
Average Gas Prices $5.16 $4.54 v

Note: Although the Muir Woods Shuttle operated more days in FY 2024/25 Q1 than the prior year, the level of service (number
of trips) was lower.

Due to the national labor shortage, Marin Transit’s contractor operators have had difficulty hiring new
drivers, which led to a significant amount of missed service in the prior fiscal year. The service change
implemented on June 11", 2023, was designed to reduce the number of driver shifts necessary to
operate service, in an attempt to reduce the amount of missed service. The significant reduction in
missed service for this quarter compared to the prior year demonstrates that the June 11* service
changes were successful in that goal.

Page 5 of 5

Item 5d



Attachment A

Systemwide Performance Statistics

Typology

1. Local

2. Community

4. Supplemental

5. Rural

7. Yellow Bus

8. Recreational

9. Demand

Response

Catch-A-Ride

Volunteer Driver

Rollup

Route

17

22

23

35

36

49

71

Rollup
219

228

233

245

29

57

Rollup
613

619

625

654
Rollup

61

68

Rollup
Hdn Valley
White Hill
Rollup

66

Rollup
Local Para
MA Shuttle
Rollup
CAR_Taxi
CAR_TNC
Rollup
VolIDrvr
VolDvrWM
Rollup

Passengers %A Passengers

58,046
47,243
69,825
151,323
75,196
92,179
116,660
610,472
9,621
19,410
11,707
9,854
3,366
44,007
97,965
2,063
2,999
1,406
682
7,150
11,699
18,892
30,591
2,594
14,671
17,265
25,242
25,242
13,323
248
13,571
2,912
1,875
4,787
1,791
286
2,077
809,120

A11.4%
A6.1%
A11.6%
A32%
A4T7%
A18.3%
A3.3%
A7.4%
¥3.5%
A14.0%
A21.6%
Y11.9%
A22.4%
A31.1%
A16.4%
A8.8%
A63.9%
v3.8%
A152%
A23.7%
A27.3%
A26.9%
A27.0%
A16.4%
A 15.6%
A15.8%
Y18.1%
v18.1%
A7.9%
A31.9%
A8.2%
A 133.5%
A 349.6%
A187.7%
v8.4%
V43.3%
¥15.5%
A8.6%

QUARTER
Q1 FY 2024/25

Revenue Hours Operating Cost Passengers per Revenue Hou Subsidy per Passenger Farebox Recovery

3,736
3,445
3,644
4,936
3,904
5,194
6,116
30,974
1,297
2,382
1,083
1,096
583
3,928
10,370
65

93

46

28
232
1,593
2,462
4,055
2

2

4
2,128
2,128
6,985
174
7,159

54,922

$641,219
$582,900
$703,897
$951,594
$764,087
$902,442
$1,223,731
$5,769,871
$221,844
$403,128
$184,180
$189,296
$114,721
$675,699
$1,788,869
$23,236
$34,782
$16,980
$8,947
$83,946
$284,195
$433,389
$717,585
$90,806
$90,806
$181,612
$643,825
$643,825
$1,460,750
$43,820
$1,504,570
$92,663
$42,571
$135,234
$23,555
$7,427
$30,983
$10,856,494

155
13.7
19.2
30.7
19.3
17.7
19.1
19.7
7.4
8.1
10.8
9.0
5.8
1.2
9.4
317
32.2
30.3
245
30.8
7.3
7.7
7.5
1,297.0
7,335.5
4,316.3
11.9
1.9
1.9
14
1.9

14.0

$10.24
$11.43
$9.27
$5.52
$9.33
$9.10
$9.59
$8.64
$22.16
$19.92
$15.06
$18.53
$33.25
$14.71
$17.54
$11.11
$11.44
$11.70
$12.87
$11.53
$23.57
$22.32
$22.80
$31.76
$2.94
$7.27
$25.48
$25.48
$107.69
$174.67
$108.92
$31.82
$22.70
$28.25
$13.05
$25.88
$14.82
$12.59

7.3%
7.4%
8.1%
12.3%
8.2%
7.0%
8.6%
8.6%
3.9%
4.1%
4.3%
3.5%
2.4%
4.2%
4.0%
1.4%
1.4%
3.2%
1.9%
1.8%
3.0%
2.7%
2.8%
9.3%
52.4%
30.9%
0.1%
0.1%
1.8%
1.1%
1.8%
0.0%
0.0%
0.0%
0.8%
0.3%
0.7%
6.2%

Item 5d


https://analytics.transtrack.net/embedded.html#project=%2Fgdc%2Fprojects%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz&dashboard=%2Fgdc%2Fmd%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz%2Fobj%2F50135&tab=bbde7e075bc8&export=1&ctx=%2Fgdc%2Fprojects%2Fph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz%2FexecutionContexts%2Ftmp673ad9490bbfbc7c155d1b40&request_id=uix8f4b027212d6_66%3AWUv6sUFxCaaKwsdL%3A1hkb4usc1ovkk0qu%3A5&s=/gdc/workspaces/ph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz|analysisPage|head|/gdc/md/ph7vkpt6d15wfrwooz9f6wh5y8cu0ylz/obj/50857

Attachment B

FY 2025 Q1 (July - September) Marin Transit Community Engagement

Reporting Month: July 2024

Description Contacts
07/1/2024 Marin Access Navigating Transit ~ Navigating Transit Presentation to residents of Kruger Pines in 3
Presentation at Kruger Pines coordination with Marin Public Housing Staff. Information was
presented in English with support for Spanish speaking attendees
available.
7/2/2023 Marin Access Navigating Transit ~ Navigating Transit Presentation to residents of Casa Nova in 4
Presentation at Casa Nova coordination with Marin Public Housing Staff. Information was
presented in English with support for Spanish speaking attendees
available.
7/3/2024 Marin Transit Community Event  Flyer distribution of information about Free Fares During the Fair, 57

at the San Rafael Transit Center  recommended routes to take to the fair, and information regarding
transportation after the fair. Information was provided in English
and Spanish with most engagement occurring in Spanish.

7/5/2024 Marin Transit Community Event  Flyer distribution of information about Free Fares During the Fair, 29
at the San Rafael Transit Center  recommended routes to take to the fair, and information regarding
transportation after the fair. Information was provided in English
and Spanish with most of the engagement occurring in Spanish.

7/13/2024 Marin Transit Community Event  Resource table at the Reimagine Bellam Canal Alliance Community 70
at the Canal Alliance Community  Fair. Passed out information regarding Marin Access CAR 2.0 Pilot
Fair Program, Bus stop improvements, Youth Fare Free, and bus stop
maintenance.
7/18/2024 Marin Access Navigating Transit ~ Navigating Transit Presentation to the residents of Golden Hindein 4
Presentation at Golden Hinde coordination with Marin Public Housing Staff. Information was
presented in English with support for Spanish speaking attendees
available.
Page 1 of 5

Item 5d



Attachment B

FY 2025 Q1 (July - September) Marin Transit Community Engagement

7/25/2024 Marin Access Navigating Transit ~ Navigating Transit Presentation to the residents of Rotary Manor in 12
Presentation at Rotary Manor coordination with EAH Housing Staff. Information was presented in
English with support for Spanish speaking attendees available.

Page 2 of 5

Item 5d



Attachment B

FY 2025 Q1 (July - September) Marin Transit Community Engagement

Reporting Month: August 2024

Date(s) Event Description Contacts
8/6/2024 Marin Access Community Event ~ MCTD Staff hosted a resource table at the national Night Out in 50
at the National Night Out coordination with Vivalon. Information was distributed in English
and in Spanish.
8/7/2024 Marin Access Navigating Transit ~ Navigating Transit Presentation to the residents of Homestead 1
Presentation at Homestead Terrace in coordination with Marin Public Housing Staff. Information
Terrace was presented in English with support for Spanish speaking
attendees available.
8/21/2024 Marin Access Navigating Transit ~ Navigating Transit Presentation to the residents of Venetia Oaks in 1
Presentation at Venetia Oaks coordination with Marin Public Housing Staff. Information was
presented in English with support for Spanish speaking attendees
available.
8/27/2024 Marin Access Navigating Transit  Navigating Transit Presentation to the residents of Cecilia Place in 1
Presentation at Cecilia Place coordination with EAH Housing Staff. Information was presented in

English with support for Spanish speaking attendees available.

Page 3 of 5

Item 5d



Attachment B

FY 2025 Q1 (July - September) Marin Transit Community Engagement

Reporting Month: September 2024

Description Contacts
9/4/2024 Marin Access Satellite Hours at MCTD Staff hosted a resource table at the Food Pantry held at the 70
West Marin Community Services  West Marin Community Services building. Information was
Food Pantry distributed in English and in Spanish with most of the engagement
occurring in Spanish.
9/12/2024 TAM Clean Fleet Expo MCTD staff participated in the TAM Clean Fleet Expo. Staff hosted a 150

booth with a vehicle on-site that attendees could board and ask
guestions about.

9/18/2024 Marin Access Community Event ~ MCTD sponsored the Marin Senior Fair at the Platinum Level and 2,100
at the Marin Senior Fair hosted a booth. Attendees could pick up Marin Access flyers, Marin
Transit Rider’s Guides, and various giveaway items. Attendees also
had the opportunity to sign up for Marin access on-site. Staff at all
levels attended the event and were available to assist riders,
potential riders, and our community partners in both English and

Spanish.

9/19/2023 Marin Access Satellite Hours at MCTD staff hosted a resource table in the first-floor lobby of 12
Vivalon’s Mexican Independence Vivalon’s Healthy aging Campus during their Mexican Independence
Celebration. Celebration. Information was distributed in English and in Spanish.

9/20/2024 Marin Access Satellite Hours MCTD staff hosted a resource table during San Rafael’s Community 70
during San Rafael’s Community =~ Outreach Session held before Movies at the Park at the Sun Valley
Outreach Session Park. Information was distributed in English and in Spanish

9/24/2024 Marin Access Satellite Hours at MCTD staff hosted a resource table in the lobby of the Margaret Todd 7

the Margaret Todd Senior Center ~ Senior Center. Information was distributed in English and is Spanish.

Page 4 of 5

Item 5d



Attachment B

FY 2025 Q1 (July - September) Marin Transit Community Engagement

9/25/2024 Marin Access Navigating Transit ~ Navigating Transit Presentation to participants of the Margaret Todd 5
Presentation at the Margaret Senior Center in coordination with staff and volunteers of the
Todd Senior Center Margaret Todd Senior Center. Information was presented in English

with support for Spanish speaking attendees available.

Page 5 of 5

Item 5d



711 Grand Ave, #110
San Rafael, CA 94901
ph: 415.226.0855
marintransit.org

Board of Directors

Brian Colbert
President
Town of San Anselmo

Eric Lucan
Vice President
Supervisor District 5

Mary Sackett
Second Vice President

Supervisor District 1

Katie Rice
Director

Supervisor District 2

Stephanie
Moulton-Peters
Director

Supervisor District 3

Dennis Rodoni
Director
Supervisor District 4

Maribeth Bushey
Director
City of San Rafael

Fred Casissa
Alternate
Town of Corte Madera

December 2,2024

Honorable Board of Directors
Marin County Transit District
3501 Civic Center Drive

San Rafael, CA 94903

Consideration of Compensation Increase for General
Manager

Subject:

Dear Board Members:

Recommendation

Approve compensation increases for FY 2023/24 and FY 2024/25 for the General
Manager.

Summary

Nancy Whelan has served as the General Manager of Marin Transit since June
16, 2014. The General Manager’s performance was last evaluated in October
2022. As a follow-up to her performance evaluation by the Marin Transit Board
on November 12,2024, 1am recommending that the Board of Directors approve
the following changes to Nancy Whelan’s compensation:

e Increase the General Manager’s salary for FY 2023/24 (July 1, 2023 -
June 30, 2024) to $268,322, a 5.5% annual increase to her current pay,
retroactive to July 1, 2023

e Further increase the General Manager’s salary for FY 2024/25 to
$280,392, a 4.5% annual increase, retroactive to July 1, 2024.

This recommendation is based on her performance over the past two years and
the recommended salary is consistent with a recent independent
compensation analysis of comparable positions in the Bay Area.

Fiscal/Staffing Impact

There are sufficient funds available in the Salaries and Benefits account in the
approved FY 2024/25 Marin Transit budget to accommodate these
compensation increases.

Respectfully Submitted,

&

Brian Colbert
President



711 Grand Ave, #110
San Rafael, CA 94901
ph: 415.226.0855
marintransit.org

Board of Directors

Brian Colbert
President
Town of San Anselmo

Eric Lucan
Vice President
Supervisor District 5

Mary Sackett
Second Vice President

Supervisor District 1

Katie Rice
Director

Supervisor District 2

Stephanie
Moulton-Peters
Director

Supervisor District 3

Dennis Rodoni
Director
Supervisor District 4

Maribeth Bushey
Director
City of San Rafael

Fred Casissa
Alternate
Town of Corte Madera

December 2,2024

Honorable Board of Directors
Marin County Transit District
3501 Civic Center Drive

San Rafael, CA 94903

Subject: Annual School Transportation Services Report

Dear Board Members:

Recommendation

Accept report.

Summary

Students across Marin County depend on public transportation or yellow bus
programs for transportation to and from school and extracurricular activities.
While the State of California does not require transportation services for general
education students, Marin Transit and many of the school districts within the
County recognize the importance of these services and allocate financial
resources to provide them. This report summarizes student transportation
trends within the County, details the various transportation services available
to students, and highlights usage of these services in the 2024/25 academic
year.

Background

Youth riders have always been a core market for Marin Transit services. Efforts
are focused on making sure that routes adjacent to school sites are timed to bell
schedules and have adequate capacity to support ridership trends. In some
instances, additional services are added on school days only (Supplemental
Services) to meet the needs of schools that are not well served by existing fixed
route services.

Yellow school bus services are also provided in certain districts for students.
Countywide, over twice as many students use these services over public transit.
These services are typically provided by the school district or in some cases
Marin Transit or a Joint Powers Authority that represents multiple government
agencies. Students in grades K-8 represent the majority of yellow bus riders.

In 2014, Marin Transit, in collaboration with Transportation Authority of Marin
and the Marin County Office of Education, embarked on an initiative to address
traffic congestion issues, explore safe and healthy alternative student
transportation options, and enhance the organization of resources dedicated
to student transportation in the County.

Item 5f



While the initial study was completed in 2015, subsequent meetings continued until 2018 to facilitate
planning for student transportation services. Most recently, the Transportation Authority of Marin has
called for an update of the Coordinated Countywide School Transportation Study as a recommended
action in the Countywide Transportation Plan. More information on these historic efforts can be found
online at: https://marintransit.org/projects/countywide-school-transportation-study.

This 2015 study provided an initial framework for Marin Transit and others in the County on the
appropriate type of bus solution based on several factors including the school’s location, grade, and
student enrollment boundaries. The District has been using this document to guide recent decisions in
service delivery related to home to school services.

Supplemental Service Overview

Supplemental Service refers to additional public transit service offered by Marin Transit on school days
only to accommodate student demand beyond the regular fixed route network. These routes typically
serve school locations that are not already well served by transit.

Delivering Supplemental Service is challenging due to the need for a concentrated increase in service
for a very limited time each morning and afternoon on school days only. Since demand outside these
hours is often very low or non-existent, drivers and vehicles needed to support this program often sit
idle for much of the day and during the summer and holiday breaks when school is not in session.

Many of the District’s contractors have either declined to provide this Supplemental Service (Golden
Gate Transitin 2014) or faced driver shortage issues that resulted in service cancellations and unreliable
service (MV Transportation in 2022). To complicate the situation, the passage of Senate Bill 328 forced
bell schedules for high schools to shift later in the morning (no earlier than 8:30am), resulting in most
schools all starting and ending at the same time. These factors have forced the District to shift dedicated
Supplemental Service resources to regular transit services, increasing service frequency to meet the
needs of students and general riders together. This shift has resulted in decreasing the Supplemental
program in favor of a more robust public transit network.

Beginning in August 2022 and culminating in June 2023, Marin Transit began a process of consolidating
Supplemental School routes into regular fixed route public transit services. This adjustment allowed
for anincrease in route efficiency on regular fixed route services so that operational resources could be
allocated appropriately- where demand was higher. As a result, the Supplemental School routes were
reduced from nine routes to four routes in 2023/24, with the remaining Supplemental routes focused
on service to schools with student origins or school sites outside the core fixed route network.
Attachment A shows a comprehensive listing of all schools that have some level of busing service
provided. This information is also available on our website at: https://marintransit.org/schools.

In addition to the operational challenges mentioned previously, additional obstacles to expanding
these services include a lack of parking and maintenance facilities, fleet limitations, and uncoordinated
bell schedules that create inefficient use of the buses.

FY2024/25 Fixed Route Changes to Support Students

In June of 2023, the District made significant changes to the local bus network including the elimination
of Supplemental Routes 645 and 651 and service expansion of the Local Routes 35,49 and 57 to support
school demandsin Terra Linda and Novato. In the past year, several additional adjustments were made
to improve the efficiency and accessibility of Marin Transit services for students. Route 49 was modified
to better coordinate with the Novato High bell schedule. Additional trips were introduced on Route 57

Page 2 of 5

Item 5f


https://marintransit.org/projects/countywide-school-transportation-study
https://marintransit.org/schools

to accommodate the transportation needs of students attending San Jose Middle School living in
Hamiton and southern Novato, and the route was re-timed to better align with the Miller Creek Middle
School bell schedule to support the loss of yellow bus service to the school over the past few years.

Additionally, schedule adjustments were made for Routes 23, 228, and 625 to better align with White
Hill School’s dismissal. This change was made to support afternoon busing demands that were unable
to be fulfilled with the yellow bus service offered in Ross Valley.

FY2024/25 Youth Transit Pass Program

Marin Transit offers an annual Youth Transit Pass at $325 to students registered at participating Marin
County schools. The pass allows students to ride local bus routes without paying any additional fare.
Students of income-qualified families can receive the pass for free by completing an eligibility
application and submitting it to an assigned school coordinator for verification. Designed for students
navigating the local transit system for travel to/from school, work, or other activities, the Youth Transit
Pass is geared towards high school attendees, with some elementary and middle school participants.

In 2024/25 so far, 2,365 permanent annual passes were requested from 29 participating schools; 91% of
distributed passes in the 2024/25 school year so far were distributed free to low income-qualified
students. Table 1 provides a list of participating schools and passes distributed by district.

Table 1: FY2024/25 Youth Pass Distribution Statistics by District as of October 31, 2024

District #Schools  # Passes % Free
Kentfield* 1 2 100%
Larkspur-Corte Madera! 1 14 57%
Mill Valley* 1 5 60%
Novato Unified 8 250 89%
Ross Valley! 1 26 7%
San Rafael 5 1,015 92%
Tamalpais Union? 5 150 88%
Private/Independent 1 2 100%
Total 23 1,464 91%

1. Elementary and middle school only district
2. High school only district

Marin Transit is actively preparing for the integration of the Next Generation Clipper system, which
presents an exciting opportunity to transition the Youth Pass and College of Marin (COM) Card onto the
Clipper system for the 2025/26 school year. This transition is being coordinated in partnership with the
Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) to ensure a seamless implementation.

As part of this effort, the Youth Pass application process will be updated to align with the Youth Clipper
application, creating a unified and streamlined experience for students and families. Despite this shift
to Clipper, both the Youth Pass and the COM Card will continue to maintain Marin Transit’s existing fare
structure, ensuring consistency and affordability for users during and after the transition.

Page 3 of 5

Item 5f



marin
transit

FY2024/25 Measure AA Yellow School Bus Programs

Measure AA is an extension of the existing Marin County half cent sales tax for transportation and was
approved by voters on November 6,2018. Under the renewed measure, Marin Transit receives five
percent of the Measure AA funds for school-related transportation programs and services. In June
2022, your board approved the funding allocation for the second three-year term of the Measure AA
tax expenditure plan for yellow school bus funding. Staff determined approximately $750,000
annually was available as a reimbursement to five regular yellow school bus programs located within
the urbanized areas of the County. Table 2 provides a summary of each program’s size and scope
budgeted during the 2023/24 school year.

Table 2: FY2023/24 Measure AA Yellow School Bus Funding Recipients

Program # One-Way Passes Budgeted # Buses # Schools Served
Miller Creek School District 216 13 4
Ross Valley Area Schools 635 5 3
San Rafael Elementary City School District 1,510 15 7
Sausalito-Marin City School District 80 1 2
Tiburon JPA (Reed Schools and The Cove) 885 5 4

For FY2024, $787,000 was distributed based on the approved distribution formula that factored the
cost of a one-way pass and the number of passes distributed. Last year, staff determined that an
additional $332,000 of unspent funds was available from the first three-year term due to lower
expenditures during the pandemic. In May of 2023, your board approved the distribution formula for
the additional funds making them available for the final two fiscal years of the current Measure AA
three-year funding cycle (i.e., FY2024 & FY2025). Table 3 shows the funding amounts for each Measure
AAyellow school bus funding recipient in FY2024/25.

Table 3: FY2024/25 Measure AA Funding Allocation

FY2024/25 Reed Union & Ross San Miller Sausalito/

Allocations Cove Valley Rafael Creek Marin City

Base Allocation $219,333 $239,521 $270,326 $29,674 $28,134 $786,988
Carryforward $90,500 $100,787  $111,540 $18,252 $11,608 $332,687
Total $309,833 $340,348 $381,866  $47,926 $39,742 $1,119,715

Ross Valley Area Yellow Bus Program

Yellow Bus Service in the Ross Valley is directly contracted and managed by Marin Transit, with
oversight from a Joint Exercise of Power Agreement (JEPA) that includes the Towns of San Anselmo and
Fairfax, the County of Marin, and the Ross Valley School District. The service is provided by a private
contractor, Bauer’s Intelligent Transportation, who successfully won a competitive bid for the service
prior to the start of the 2023/24 school year.

This year, one-way passes were sold at $675 each way, an increase from $635 the previous year. A
parent must purchase a morning and afternoon pass to provide a “round trip” ride for their student.

Page 4 of 5

Item 5f



The total cost of the combined passes to and from school is $1,350. To ensure cost is not a barrier to
acquiring a pass, income qualified families can purchase a pass at the reduced rate of $75 each way.

Routes were restricted for the 2024/25 school year to focus afternoon buses on areas of Ross Valley
not well served by public transit. This restructuring allowed the District to control demand for bus
passes and remove the “lottery” process used in recent years to manage pass sales. This process
resulted in a significant reduction in administrative time invested in the program.

A total of 608 one-way passes have been distributed to 366 students which is a 5% decrease over last
year. The number of income-qualified passes sold is 17%, compared to last year which was 35%. At
White Hill, there was a reduction of 30 passes sold, while Hidden Valley saw one fewer pass purchased.
Chart 1 displays the 2024/25 pass sales.

Breaking down the data further, White Hill accounted for a majority of bus pass sales, with a total of
512 passes in 2024/2025 compared to 541 in 2023/2024. Morning (AM) passes at White Hill decreased
from 290 to 270, and afternoon (PM) passes declined from 251 to 242. At Hidden Valley, sales remained
relatively stable, with 94 total passes sold in 2023/2024 and 93 in 2024/2025. Morning passes at Hidden
Valley decreased slightly from 59 to 58, while afternoon passes remained consistent at 35 for both
years.

Chart 1: Ross Valley Yellow Bus Pass Sales - Annual Comparison

600 512 541
500

400 242 251
300

jgz 03 %

. % N
Hidden Valley White Hill Hidden Valley White Hill
24/25 =AM PV 23/24

Respectfully submitted,

s

Sandra Romero
Specialized Transportation Services Analyst

Attachment A: Busing Service, By School

Page 5 of 5

Item 5f



Attachment A

Busing Service, By School

School |City Bus Services
Larkspur-Corte Madera School District

Cove School Corte Madera 29| Yellow Bus
Hall Middle School Larkspur 29|613
Neil Cummins Elementary School Corte Madera 221|613
Mill Valley School District

Mill Valley Middle School Mill Valley 17|61
Strawberry Elementary School Mill Valley 219
Miller Creek School District

Mary E. Silveira Elementary School Marinwood Yellow Bus
Vallecito Elementary School Terra Linda 35|57 245
Miller Creek Middle School Marinwood 57245 | Yellow Bus
Novato Unified School District

Novato High School Novato 49|57
San Jose Middle School Novato 57

San Marin High School Novato 49| 654
Sinaloa Middle School Novato 654
Reed Union School District

Bel Aire Elementary School Tiburon Yellow Bus
Del Mar Middle School Tiburon 219|619 | Yellow Bus
Reed Elementary School Tiburon Yellow Bus

Item 5f


file://thomas/routes/29
file://thomas/routes/219
https://www.millercreeksd.org/departments/transportation/index
https://www.millercreeksd.org/departments/transportation/index

Attachment A

School |City Bus Services
Ross Valley School District
Hidden Valley School San Anselmo Yellow Bus

White Hill School Fairfax 2368228625 Yellow Bus
San Rafael City Schools

San Rafael High School San Rafael 23|35|36]57

Terra Linda High School Terra Linda 35|57]245
Davidson Middle School San Rafael 3|35] 36| Yellow Bus

Venetia Valley K-8

Santa Venetia

233 Yellow Bus

Bahia Vista Elementary School San Rafael 23|35] 36| Yellow Bus
Coleman Elementary School San Rafael Yellow Bus
Glenwood Elementary School San Rafael Yellow Bus
Laurel Dell Elementary School San Rafael Yellow Bus
San Pedro Elementary School San Rafael Yellow Bus
Sun Valley Elementary School San Rafael Yellow Bus
Sausalito-Marin City School District

MLK - Nevada St Campus Sausalito 17|61 Yellow Bus
MLK - Philips Campus Marin City 17|61 | Yellow Bus
Tamalpais Union High School District

Redwood High School Larkspur 29|613|619
San Andreas School Larkspur 29|613|619

Archie Williams High School

San Anselmo

Tamalpais High School

Mill Valley

Item 5f


https://srcs.org/9349_3
https://srcs.org/9349_3
https://srcs.org/9349_3
https://srcs.org/9349_3
https://srcs.org/9349_3
https://srcs.org/9349_3
https://srcs.org/9349_3
https://srcs.org/9349_3
file://thomas/routes/17-17x
file://thomas/routes/61-61m
https://www.smcsd.org/
https://www.smcsd.org/

711 Grand Ave, #110
San Rafael, CA 94901
ph: 415.226.0855
marintransit.org

Board of Directors

Brian Colbert
President
Town of San Anselmo

Eric Lucan
Vice President
Supervisor District 5

Mary Sackett
Second Vice President

Supervisor District 1

Katie Rice
Director

Supervisor District 2

Stephanie
Moulton-Peters
Director

Supervisor District 3

Dennis Rodoni
Director
Supervisor District 4

Maribeth Bushey
Director
City of San Rafael

Fred Casissa
Alternate
Town of Corte Madera

December 2,2024

Honorable Board of Directors
Marin County Transit District
3501 Civic Center Drive

San Rafael, CA 94903

Subject: Marin Transit Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for

Fiscal Year 2023/24

Dear Board Members:

Recommendation

Accept report.

Summary

Maze & Associates Accounting Corporation has completed the annual financial
audit of the Marin County Transit District for the fiscal year that ended June 30,
2024. The audit includes a detailed single audit as required when the
expenditure of federal funds in a fiscal year exceeds $750,000. Staff have
incorporated the annual financial audit into the attached Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR). The auditor presented the ACFR to the
Ad Hoc Audit Subcommittee of your Board for review on November 12, 2024.
With your acceptance of this report, the District will be up-to-date with all
independent audits and will submit the required federal audit before the
required deadline of March 30, 2025. This report will be made available on the
District’s website.

Background

This is the nineth year the District has published an Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report. The report is designed to ensure that users of the financial
statements have the information and context needed to assess the financial
health of the District. The audit was conducted in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards
applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

The ACFR has four main components:

" Introductory Section
" Financial Section

. Statistical Section

. Single Audit Section

Iltem 6



The Introductory Section discusses the District’s governing structure, staff structure, and service area
map.

The Financial Section contains the District’s audited financial statements.

The Statistical Section compiles data from the District’s prior financial statements and Short Range
Transit Plans, along with countywide statistics from the County of Marin and other sources. This section
is designed to provide information about trends and the local economy that will provide context for the
reader to assess the District’s financial condition.

The Single Audit Section contains the results of the federal single audit.

Discussion

The audit team found no deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting or in compliance that
they considered to be material weaknesses. Similarly, the audit team found no material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies in internal control over major federal award programs.

Fiscal/Staffing Impact
None associated with this report.

Respectfully Submitted,

Karina Sawin
Accounting Manager

Attachment A: Marin County Transit District FY 2023/24 Annual Comprehensive Financial Report

Attachment B: Letter to the Board from Maze & Associates Accounting Corporation

Page 2 of 2

Iltem 6



Attachment A

o Marin
transit

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

San Rafael, California
A Component Unit of the County of Marin, California

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE

FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

(A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE COUNTY OF MARIN, CALIFORNIA)

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

PREPARED BY THE FINANCE DEPARTMENT

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A
MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Table of Contents
Page
INTRODUCTORY SECTION:
TaADIE OF COMENES ....cuveuitinietiieiietetei ettt ettt ettt ettt b et e b et be e be st et b e i
Letter Of TIANSIMITEAL ......c.eoveiiiiieeieeee ettt ettt et s et e s s e s se e s e senes v
Principal OffICIALS ....c.eoviieieiieiiceee ettt ettt et e e st et e eebesteenbeesaesbeesseneean xiil
OrganizatioNal CRATL..........c.ccverierierierierieieses ettt ste e testesseesesteeseeseesessaessessassessessessessessensenes Xiv
SEIVICE ATCA IMAP ....eviiieiiieiieieeieeteete ettt et et e e aeeteesbeete e teessesseesseesseseesseassassaessasseassesssesseessesssensenses XV
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting ...........cccceeveevevieeircenvenceeseeeeennene. XVi
FINANCIAL SECTION:
Independent AUditor's REPOTt ..................cccooceoiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiesteiesie ettt sttt st et sttt
Management’s DiscussSion Gnd ARGIYSIS ...................ccoeeeeoueieeeeeiieceeiesie ettt ste s ssesae e ensessnenes 5
Basic Financial Statements
Statement Of INEt POSILION ......cc.eeiruieiriieieieee ettt ettt et sbesaesbesbessesnens 13
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net POSItion ..........cccecvevvevievienienenenesesesesesenens 14
Statement Of Cash FIOWS ......ccouiiiiiieieee ettt 15
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position — Retirement Plan..............ccccooeiiiiiiiiinininiieeeeeeeee 16
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position — Retirement Plan ............cccocoveeniiiinenncnncnene, 16
Notes to Basic Financial Statements .............ecueriiiiriiriiierieieeeetee et 17
Required Supplementary Information
Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension (Asset) Liability and Related Ratios..........ccccoevvvrvrerienene 45
Schedule Of CONLIIDULIONS ......coveuiiieieiiieiieieteteee ettt ettt et s et et e e se e esesseneeseneens 46
Supplementary Information
Budgetary Comparisons Schedule - OPerations...........c.cc.evververierieriesieriessessessessessessessessessessessessessessenns 49
Budgetary Comparisons Schedule — Capital Program...........c.ccoceceevieiiiiiiiieiinieneeeeeeee e 50
Budgetary Comparisons Schedule — Reconciliation to Statement of Activities and
Changes i NEt POSILION ....c.coueiiiirieiiiiieiinieeriete ettt ettt ettt 51
i

Iltem 6



Attachment A
MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Table of Contents
Page
STATISTICAL SECTION:
Financial Trends
Schedule of Net Position — Last Ten Fiscal Years .........ccccuveorireireneeee e 56
Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Position — Last Ten Fiscal Years..........cccccecvevvenerennnnne. 57
Revenue Capacity & Demographic and Economic Information
Passenger and Fare Data — Last Ten Fiscal YEars .......cccccecvevieierieiecierieieieieieieieseseesesesessessessens 59
Fare Structure — As of JUNE 30, 2023 ..ottt ettt eae e e en 60
County Sales Tax Revenue — Last Ten Fiscal YEars ........ccccevveieeiriecieieiieieieieieieieieseesesessessesnes 61
Property Tax Revenue — Last Ten FiScal Years.........cccvvieviiecieiieciiiieicieseee st 62
Assessed Valuation of Taxable Property in Marin County — Last Ten Fiscal Years ...........cccccceueucee. 63
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates in Marin County — Last Ten Fiscal Years...................... 64
Outstanding EBT Balances — Last Ten Fiscal Years .........cccoeoreneineininiinenenceneeeneeeeeeenene 65
Other Long Term Liabilities — Last TAree YEarS........ccocueeveieierierieieieieieieiesiessessesessessessessessessesnes 66
Economic and Demographic Statistics — Last Ten Fiscal Years ......cccccoecevievienieniiecieneeieeieieeeeen 67
Principal Employers — Current Year and Ten Years AZ0.......ccecvvveiririereneneneneseseseseseesessesseens 68
Operating Information
District Profile — As of JUNe 30, 2023 .....c.ooooeiieeeeeeeee ettt e ere e s 69
Nonoperating Intergovernmental Revenue by Source — Last Ten Fiscal Years........ccccoceveirecnencnne. 70
Summary of Capital Assets — Last Ten Fiscal Years........ccccooeririiininineeseeseeeeseeese e 71
Summary of Service Provider Contracts — As of June 30, 2024..........cccoovevierierierierierieieseieieeieeens 72
Vehicle Operating Statistics — Last Nine FiScal Years........ccecvevverieviinieniieiesieieeeeie e 73

il

Iltem 6



Attachment A
MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT
For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Table of Contents
Page
COMPLIANCE SECTION:
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, on
Compliance with the Transportation Development Act and Other Matters Based on an Audit
of Financial Statements Performed I Accordance with Government Auditing Standards ................. 77
Single Audit Report
Schedule of Findings and QUEStiONEd COSES.........cceevrieieierieieieieieieieseeessessessessessessessessessessessessenns 81
Section I — Summary of Auditor’s RESUILS.........ccccoviiieiiieieieicce e 81
Section II — Financial Statement FINAINGS..........c.ccccoviiiieiieiieiieieeeece e 82
Section III — Federal Award Findings and Questioned COStS...........cccceiirrerreieereieneeseeeeseenes 82
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWArds ... seesesseeees 83
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal AWards .............cccoooiveiiveiiieiieieeieeseeeeeseeee, 84
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and
on Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements
Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards .................coeevvevvveviescrnecreannnann, 85
Independent Auditor’s Report on Compliance for Each Major Program and on
Internal Control Over Compliance; and Report on the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance.............c.covieuieiiriiniinienieisseeeeessiessseneens 87

il

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

711 Grand Ave, #110
San Rafael, CA 94901
ph: 415.226.0855
marintransit.org

Board of Directors

Brian Colbert
President
Town of San Anselmo

Eric Lucan
Vice President
Supervisor District 5

Mary Sackett
Second Vice President

Supervisor District 1

Katie Rice
Director
Supervisor District 2

Stephanie
Moulton-Peters
Director

Supervisor District 3

Dennis Rodoni
Director
Supervisor District 4

Maribeth Bushey
Director
City of San Rafael

Fred Casissa
Alternate

Town of Corte Madera

December 2,2024

Dear Board Members and Residents of the County of Marin, California:

We are pleased to present the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR)
of the Marin County Transit District (the District) for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2024.

The District’s enabling legislation requires an annual audit of the District’s
financial statements. This report is published to fulfill that requirement for the
fiscal years end June 30, 2024.

The District’s Management team is responsible for establishing and
maintaining internal controls designed to ensure that the assets of the District
are protected from loss, theft, or misuse and to ensure that adequate
accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial
statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States. The internal controls are designed to provide reasonable, but
not absolute, assurance that these objectives are met. The concept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that:

(1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be derived;
and

(2) the valuation of costs and benefits requires estimates and judgments
by management. Management believes internal controls in place are
adequate to ensure the financial data provided herein is materially
accurate.

Maze & Associates Accounting Corporation has issued an unmodified (“clean”)
opinion on the District’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2024. The independent auditor’s report is located at the front of the financial
section of this report. This report has been prepared by the Finance
Department following the guidelines recommended by the Government
Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) and isin
conformance with generally accepted accounting principles for state and local
governmental entities established by the Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB). Generally accepted accounting principles require that
management provide a narrative introduction, overview and analysis to
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement the MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The
District’s MD&A can be found immediately following the report of the
independent auditors. Responsibility for the accuracy, completeness and

v

Iltem 6



Attachment A

fairness of the presented data and the clarity of presentation, including all disclosures, rests with the
management of the District.

The following provides an overview of the District’s history, services, local economy, planning
initiatives, and policies.

PROFILE OF THE GOVERNMENT
History

The Marin County Transit District (“Marin Transit” or the “District”) was formed by a vote of the people
of Marin County (the County) in 1964 and was given the responsibility for providing local transit
service within the County. Marin Transit is a component unit of the County of Marin, California.
Although Marin Transit has responsibility for local transit services, the District owns limited facilities
and does not employ its own drivers. Instead, Marin Transit contracts with other providers, including
Golden Gate Bridge Highway and Transportation District (Golden Gate Transit), Marin Airporter,
Bauer’s Intelligent Transportation, and Transdev Services, Inc, for fixed route, supplemental and
paratransit services.

Prior to a major fixed route service restructuring by Golden Gate Transit in November 2003, the
primary responsibility of Marin Transit was to manage and administer the paratransit contract for
both local and regional paratransit services in the County. Historically, Marin Transit was a “pass
through” agency for fixed route services, providing funds for local services managed by Golden Gate
Transit. With the 2003 service restructuring, Marin Transit took on increased responsibility for the
planning, scheduling, outreach, oversight, and management of local fixed route transit services
throughout the County.

The passing of Measure A, the County’s Y2 cent sales tax increase, in 2004 further propelled the
responsibility of Marin Transit under a 20-year expenditure plan providing a dedicated local funding
source for public transit within the County. This new funding source allowed the District to fund its
local big bus fixed route services, expand the rural Stagecoach service, and introduce the community
shuttle program. In November 2018, Measure A was reauthorized as Measure AA for a 30-year
extension.

The Muir Woods Shuttle program was inaugurated in 2005 and became the responsibility of Marin
Transit in 2009. Although the County started the program as a demonstration project, its success in
reducing transportation impacts on the National Monument and surrounding areas has led to a formal
partnership between the District and the National Park Service.

Internal growth within the District has also occurred as responsibility for local service has increased.
Staffing levels prior to the passage of Measure A included one full-time and one part-time employee.
With the passage of Measure A, the number of full-time employees grew from 1.5 to 3.5 in 2006 and
then to 5 employees in 2008. As of June 30, 2024, the District has 17.3 authorized full time equivalent
employees.

vi

Iltem 6



Attachment A

The COVID-19 pandemic, starting in March 2020, disrupted transit service operations and reduced
ridership demand on both fixed route and demand response services. As the County and our District
recover from the pandemic, Marin Transit’s fixed route ridership has returned faster than the District’s
ADA paratransit ridership and faster than other Bay Area regional transit operators that have more
commute dependent ridership.

SERVICES
FIXED ROUTE

Marin Transit operates public transit service on 19 routes within Marin County. Over 2.8 million trips
were made on the local fixed route network in fiscal year 2024. This is roughly equivalent to the fixed
route ridership levels seen prior to the COVID-19 pandemic, but an increase from the 2.6 million trips
made in the prior fiscal year.

Fixed route services are organized within the District based on route typologies. Typologies define the
primary function of that route and its intended market. There are currently four fixed route typologies:
Local, Community, Supplemental, and Rural. Below is a summary of each typology.

Local

Description: Services that operate along the major corridors and serve the larger destinations within
the County. These services provide the core of the transit system and connect with the other
typologies, as well as regional services, at key transfer locations. Along Highway 101, Local service
complements the Golden Gate Transit regional services that continue to San Francisco and Sonoma
Counties.

. Operational Focus: Capacity, frequency, and speed.

. Routes: 17, 22, 23, 35, 36,49, 71

. Typical Vehicle: 30°, 35’ or 40’ heavy duty
Community

Description: Services to lower density areas with less supportive transit land use patterns or areas
where larger bus capacity is not warranted. These services rely on good transfer opportunities to
Local services for travel outside the community.

. Operational Focus: Accessibility.

. Routes: 29, 57,219, 228,233, 245

. Typical Vehicle: 24’ cutaways or 30’ heavy duty
Supplemental

Description: Services that are provided to address the transportation needs of schools, primarily
middle and high schools, within the County. These services provide additional capacity on Marin
Transit routes for this purpose and are not designed for transfer opportunities.

. Operational Focus: Capacity.
vii

Iltem 6



Attachment A

marin
transit
. Routes: 613, 619, 625, 654
. Typical Vehicle: 35’ or 40’ heavy duty

Rural

Description: Services to the rural areas of West Marin that provide community mobility and reduce
congestion in the rural areas. Topography is challenging on these routes and requires specific
attributes for the fleet used to deliver these services.

. Operational Focus: Accessibility.
. Routes: 61, 68
. Typical Vehicle: 24’ cutaways or 30’ or 35’ heavy duty

OTHER SERVICES

In addition to fixed route bus service, Marin Transit operate several other transportation services
throughout the County.

Muir Woods Shuttle

In close consultation with the National Parks Service, Marin Transit operates the Muir Woods Shuttle,
which provides service between the Larkspur Ferry Terminal and the Muir Woods National Monument
on most weekends and provides service to the woods from the Sausalito Ferry Terminal on weekdays
during the summer.

Yellow Bus

Marin Transit provides yellow school bus service to two schools in the Ross Valley School District:
White Hill Middle School and Hidden Valley Elementary School. This yellow bus school service was
suspended in March 2020 due to the COVID-19 pandemic and re-started in fiscal year 2022. Marin
Transit handles all logistics of the program including contract management, website development,
pass sales and production and customer service. Marin Transit staff provide planning and
management support to a Joint Powers Authority for Reed Union School District and administers a
yellow bus grant program with Measure AA funds.

Demand Response

In addition to fixed-route services, the District provides a suite of programs named “Marin Access” to
serve the aging and disabled population in Marin County. A variety of programs provide mobility
options to these users and all services are coordinated by a team of Travel Navigators. These
programs include local paratransit, volunteer driver, and subsidized taxi (Catch-A-Ride). Travel
Navigators provide trip planning and technical assistance to riders to empower the user to select from
available travel options to best meet their mobility need.

viii

Iltem 6



Attachment A

LOCAL ECONOMY

The District operates within Marin County, one of the nine counties in the San Francisco-Oakland Bay
Area. The County includes 11 incorporated cities and towns: Belvedere, Corte Madera, Fairfax,
Larkspur, Mill Valley, Novato, Ross, San Anselmo, San Rafael, Sausalito, and Tiburon.

The local economy entered a period of uncertainty with the onset of the COVID-19 pandemic and has
shown a return to the strong economy that existed before the pandemic. The County’s unemployment
increased during the pandemic from a low of 2.4% to a high of 6.1% in fiscal year 2021 and dropped
again to 3.0% in fiscal year 2022. In the fiscal year ended 2024, the County’s unemployment rate was
4.2%. The Contractors for the District continue to have increasing difficulties hiring and retaining
drivers and other front-line staff. These challenges have continued to increase following the
pandemic causing missed service, difficulties in adding service and increasing costs for our
contractors.

A significant portion of the District’s operating funds are derived from sales tax revenues. The COVID-
19 pandemic did not negatively impact Marin County’s total sales tax receipts but has impacted the
timing. In fiscal year 2020, many businesses chose to defer sales tax payments. Fiscal year 2020 sales
tax decreased 5.6% and fiscal year 2021 and 2022 sales tax increased 12.8% and 12.7% respectively.
More recent sales tax numbers indicate slowing and decline in growth. Fiscal year ended 2024 sales
tax decreased by 1.3% after limited growth in fiscal year 2023. This equates to a 3.6% increase per year
in sales tax over a five-year period, which is slightly better than the standard 2.2% per year growth
projections used by the Transportation Authority of Marin.

LONG TERM PLANNING AND MAJOR INITIATIVES
Short Range Transit Plan

The District’s Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) is the primary service and financial planning document
for the District and includes ten years of financial projections for operations and capital programs.
The 2020-2029 SRTP was adopted by the Board of Directors (the Board) on February 3,2020. The
District completed a partial update on December 5, 2022 and will do a full update in 2025.

Operating Plan

In Fiscal Year ended 2024, there was a 9% increase in fixed route ridership compared to fiscal year
ended 2023. The increase in fixed route ridership brought Marin Transit up to 100% of pre-COVID
levels. After a moderate recovery in fiscal year 2022, demand for Marin Access and ADA paratransit
services dropped slightly in fiscal year 2023. In response, Marin Transit implemented changes to the
Marin Access programs to stabilize mandated ADA paratransit service, reduce service duplication, and
concentrate resources on the populations most in need. After one full year of these changes, Marin
Access ridership increased by 1% in fiscal year ended 2024 compared to the prior year. Marin Transit is
budgeting for a similar level of fixed route service in fiscal year 2025 and planning for a continued
recovery of paratransit transit demand.

X

Iltem 6



Attachment A

Marin Transit does not directly operate any of its services and instead provides them through
contracts with multiple service providers. The District began a new service contract for paratransit
service and other Marin Access programs on February 1, 2022. Marin Transit started a new contract
with Golden Gate Bridge Highway and Transportation District (GGBHTD) effective October 1, 2022,
competitively bid new contracts for yellow school bus service and the Muir Woods Shuttles, and
negotiated a two year contract extension with Marin Airporter effective July 1, 2023.

Marin Transit continues to be in a strong financial position. Recent years of strong economic growth
enabled the District to make decisions to fully fund the District’s emergency and contingency reserves,
and the 2018 passage of the Measure AA transportation sales tax extension continues to provide
baseline funding for the District. The District’s long term financial stability is less certain and there are
increasing challenges due to the tight labor market and lack of ownership of sufficient fixed route
parking and maintenance facilities.

Capital Plan

The District’s Capital Improvement and Funding Plan includes all expenses related to purchasing and
maintaining the transit system’s capital assets. The District’s primary capital responsibilities and
priorities are to:

1. Maintain a sufficient fleet of clean fueled vehicles for local transit service,

2. Improve and maintain the amenities and accessibility of Marin County bus stops,
3. Improve major bus transfer locations,

4. Provide passenger information, and

5. Provide needed operations equipment and infrastructure.

The District’s baseline capital resources limit the Capital Plan to primarily maintaining a state of good
repair for existing assets and making the minimal level of investment required to maintain and
operate the local bus system. Replacing and maintaining vehicles are almost 80% of these expenses.

Discretionary grant funding and capital reserve funds are needed to fund facility projects to ensure
stable operations and allow for future expansion. The District purchased a bus parking facility in fiscal
year 2019/2020, a paratransit maintenance facility in FY2020/21, and a future parking facility adjacent
to the paratransit maintenance facility in FY2022/23. The District needs to find a permanent location
for electric bus maintenance and parking. The District received a federal grant of $31.5 million
towards the purchase of an electric fixed route bus charging and maintenance facility. In fiscal year
ended 2024, the District added $3.9 million to the capital reserve and has a total capital reserve
balance of $20 million.

Iltem 6



Attachment A

RELEVANT FINANCIAL POLICIES
Budget Process

Marin Transit’s budget uses full accrual basis of accounting to record annual revenue and expenses
consistent with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP) for special districts and the District’s
annual audited financial reports. All known revenues and expenditures are recorded in the period
they are earned or expended.

The Marin Transit Board adopts an annual budget for the District’s fiscal year starting July 1 and
ending June 30. Under the direction of the Director of Finance, staff develops a balanced budget for
the Board that provides sufficient and sustainable funding for local transit service needs using the
following guidelines:

Maintain adopted reserve levels;

Preserve a balance of revenues and expenditures over a ten-year horizon;

W

Provide for SRTP-adopted service levels; and
4. Allow for innovative growth.

Reserve Policy

Marin Transit’s Board-adopted policy designates an Emergency Reserve equivalent to two months of
operating expenses and a Contingency Reserve equivalent to an additional two to four months. When
the emergency reserve is fully funded and the contingency reserve is funded with the equivalent of at
least two months of operations funds, the District may fund a capital reserve through the budgeting
process. The reserve is designed to reduce the District’s future needs for borrowing or bonding for
large capital projects.

If the reserve balance exceeds six months of operating expenditures for a prolonged period, the policy
advises the Board to consider options such as, but not limited to, expanding transit service or
decreasing fares in an effort to provide the optimal level of transit service and benefits to Marin
County residents.

The District added $5.2 million to reserves in fiscal year 2024. Consistent with the fiscal year 2024
budget, the District added $1.2 million to the operations reserves (Emergency and Contingency) to
maintain the equivalent of six months operating expenses and the Capital Reserve increased by $3.9
million.

AWARDS AND ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

The Government Finance Officers Association of the United States and Canada (GFOA) awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the District for its Annual
Comprehensive Financial Reports (ACFR) for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. The Certificate of
Achievement is a prestigious national award, recognizing conformance with the highest standards for
preparation of state or local government financial reports. To be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized ACFR. The
report must satisfy both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

X1

Iltem 6



Attachment A

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of only one year. We believe that our current ACFR
continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements, and we are submitting it to
the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

The preparation of this report required the dedicated efforts of the District’s staff. We also gratefully
recognize Maze & Associates Accounting Corporation for their timely audit and expertise on the
preparation of this ACFR. Finally, we would like to thank the Board for its commitment and support in
the development of a strong financial system.

Respectfully Submitted,

e S -1V S

Nancy Whelan Lauren Gradia

General Manager Director of Finance and Capital Programs

Xii

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
PRINCIPAL OFFICIALS

Mary Sackett District 1

Katie Rice District 2
Stephanie Moulton-Peters District 3
Dennis Rodoni District 4

Eric Lucan District 5

Maribeth Bushey City of San Rafael
Brian Colbert Town of San Anselmo

Fred Cassisa (alt) Town of Corte Madera

g
&

Board Member District or City Current Term Ends
Mary Sackett Marin County, District 1 January 1, 2026
Katie Rice Marin County, District 2 January 1, 2025
Stephanie Moulton-Peters Marin County, District 3 January 1, 2025
Dennis Rodoni Marin County, District 4 January 1, 2025
Eric Lucan Marin County, District 5 January 1, 2025
Maribeth Bushey City of San Rafael January 1, 2025
Fred Casissa Town of Corte Madera January 1, 2025
Brian Colbert Town of San Anselmo January 1, 2026
xiil

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
ORGANIZATIONAL CHART

board of directors ‘

general manager
1 fte

|
| | |

di . director of operations director of director of finance &
lrector1of pranning & service development administrative services capital programs
2 1 fte 1 fte 1 fte
dmin & h fi ts | ital |
planning staff operations staff admin & human nance & grants capital programs
3 fte Afte resources staff staff staff
2 fte 3 fte 3 fte
seasonal staff
0.2 fte
Note:
- Total authorized FTE 20.2
- Vacancies at 6/30/24 equal 3 FTE
Xiv

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
INTRODUCTORY SECTION
SERVICE AREA MAP

| To/From
Sonoma County

SoniMorinH.S. m 520 Marin £

iwoo!

NOVATO

=
3
&

Novato
Downtown

NovatoSan

d Downtown Novato

Redwood Blvd & Grant Ave

Delong ta B =
| 71 | }Delnngl\ve Bus Pad
71} Blvd BusPad

Vintoge Ooks
Shapping Center

Sondose M.. S_
Indion Volley

L] =
Compus  Ignadio

Ignacio Blvd/
Enfrente Rd Bus Pad

vato

\ @ Hamton

Main Gate

HamiltonTheatre
Parking Lot

wood Bus Pad

MARINWOOD

Las Gallinas

Heolthand
Human Services

Smith Ranch ¢

Freitas

TerraLinda
Bus Pad

TojFrom
Inverness

%% Las Gallinas
-
Northgate

Shopping
Center

San Anselmo Hub
Center Bl &Bridge Ave

Maorin Cotholic H.S.

Marin Health
Medicol Center

LARKSPUR

%

To/From
Bolinas/StinsonBeach

® pantoll

H
g

Almonte // Cami

Tomalpois HS. B

Shoreline

Marin City Hub

Donahue St & Terners Dr

(1722 36 61 [ 7a[C)]

marin
transit

W
il Val]ey =
Depot o
2

ino Altc

-Marin County
Civic Center

Dominican
Unfversity

Prado Bus Pad

Marin Transit i IEE3 EE) EEN ES0
m

Local Routes

Marin Transit ~[XE) 2] FEEIZE)

Community
Shuttles

West Marin [ 6168 |

Stagecoach

Legend
Leyenda

o

Transit Centers and Hubs
Centros de Trénsito

Hwy 101 Bus Pads
Huy 101 “Bus Pads”
Colored dotsndicateroutes serving e bus

65157 1S i D

Park and Ride Lots (Free)

Aporcamiento poro Tomor el Autobds (Grotis)

Points of Interest
Puntos de interés

Connecting Transit Systems
Conexion de Sistemas de Transito

Golden Gate Transit Regional Bus Service
Servicio Regional de Autobuses de

Golden Gote Transit

See pages 5 and 38 for more nformation

SMART Train Route and Stations
SMART Tren Ruto y fos Estaciones
=

Ferry Route and Terminal
Linet de Borco y los Terminales
See pag

San Rafael Transit Center

Designated transfer location

[ 17) 22 §25) 29 ey
mmmuu;fanaa@

'W50n Rofoe) 5.

Lucky Dr Bus Pad

The Villoge == Larksaur Feiry
ot Corte

B (iodera
—

u Torget/Home

@Lmspw \ -

Seedeta 0o

Depot

(P)

t paradise

XV

Tiburon Wye Bus

ot
B

Pohono/Manzanita
Park & e

B

sausalito Ferry
(Bay St & Bridgeway)

Pad

e B ©

Strawberry Village
Reed Blyd & Belvedere Dr

ELV

To/From
San Francisco

URON \

TojFrom Richmond/El Cerrito

Tiburon

Angel
islard
Fery




Attachment A

P

Government Finance Officers Association

Certificate of
Achievement
for Excellence
in Financial
Reporting

Presented to

Marin County Transit District
California

For its Annual Comprehensive
Financial Report
For the Fiscal Year Ended

June 30, 2023

Chleilogp fo P HMorniel

Executive Director/CEO

Xvi

Iltem 6



Attachment A

FINANCIAL SECTION

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

M\MAZE

& ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
Marin County Transit District
San Rafael, California

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the business-type activities and fiduciary fund
of the Marin County Transit District (District), a component unit of the County of Marin, California, as of
and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the Table of Contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the business-type activities and fiduciary fund of the District as of June 30, 2024, and
the respective changes in financial position and cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued
by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with
the relevant ethical requirement relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of the financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a
going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known
information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Accountancy Corporation T 925.228.2800
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 217 E Maze@mazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 1 w mazeassociates.com

Iltem 6



Attachment A

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in
the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial
statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the District’s internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

e Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the District’s ability to continue as a going concern for a
reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters
that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis and other required supplementary information as listed in the Table of Contents be
presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management
and, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical context. We have applied certain limited
procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to
our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the
limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Iltem 6



Attachment A

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. The accompanying Supplementary Information, as listed
in the Table of Contents, is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the Supplementary Information is fairly stated, in
all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other information
comprises the Introductory Section and Statistical Section listed in the Table of Contents, but does not include
the basic financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements
do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and the basic financial
statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work
performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other information exits, we are
required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 6,
2024, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters.
The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness
of the District’s internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part
of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s
internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Report on Summarized Comparative Information

We have previously audited the District’s June 30, 2023, financial statements, and we expressed unmodified
opinions on the respective financial statements of the business type activities and the fiduciary fund in our
report dated November 6, 2023. In our opinion, the summarized comparative information presented herein
as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, is consistent, in all material respects, with the audited financial
statements from which it has been derived.

P luze + Hssoehes

Pleasant Hill, California
November 6, 2024

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

As management of the Marin County Transit District (Marin Transit or the District), we offer readers of the
District’s financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the District
for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023. We encourage readers to consider the
information presented here in conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of
transmittal, which can be found on pages v to xiii of this report.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

e The assets and deferred outflows of resources of the District exceeded its liabilities at June 30,
2024 and 2023, by $87,315,430 and $84,935,953 (net position), respectively. Of this amount,
$45,876,537 and $48,674,795, respectively, is net investment in capital assets, and $41,438,893
and $36,261,158, respectively, is unrestricted.

e The District’s total net position increased for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, by $2,379,478
compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. The District’s total net position increased for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, by $2,977,361 compared to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022.
The increases are due to increased investment in capital assets.

e The District claimed $19,801,131 in fiscal year 2024 from the Transportation Authority of Marin as
part of a voter approved sales tax. The District claimed $13,477,367 in fiscal year 2023 from the
Transportation Authority of Marin as part of a voter approved sales tax.

e The District's emergency reserve and contingency reserve are fully-funded, with a total value
equivalent to six months operating funds. The District’s capital reserve increased by $3,948,218,
for a total capital reserve of $19,983,376.

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The discussion and analysis provided here are intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic
financial statements. The District’s basic financial statements consist of two components: (1) government-
wide financial statements and (2) notes to the basic financial statements. This report also contains
supplementary information intended to furnish additional detail to support the basic financial statements.

Government-Wide Financial Statements

The District is a single-purpose entity that is required to account for its activity as a proprietary fund type
under governmental accounting standards. Accordingly, the District presents only government-wide
financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a
broad overview of the District’s finances, similar to a private-sector business.

The statements of net position present information on all of the District’'s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between assets and liabilities reported as net position. Over time, increases or decreases in net
position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or
deteriorating.

The statements of activities and changes in net position present information showing how the District’s net
position changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are recognized on the date the
underlying event that gives rise to the change occurs, regardless of the timing of the related cash flows.

The basic financial statements can be found on pages 13-16 of this report.

Iltem 6



Attachment A

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements

The notes provide additional information that is necessary to acquire a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide statements. The notes to the basic financial statements can be found on
pages 17-42 of this report.

OVERALL FINANCIAL ANALYSIS

The financial statements provide both short-term and long-term information about the District’'s overall
financial condition. This analysis addresses the financial statements of the District as a whole.

As noted earlier, net position may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position over time.
In the case of the District, assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded liabilities by $87,315,430
and $84,935,953 at June 30, 2024 and 2023, respectively.

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION

As stated earlier, increases or decreases in net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of the
District’s financial position. A summary of the Statements of Net Position during the fiscal years ended June
30, 2024, 2023, and 2022, is shown below. The focus is on Net Position (Note 1):

2024-2023 2023-2022
Increase Increase
June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023 (Decrease) June 30, 2022 (Decrease)

Cash $36,308,055 $35,886,151 $421,904 $28,577,971 $7,308,180
Receivables 12,187,005 6,777,673 5,409,332 12,516,216 (5,738,543)
Prepaid expenses 238,191 66,648 171,543 8,229 58,419
Net pension asset - - - - -
Capital assets, net 46,410,070 49,381,974 (2,971,904) 47,252,222 2,129,752
Total Assets 95,143,321 92,112,446 3,030,875 88,354,638 3,757,808
Deferred Outflows of Resources 54,879 105,659 (50,780) 148,898 (43,239)
Current liabilities 7,345,255 6,551,688 793,567 5,656,763 894,925
Noncurrent liabilities 506,975 730,464 (223,489) 888,181 (157,717)
Total Liabilities 7,852,230 7,282,152 570,078 6,544,944 737,208
Deferred Inflows of Resources 30,540 - 30,540 - -
Unrestricted net position 41,438,893 36,261,158 5,192,125 35,579,756 681,402
Net investment in capital assets 45,876,537 48,674,795 (2,812,648) 46,378,836 2,295,959
Total Net Position $87,315,430 $84,935,953 $2,379,478 $81,958,592 $2,977,361

A substantial portion of the District’s total net position reflects its investment in capital assets. These capital
assets are used to provide bus services to Marin County residents and visitors. Consequently, these assets
are not available for future spending. An additional portion of the District’s net position represents resources
that are subject to external restrictions imposed by grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other
governments or constraints imposed by laws through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation, that
restrict the use of net position. The remainder of the District’s net position is unrestricted, and represents
the District’s reserve account. This reserve continues to meet the requirements of the Board of Directors
adopted reserve policy.

Iltem 6



Attachment A

STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION

The Statements of Activities and Changes in Net Position provide information regarding the District’s
revenues and expenses. The table below reflects a summary of the District’'s Statements of Activities and
Changes in Net Position during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024, 2023, and 2022.

Operating Revenues
Transit fares
Contractual compensation
Special fares and school bus revenue

Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses
Purchased transportation services
Depreciation and amortization
Salaries and benefits
Fuel
Professional services
General and administrative
Lease and rentals
Maintenance and facility costs

Total Operating Expense
Operating Loss
Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses)
Intergovernmental revenue
Property tax
Advertising and rentals
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Other revenues (expenses)
Interest expense

Total Nonoperating Revenues
(Expenses)

Income Before Capital Contributions
Capital Contributions (Grants)

Intergovernmental revenue

Other revenue

Total Capital Contributions (Grants)
Change in net position

Net Position at Beginning of Year

Net Position at End of Year

Revenues

2024-2023 2023-2022

June 30, June 30, Increase June 30, Increase
2024 2023 (Decrease) 2022 (Decrease)
$3,164,763 $2,986,759 $179,004 $2,494,806 $491,953
1,479,825 1,220,388 259,437 1,607,414 (387,026)
344,611 334,991 9,620 304,605 30,386
4,989,199 4,542,138 447,061 4,406,825 135,313
32,436,525 29,353,390 3,083,135 24,818,237 4,535,153
5,119,722 4,774,382 345,340 4,784,362 (9,980)
3,255,548 2,970,674 284,874 2,527,315 443,359
2,948,794 2,902,027 46,767 2,997,169 (95,142)
665,125 602,754 62,371 1,696,700 (1,093,946)
727,186 466,522 260,664 598,660 (132,138)
27,130 26,210 920 143,874 (117,664)
649,144 711,664 (62,520) 393,610 318,054
45,829,174 41,807,623 4,021,551 37,959,927 3,847,696
(40,839,975) (37,265,485) (3,574,490) (33,553,102) (3,712,383)
34,841,998 31,490,602 3,351,396 26,855,061 4,635,541
5,993,956 5,705,817 288,139 5,382,566 323,251
48,325 320,422 (272,097) 553,176 (232,754)
(80,996) 30,870 (111,866) 32,281 (1,411)
150,192 (229,468) (379,660) (577,472) 348,004
(13,191) (16,753) (3,562) (1,552) (15,201)
40,940,284 37,301,490 3,638,794 32,244,060 5,057,430
100,309 36,005 64,304 (1,309,042) 1,345,047
2,279,168 2,941,356 (662,188) 5,563,381 (2,622,025)
- - - 22,206 (22,206)
2,279,168 2,941,356 (662,188) 5,585,587 (2,644,231)
2,379,477 2,977,361 (597,884) 4,276,545 (1,299,184)
84,935,953 81,958,592 2,977,361 77,682,047 4,276,545
$87,315,430 $84,935,953 $2,379,477 $81,958,592 $2,977,361

Operating revenues increased to $4.9 million in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, as compared to the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. Fiscal Year ended June 30, 2024 was the fifth year after the COVID-19
pandemic and Marin Transit fixed route ridership has recovered to pre-COVID levels with new program
changes reflecting an increase in ridership and transit fare revenue.

Iltem 6



Attachment A

The District’'s nonoperating revenues grew by $3.6 million for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 compared
to fiscal year ended June 30, 2023. The increase was primarily due to additional revenue claim on a
reimbursement basis for increased expenses in FY2023/24 since there were no additional federal relief
funds available for operations.

The majority of the District’s construction and vehicle acquisitions are funded with capital contributions from
other governmental units such as federal, state, and local agencies. Therefore, capital contribution revenue
is tied to the District’s capital purchases, which naturally fluctuate over time. In fiscal year ended June 30,
2024, the District’s capital contributions decreased $600,000 due to the delay in expenditures for planned
facility improvements.

Expenses
Operating expenses increased in both fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 and fiscal year ended June 30,

2023. In fiscal year ended June 30, 2024 the increases were in Purchase transportation services due to
new contracts with increased hourly rates. Salary and benefit costs in fiscal year ended June 30, 2024

increased due to increased benefit costs and a lower vacancy rate for positions.

CAPITAL ASSETS AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION
Capital Assets
Summary of Capital Assets (net of depreciation)

Balance at
June 30, 2024

Balance at
June 30, 2023

Balance at
June 30, 2022

Nondepreciable:

Land $6,717,174 $6,717,174 $3,027,166
Work in progress 1,219,737 2,928,305 6,132,780
Total Nondepreciable 7,936,911 9,645,479 9,159,946
Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Revenue Vehicles 21,495,666 24,360,205 23,518,043
Facilities and stops 6,882,415 7,199,527 7,517,652
Communication and data equipment 440,386 730,836 623,807
Fare revenue collection equipment 657 2,235 5,875
Furniture and fixtures 92,351 110,707 126,604
Administrative buildings 6,057,148 3,552,643 3,519,724
Maintenance buildings 2,967,672 3,053,727 1,908,426
Non-revenue vehicles 65,608 34,914
Total capital assets, being depreciated 37,961,902 39,044,794 37,220,131
Right-to-use Leased Assets Amortized
Office Space 511,257 691,701
Total Right-to-use Leased Assets Amortized 511,257 691,701
Capital Assets, Net $46,410,070 $49,381,974 $46,380,077

Iltem 6



Attachment A

The District’s investment in capital assets amounts to $46,410,070 and $49,381,974 as of June 30, 2024
and 2023, respectively (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes
vehicles, facilities and stops, communication and data equipment, fare revenue collection equipment, and
furniture and fixtures. Net assets decreased in fiscal year 2024 by 6% after increasing 5% in fiscal year
2023.

The most significant additions to the District’s capital assets in the year ended June 30, 2024 were the
purchase of ten paratransit vehicles. Additions to capital assets were less than the annual accumulated
depreciation on existing assets. The most significant additions to the District’s capital assets in the year
ended June 30, 2023 were the purchase of property to expand an existing operations maintenance facility
and other capital improvements at the District’s facilities. More detail on capital costs for fiscal years ended
June 30, 2024 and June 30, 2023, is included on page 27 of this report.

DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Pursuant to the enabling legislation (Marin County Transit District Act of 1964, § 70225), the District has
the authority to issue debt. Currently, the District has no outstanding debt.

ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR’S BUDGET

The COVID-19 pandemic created uncertainty for District revenues and transit demand levels. The District
entered this period of disruption in a strong financial position and federal relief funding along with significant
reserves allowed the District to continue to provide services. The significant uncertainties and fluctuations
that were central to the budget cycles during the first three years of the pandemic have calmed. FY2023/24
fixed route ridership has recovered to pre-COVID levels although travel patterns have shifted in some areas.
Demand response services have stabilized at about 50% of pre-Pandemic ridership and new program
changes are increasing ridership. Marin Transit's contract service operations expenses continue to be the
District’s largest expense and are 79% of operations costs. The District had challenges with missed trips
and service quality but worked with contractors to make changes to address increased costs due to inflation
and changing service conditions. New contracts led to increased purchased transportation costs. Marin
Transit started a new contract with Golden Gate Bridge Highway and Transportation District (GGBHTD)
effective October 1, 2022, re-procured contracts for yellow school bus service and the Muir Woods Shuttles
and negotiated a two year contract extension with Marin Airporter effective July 1, 2023.

Marin County voters passed Measure AA on November 6, 2018, to reauthorize and extend the local
transportation sales tax for 30 years. The new measure continues to prioritize local transit and the
expenditure plan specifies that 55 percent of allocated sales tax revenues will go to local transit. Sales tax
revenue in Marin County has continued to provide stable operation revenues throughout the pandemic.

Local sales tax revenues have grown, state operations revenues have increased, and the budget includes
the final expenditure of federal relief funds. Offsetting the strong revenue growth, inflation is at record highs
and driving labor shortages that translate to increases in purchased transportation costs and challenges
maintaining service quality.

The District’s long term financial stability is less certain and there are increasing challenges due to the tight
labor market. It continues to be difficult for our contractors to hire and retain frontline staff. This challenge
is manifesting in missed service, difficulty adding service, increased costs to our contractors, and ultimately
increased costs for the District as purchased transportation contracts are rebid or renegotiated.

The lack of ownership of sufficient zero emission bus charging, parking, and maintenance facilities
continues to be a critical vulnerability in ensuring long term financial stability. The District purchased the
Rush Landing bus parking facility in FY2019/20, purchased a paratransit maintenance facility, in San Rafael
in FY2021/22 and initiated a purchase of a small parking facility adjacent to the paratransit maintenance
facility in FY2022/23. The District received a federal grant of $31.5 million towards the purchase of an
electric vehicle charging and fixed route maintenance facility.

Iltem 6



Attachment A

The District adopted an update to the Short Range Transit Plan (SRTP) on December 5, 2022. The 2023-
2028 SRTP provides the framework for service and capital planning for the next ten years. Financial
projections are updated and a financially constrained plan and priorities for services and projects are
established for potential future new revenues. The SRTP financial plan guides financial decision-making
for the agency and is the basis for analyzing longer range financial impacts of changes in costs and
revenues. The SRTP is updated every two to four years and the District plans to do another full update in
2025.

The District continues to evaluate all services provided with an emphasis on improving the efficiency and
convenience of the transit system for riders. Staff provides regular quarterly financial updates to the Board
of Directors to monitor the District’s financial position. The District continues to provide the highest levels
of local bus service possible while ensuring financial stability.

REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

This financial report is designed to provide our residents, taxpayers and creditors with a general overview
of the District’s finances and to demonstrate the District’s accountability for the funds under its stewardship.

Please address any questions about this report or requests for additional financial information to our office
at 711 Grand Avenue, Suite 110, San Rafael, California 94901.

Respectfully submitted,

%é.m\

Nancy Whelan
General Manager

10

Iltem 6



Attachment A

BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2024
WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS AS OF JUNE 30, 2023

2024 2023
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash and investments (Note 2) $36,308,055 $35,886,151
Accounts receivables:
State grants 310,375 743,401
Transportation Authority of Marin 5,333,270 4,947,237
Federal grants 5,616,662 540,322
Golden Gate Bridge Highway and Transit District 461,613 381,165
County of Marin 85,727 74,153
Other receivables 379,358 91,395
Prepaid expenses 238,191 66,648
Total current assets 48,733,251 42,730,472
Noncurrent Assets
Capital Assets (Note 3):
Not depreciated 7,936,911 9,645,479
Depreciable assets, net 37,961,902 39,044,794
Right-to-use leased assets, net 511,257 691,701
Total capital assets 46,410,070 49,381,974
Total noncurrent assets 46,410,070 49,381,974
Total Assets 95,143,321 92,112,446
DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow Pension related (Note 7) 54,879 105,659
Total Deferred Outflows of Resources 54,879 105,659
Total Assets and Deferred Outflows of Resources 95,198,200 92,218,105
LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
Account payable 4,328,969 4,969,788
Accrued payroll and benefits 119,044 124,425
Unearned revenue 2,630,589 1,198,146
Compensated absences - current portion (Note 4) 85,407 85,682
Lease liability - current portion (Note 4) 181,246 173,647
Total current liabilities 7,345,255 6,551,688
Noncurrent Liabilities
Compensated absences (Note 4) 65,977 41,291
Lease liability (Note 4) 352,287 533,532
Net pension liability (Note 7) 88,711 155,641
Total noncurrent liabilities 506,975 730,464
Total Liabilities 7,852,230 7,282,152
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow Pension related (Note 7) 30,540
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources 30,540
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 45,876,537 48,674,795
Unrestricted (Note 1M) 41,438,893 36,261,158
Total Net Position $87,315,430 $84,935,953

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

13

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

OPERATING REVENUES
Transit fares
Contractual compensation
Special fares
School bus services revenues

Total program operating revenues

OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased transportation services
Depreciation and amortization (Note 3)
Salaries and benefits
Fuel
Professional services
General and administrative
Utilities
Marketing
Lease and rentals
Other services
Casualty and liability costs
Maintenance costs
Capital costs

Total program operating expenses

OPERATING LOSSES

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental revenue (Note 5)
Property tax revenue
Advertising and other
Rental income
Interest income
Interest expense
Gain on disposal of capital assets
Pass through of Measure AA funds

Net non-operating revenues, before
capital contributions (grants)

Capital contributions (grants) (Note 5):
Intergovernmental revenue

Total capital contributions (grants)
Net non-operating revenues and contributions
Change in net position

NET POSITION,
Beginning of Year

End of Year

2024 2023

$3,164,763 $2,986,759
1,479,825 1,220,388
330,501 291,465
14,110 43,526
4,989,199 4,542,138
32,436,525 29,353,390
5,119,722 4,774,382
3,255,548 2,970,674
2,948,794 2,902,027
665,125 602,754
727,186 461,010
194,418 215,512
105,570 127,998
27,130 26,210
33,742 26,935
128,991 96,077
166,482 233,618
19,941 17,036
45,829,174 41,807,623
(40,839,975) (37,265,485)
34,841,998 31,490,602
5,993,956 5,705,817
48,324 227,233

1 93,189

922,091 285,138
(13,191) (16,753)
(80,996) 30,870
(771,899) (514,606)
40,940,284 37,301,490
2,279,168 2,941,356
2,279,168 2,941,356
43,219,452 40,242,846
2,379,477 2,977,361
84,935,953 81,958,592
$87,315,430 $84,935,953

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

14

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

WITH SUMMARIZED TOTALS FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash received from customers
Cash receipts from contracts
Cash paid to suppliers for purchased transportation service
Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services

Net Cash Used by Operating Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM NON CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Property taxes received
Rent and lease receipts
Advertising and other
Intergovernmental revenues received

Net Cash Provided by Noncapital Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FORM CAPITAL AND RELATED FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of capital assets
Acquisition of capital assets
Payment of lease liability
Payment of interest expense
Capital contribution revenues received

Net Cash (Used) Provided by Capital and Related Financing Activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest income received

Net Cash Provided by Investing Activities

Net Increase in Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments

CASH AND INVESTMENTS AT BEGINNING OF YEAR

CASH AND INVESTMENTS AT END OF YEAR

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash

provided (used) by operating activities:

Operating losses

Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash

provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization
(Increase) Decrease in accounts receivable
Decrease (Increase) in prepaid expenses
Decrease (Increase) in net pension liability (asset)
Increase (Decrease) in accounts payable
Increase (Decrease) in accrued payroll and benefits
(Decrease) Increase in unearned revenue
Decrease compensated absences

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

2024 2023
($467,515) $9,668,614
1,479,825 1,220,388

(33,248,887)  (29,276,450)
(5,017,379) (4,709,177)
(3,222,128) (2,891,198)

(40,476,084)  (25,987,823)

5,993,956 5,705,817
1 93,189

48,324 189,519
34,070,099 31,099,494
40,112,380 37,088,019
46,918 30,870
(2,283,171) (6,904,134)
(166,207) (128,493)
(13,191) (16,753)
2,279,168 2,941,356
(136,483) (4,077,154)
922,091 285,138
922,091 285,138
421,904 7,308,180
35,886,151 28,577,971
$36,308,055 $35,886,151

($40,839,975)  ($37,388,983)
5,119,722 4,774,382

(5,409,332) 5,738,543
(171,543) (58,419)
14,390 20,439
(640,819) 135,359
(5,381) 35,480
1,432,443 731,819
24,411 23,557
(340,476,084)  ($25,987,823)

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

15



Attachment A
MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - RETIREMENT PLAN

JUNE 30, 2024 and 2023

2023

$12,506

1,623
1,999,921
119,767
120,581

2,254,398

2,254,398

2024
ASSETS
Contributions receivable $8,038
Investments

Fixed income 3,086
Target date funds 2,244,048
Bond funds 143,704
Stock mutual funds 170,092
Total Investments 2,568,968
TOTAL ASSETS 2,568,968

TOTAL NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR
RETIREMENT BENEFITS $2,568,968

$2,254,398

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - RETIREMENT PLAN

FOR THE FISCAL YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024 AND 2023

2023

$280,324
174,346
41,926
14,456

511,052

(9,400)
(76,946)

(86,346)

424,706

1,829,692

2024
ADDITIONS
Contributions - employer $303,697
Increase in investments 296,210
Dividends 34,710
Capital Gains 13,213
TOTAL ADDITIONS 647,830
DEDUCTIONS
Administrative expenses (11,485)
Withdrawals (321,775)
TOTAL DEDUCTIONS (333,260)
NET INCREASE IN NET POSITION 314,570
NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR
RETIREMENT BENEFITS -BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,254,398
NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR
RETIREMENT BENEFITS -END OF YEAR $2,568,968

$2,254,398

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements

16

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES I

The accounting policies of the Marin County Transit District (the District) are in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) applicable to government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
accounting and financial reporting principles. The following is a summary of the significant accounting
policies:

A.

Reporting Entity

The District is a special district created by the authority of the Marin County Transit District Act of
1964. The District’s purpose is to develop, finance, organize, and provide local Marin County transit
service. Revenues are derived principally from property taxes, aid from other governmental entities,
transportation contract revenue, and transit fare revenue.

The District is governed by a seven-member Board of Directors (the Board) comprised of the
members of the Board of Supervisors of the County of Marin (the County) and two members chosen
from city council persons or mayors of cities within the County. The District is a component unit of
the County because the County controls the District’s Board and may impose its will on the District.

The District contracts with five transit providers to operate transit services in Marin County:

Golden Gate Bridge Highway and Transportation District (Golden Gate): Since 1971, the District
has contracted with Golden Gate to provide local transit services. In May of 2015, the District and
Golden Gate entered into an agreement for transit services for the period July 1, 2014 through June,
30, 2020, that contained options to extend the contract for two additional one-year periods. As of
June 30, 2022 both option years had been executed and an additional amendment was signed
extending the agreement through December 31, 2022 while a new contract was negotiated. A new
fixed route transit service contract was signed for the period October 1, 2022 through June 30, 2026
with the option to extend the contract for two additional one-year periods. The contract specifies a
rate per revenue hour and range of minimum and maximum revenue hours to be incurred each fiscal
year for the term of the agreement and the two option years. The District sets the fare structure and
rates, and establishes the service levels and the frequency of local transit services. Golden Gate
collects passenger fares for the District’s routes. This inter-agency agreement uses a different
financial structure than the prior agreement which simplifies the payment process between the two
Districts, but also has financial and contractual implications. The new operations agreement with
Golden Gate, reduces the District’s share of advertising and eliminates direct payments for customer
service and maintenance of the San Rafael Transit Center.

Under the terms of the yearly agreements in place for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023,
Golden Gate operated six local fixed routes. The total cost of local bus transit service under these
agreements during the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, was $12,959,870 and $12,155,247,
respectively. Related fare revenue, advertising revenue, and other revenue earned for the fiscal years
ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, was $2,801,457 and $2,707,203, respectively. Golden Gate was
compensated for operating costs based on revenue hours incurred multiplied by a rate per hour
specified. The District also pays for customer service, operation of the San Rafael Transit Center, fuel
and electrical power costs and a contribution to capital assets purchased before the agreement.

17

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) |

A.

Reporting Entity (Continued)

Under the local paratransit agreement, the District contracts for local and inter-county (regional)
paratransit service on behalf of Golden Gate. With the implementation of the Americans with
Disabilities Act (ADA), Golden Gate was required to provide complementary local and inter-county
paratransit services. Golden Gate contracted with the District to be the primary public entity
responsible to provide these inter-county paratransit services. The District, in turn, contracted with
Transdev Transportation Inc., to provide the actual services, with the understanding that the District
would be adequately compensated by Golden Gate. The new operations agreement with Golden Gate,
effective October 2023 lowered Golden Gate’s obligation to fund local paratransit.

Marin Airporter: Marin Airporter operates Local Fixed Route service and Community Shuttle
Service. Marin Airporter has operated the Community Shuttle Service since 2006. The current three-
year contract with two option years was awarded in 2018 through a competitive bid process. Fare
revenue on this service is collected through the District’s GFI fare box system and is deposited
directly into the District’s account. An amendment was signed in April 2023 to extend the current
contract an additional two years and increase service hours effective July 1, 2023.

Transdev Transportation, Inc.: The District signed a new competitive bid contract with Transdev
Transportation, Inc (Transdev) on September 13, 2021. Paratransit service and associated Marin
Access programs transitioned to Transdev on February 1, 2022. The Transdev contract is 3 years
and 5 months with 3 one-year options. Transdev operates services out of a District owned
maintenance facility (3000 Kerner) and parks vehicles at locations owned by Golden Gate.
Paratransit services consist of demand responsive services for the disabled, which meets the
requirements of the ADA and other federal provisions. Under the contract, Transdev provides the
paratransit services and collects all the fare revenues. Transdev bills the District monthly for the net
cost of services on an agreed-upon monthly fixed fee plus an hourly rate. The District receives
reimbursement from Golden Gate for the actual cost of the inter-county (regional) portion of this
service and a portion of the local paratransit services.

Michael’s Transportation Services: Michael’s Transportation Services provided a six-yellow bus
service to the Ross Valley School District. The three-year contract, with two option years, was
awarded in 2018 through a competitive bid process. Fare revenue on this service was collected
through District pass sales and deposited into the District’s account. This contract ended June 30,
2023 and a new competitively bid contract was awarded to Bauer’s Intelligent Transportation Inc
beginning August 10, 2023.

Bauer’s Intelligent Transportation: The District signed a new competitive bid contract with Bauer’s
Intelligent Transportation on February 5, 2024 to operate the seasonal Muir Woods Shuttle Service
providing service to and from the Muir Woods National Park. The National Park Service pays for
50% of the Muir Woods Shuttle program. In addition, The District awarded a new competitive bid
contract to Bauer’s Intelligent Transportation on August 10, 2023. This three-year contract, with two
options years, is for a six-yellow bus service to the Ross Valley School District. Fare revenue on this
service is collected through District pass sales and is deposited into the District’s account.

18

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) |

B.

Joint Ventures

The District participates in two joint ventures. One joint venture is for risk management as disclosed
in Note 11. The second joint venture is the Marin Emergency Radio Authority (the Authority). The
Authority is responsible for acquiring, constructing, improving, and operating a countywide
emergency radio system. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 1999, the Authority issued Revenue
Bonds to be used for the acquisition of the radio system. The District is responsible for a 1.18% share
of the annual contributions to the Authority for operations, which also covers debt payments. The
amount of the contribution is disclosed in Note 12. The District is not directly responsible for
liabilities of the Authority and only has a residual equity interest in the Authority that would result in
the District’s proportional share of residual assets being distributed to the District, if any, if the
members vote to terminate the Authority. The Authority issues separate financial statements, which
are available at: Marin Emergency Radio Authority, ¢/o Novato Fire Protection District, 95 Rowland
Way, Novato, California 94945 or www.meraonline.org/contact.

Basis of Presentation

The basic financial statements of the District have been prepared in conformity with GAAP as applied
to government units. The GASB is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing governmental
accounting and financial reporting principles. The District applies all applicable GASB
pronouncements in its accounting and financial reporting. The more significant of the District’s
accounting policies are described below.

The District’s resources are allocated to and accounted for in these financial statements as an
enterprise fund type of the proprietary fund group. Enterprise funds are used to account for operations
that are financed and operated in a manner similar to private business enterprises, where the intent of
the governing body is that the costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing goods or services
to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered primarily through user charges,
or where the governing body has decided that periodic determination of revenues earned, expenses
incurred, and/or net income is appropriate for capital maintenance, public policy, management
control, accountability, or other policies. Net position for the enterprise fund represents the amount
available for future operations.

Basis of Accounting

The accounting and financial reporting treatment applied to a fund is determined by its measurement
focus. Enterprise funds are accounted for on a flow of economic resources measurement focus. With
this measurement focus, all assets, deferred outflows of resources, liabilities, and deferred inflows of
resources associated with the operation of this fund are included on the Statement on Net Position.
Net position is segregated into the net investment in capital assets, amounts restricted, and amounts
unrestricted. Enterprise fund operating statements present increases (i.e., revenues) and decreases
(i.e., expenses) in net position.

19

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) |

D.

Basis of Accounting (Continued)

The District uses the accrual basis of accounting. Under this method, revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred. Grant revenue is recognized
when program expenditures are incurred in accordance with program guidelines. When such funds
are received, they are recorded as unearned revenues until earned. Transportation Development Act
(TDA) revenues are recorded when all eligibility requirements have been met.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods
in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the District are charges to customers for transportation services, contractual
compensation, and advertising. Operating expenses include the cost of purchased transportation
services, contract labor, fuel, depreciation, professional services, leases and rentals, general and
administrative, direct labor, marketing, utilities, and other operating expenses. All revenues and
expenses not meeting these definitions are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

In addition to the District’s enterprise activities, the District maintains a fiduciary fund to account for
the assets held in a trustee capacity. Fiduciary funds are also accounted for using the economic
resources measurement focus and accrual basis of accounting. The District reports the Retirement
Plan Fiduciary fund is an irrevocable trust fund used to account for assets held by the District as
Trustee for Retirement Plan.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to use
restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The District defines cash and cash equivalents as cash on hand, demand deposits, and short-term
investments, including the investment in the County investment pool. For the purposes of reporting
cash flows, the District considers all cash and highly liquid investments purchased with an original
maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. Additionally, one contractor who provides
transportation services offsets certain types of revenues and expenses against monthly transportation
service charges. Only the actual cash transactions are shown on the Statement of Cash Flows.

Prepaid Expenses
Prepaid expenses are costs paid as of the Statement of Net Position date that are related to future

accounting periods. Prepaid expenses at June 30, 2024 and 2023, consisted mainly of prepaid software
maintenance costs.

20

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) |

G.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are valued at historical cost. Donated capital assets are reported at the acquisition value,
which is the price that would be paid to acquire an asset with equivalent service potential in an orderly
market transaction at the acquisition date. The District’s policy defines capital assets as assets with
an initial, individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year.
Provision is made for depreciation on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets. The estimated useful lives are as follows:

Revenue vehicles........oooveeeiiiieniicieciceceeeeeeee 3 —12 years
Facilities and StOPS .......ccceevevverrererierenesesreseseesresrenenns 5—30 years
Communication and data equipment ..............ccccervereennee 3 — 5 years
Fare revenue and collection equipment ...........c.cccceeeruereennene 5 years
Furniture and fiXtures .........cceceeveecieniecieeieeeieseee e 8 years
Non-revenue VEhiCles..........ccvvvveririnenineneseseseeeseenen 2 years

Maintenance and repairs are expensed as operating expenses when incurred. Betterments that increase
the useful lives or capacity of existing capital assets are capitalized when incurred. Costs of assets
sold or retired (and the related amounts of accumulated depreciation) are eliminated from the capital
asset accounts in the fiscal year of sale or retirement and the resulting gain or loss is included in
nonoperating revenues (expenses).

Occasionally, the District reimburses other organizations for the purchases of vehicles, facilities, and
other assets. For the reimbursements in which the District does not own the assets, the transaction is
recorded as capital costs within operating expenses on the Statement of Activities and Changes in Net
Position.

Unearned Revenue

Unearned revenue at June 30, 2024, was primarily Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)
funds for EV vehicle and infrastructure improvements for future periods. Unearned revenue at June
30, 2023, was primarily other State funding from State of Good Repair program (Note 9) for
upcoming replacement of 40ft transit buses and funds from yellow bus pass sales for service in fiscal
year ending June 30, 2024.

Compensated Absences

At June 30,2024 and 2023, the District’s employment policy allows employees to accumulate earned,
but unused, vacation leave time. Vacation accrues at a rate of 80 hours per year until the third
consecutive year of employment when an additional 40 hours are earned. Administrative leave and
sick leave is provided to employees, but is not payable at separation or retirement and is not accrued
as part of compensated absences. The current portion of the long-term liability is estimated based on
historical trends.

21

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) |

J.

Property Taxes

The County levies taxes and places liens on real property as of January 1 on behalf of the District.
Property taxes are due the following November 1 and March 1 and become delinquent December 10
and April 10 for the first and second installments, respectively. Unsecured property taxes are levied
throughout the fiscal year.

In 1993, the District entered into an agreement (commonly known as the Teeter Plan) with the
County. The Teeter Plan calls for the County to advance the District its share of the annual gross levy
of secured property taxes and special assessments. In consideration, the District gives the County its
rights to penalties and interest on delinquent secured property tax receivables and actual proceeds
collected. The other receivables line on the Statement of Net Position refers mainly to unsecured

property taxes.

Measure AA (Previously Measure A)

The County’s voters passed a 4 cent sales tax measure (Measure A) in 2004 to provide local funding
and investment for transportation infrastructure and programs. The tax went into effect on April 1,
2005, and lasts for a period of 20 years. Under the sales tax expenditure plan, fifty-five percent (55%)
of Measure A was available for Local Transit service.

The County’s voters reauthorized and extended the %% cent sales tax measure for 30 years in November
2018. The tax (Measure AA) went into effect March 1, 2019, with a period of 30 years and replaces
Measure A. Under the updated sales tax expenditure plan, fifty-five percent (55%) of Measure AA is
available for Transit with forty-five and Y2 percent (45.5%) available for Local Transit service. The
Transportation Authority of Marin (TAM) is the transportation sales tax authority in the County.
TAM makes Measure AA funding available to the District based on projections, and adjusts future
year balances to account for actual receipts. The District requests Measure AA funds on a
reimbursement basis and does not carry an unspent balance of these funds.

Measure B

In 2010, the County’s voters approved Measure B, the Vehicle Registration Fee Initiative that collects
$10 annually for each vehicle registered in the County for the purpose of improving transportation
within the County. The TAM board adopted the Measure B Expenditure Plan on July 28, 2011, and
is effective for 10 years. The Measure B Expenditure Plan designates 35% of the funds generated to
be used to fund senior and disabled transportation services in the County, and the District is the
designated agency to manage this component. The District requests Measure B funds on a
reimbursement basis and does not carry an unspent balance of these funds.

22

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) |

M. Net Position
Net position is categorized as net investment in capital assets, restricted, and unrestricted as follows:

Net Investment in Capital Assets — The net investment in capital assets groups all capital assets
into one category of net position, which is reduced by accumulated depreciation.

Restricted Net Position — Restricted net position represents amounts that are legally restricted for
specific uses. The amount reported as restricted for capital additions represents a gain on sale of
Federal Transit Administration (FTA) funded buses that must be used for future bus acquisitions.

Unrestricted Net Position — Unrestricted net position represents amounts not restricted for any
other project.

The District’s Board approved a reserve policy for unrestricted net position allowing for a minimum
of two months and maximum of six months of operating expenses to be reserved. An emergency
reserve of two months of operating expenses and contingency reserve of more than two months but
less than four months of operating expenses were approved under the policy. The emergency reserve
is available for one-time, unanticipated expenditures or to offset unanticipated revenue fluctuations.
The contingency reserve is available to maintain current transit service levels during revenue declines
or slower than anticipated revenue growth. During the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, a capital
reserve was approved by the Board. Reserves were as follows at June 30:

June 30, 2024 June 30, 2023

Emergency reserve $7,156,636 $6,742,000
Contingency Reserve 14,313,271 13,484,000
Capital Reserve 19,968,986 16,035,158

$41,438,893 $36,261,158

N. Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of
revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

23

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) |

0.

Leases

The District is a lessee for an office lease. The District recognizes a lease liability and an intangible
right-to-use lease asset (lease asset) in its financial statement. At the commencement of a lease,
District initially measures the lease liability at the present value of payments expected to be made
during the lease term. Subsequently, the lease liability is reduced by the principal portion of lease
payments made. The lease asset is initially measured as the initial amount of the lease liability,
adjusted for lease payments made at or before the lease commencement date, plus certain initial direct
costs. Subsequently, the lease asset is amortized on a straight-line basis over its useful life. The
District also established a threshold for leases that have an annual exchange value of greater than
$100,000 or a total contract value of $500,000 or be part of an asset group of similar assets that when
combined exceed one or both of these thresholds. There was only one lease subject to GASB 87 in
2024.

Key estimates and judgments related to leases include how the District determines (1) the discount
rate it uses to discount the expected lease payments to present value, (2) lease term, and (3) lease
payments.

Subscription Based Information Technology Arrangements

In May 2020, GASB issued Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology
Arrangements. The objective of this Statement is to provide guidance on the accounting and financial
reporting for subscription-based information technology arrangements (SBITAs) for government end
users (governments). This Statement (1) defines a SBITA; (2) establishes that a SBITA results in a
right-to-use subscription asset—an intangible asset—and a corresponding subscription liability; (3)
provides the capitalization criteria for outlays other than subscription payments, including
implementation costs of a SBITA; and (4) requires note disclosures regarding a SBITA. The District
established a materiality threshold and the arrangement must have an annual exchange value greater
than $100,000 or a total contract value greater than $500,000 or be part of an asset group of similar
assets that when combined exceed one or both thresholds. The District has determined that there are
no subscriptions that meet these requirements as of June 30, 2024.

New Accounting Pronouncements

GASB Statement No. 100 — In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 100, Accounting for
Changes and Error Corrections. The primary objective of this Statement is to enhance accounting
and financial reporting requirements for accounting changes and error corrections to provide more
understandable, reliable, relevant, consistent, and comparable information for making decisions or
assessing accountability. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June 15,
2023, or the fiscal year 2023-24. The implementation of this Statement did not have a material
effect on the financial statements.

24

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

| NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) |

0. New Accounting Pronouncements (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 101 — In June 2022, GASB issued Statement No. 101, Compensated
Absences. The objective of this Statement is to better meet the information needs of financial
statement users by updating the recognition and measurement guidance for compensated absences.
That objective is achieved by aligning the recognition and measurement guidance under a unified
model and by amending certain previously required disclosures. This Statement is effective for
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2023, or the fiscal year 2024-25.

GASB Statement No. 102 — In December 2023, GASB issued Statement No. 102, Certain Risk
Disclosures. The objective of this Statement is to provide users of government financial statements
with essential information about risks related to a government’s vulnerabilities due to certain

concentrations or constraints. This Statement is effective for reporting periods beginning after June
15, 2024, or the fiscal year 2024-25.

GASB Statement No. 103 — In April 2024, GASB issued Statement No. 103, Financial Reporting
Model Improvements. The objective of this Statement is to improve key components of the financial
reporting model to enhance its effectiveness in providing information that is essential for decision
making and assessing a government’s accountability. This Statement is effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2025, or the fiscal year 2025-26.

R. Prior-Period Comparative Financial Information

The basic financial statements include certain prior-year summarized comparative information in
total, but not at the level of detail required for a presentation in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. Accordingly, such information should be read in conjunction with the
District’s financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2023, from which the summarized
information was derived.

NOTE 2 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS

Cash, cash equivalents, and investments as of June 30, 2024 and 2023, consist of the following:

2024 2023
Cash on hand $23 $23
Bank deposits 11,799,154 10,671,864
County of Marin investment pool 24,508,878 25,214,264

Total Cash, Cash Equivalents, and Investments ~ $36,308,055 $35,886,151

25

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 2 - CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS, AND INVESTMENTS (Continued) |

Investment in the County of Marin Investment Pool

The District’s Financial Management Policies indicate the District will invest excess funds in the County’s
investment pool. The County’s investment pool is monitored and reviewed by a Treasury Oversight
Committee (Committee). The Committee and County Board of Supervisors review and approve the County’s
investment policy yearly. The County’s investment pool is not registered by the Securities and Exchange
Commission. Interest earned on the pool is allocated to participants quarterly using the average daily cash
balance of each fund. Investments held in the County’s investment pool are available on demand to the District
and are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value. The investment in the County pool is
withdrawn on the amortized cost basis, which is different than the fair value of the District’s investment in
the pool. More information about the County’s investment pool can be found in the notes to the County’s
basic financial statements at https://www.marincounty.org.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the weighted average maturity of the
investments contained in the County’s investment pool was approximately 252 and 196, respectively.

Credit risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of
the investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. The County’s investment pool has maintained the highest rating of AAA by Fitch Ratings, a
nationally recognized statistical rating organization, since 1994.

Custodial credit risk

Custodial risk is the risk that the government will not be able to recover its deposits or the value of its
investments that are in the possession of an outside party. Custodial credit risk does not apply to a local
government’s indirect deposits or investment in securities through the use of government investment pools
(such as the County’s investment pool). At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the carrying amount of the District’s
deposits was $11,799,154 and $10,671,864, respectively, and the balance in the financial institutions was
$11,961,303 and $10,888,010, respectively. Of the balances in financial institutions, $250,000 at June 30,
2024 and 2023, was covered by federal depository insurance and the remaining amount was secured by a
pledge of securities by the financial institution, but not in the name of the District.

26

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS |

Capital asset activity was as follows for the fiscal years ended June 30:

Nondepreciable:
Land
Work in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Revenue Vehicles

Facilities and stops

Communication and data equipment
Fare revenue collection equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Administrative buildings
Maintenance buildings
Non-revenue vehicles

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Revenue Vehicles
Facilities and stops
Communication and data equipment
Fare revenue collection equipment
Furniture and fixtures
Administrative buildings
Maintenance buildings
Non-revenue vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net

Right-to-use leased assets, amortizable:
Office Space
Total right-to-use leased assets, being amortizable

Less accumulated amortization:
Office space

Total Right to Use Lease Assets, Amortizable net
Total Capital Assets Net

Depreciation and amortization expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, was $5,119,722.

Balance Additions / Balance
June 30, 2023 Adjustments Retirements Transfers June 30, 2024
$6,717,174 $6,717,174
2,928,305 $783,751 ($2,492,319) 1,219,737
9,645,479 783,751 (2,492,319) 7,936,911
44,936,890 1,053,462  ($3,969,595) 11,751 42,032,508
9,310,585 (59,843) 9,250,742
2,080,425 (148,992) 1,931,433
434,929 434,929
235,205 235,205
4,305,455 356,299 2,480,568 7,142,322
3,170,785 89,659 3,260,444
433,964 433,964
64,908,238 1,499,420 (4,178,430) 2,492,319 64,721,547
(20,576,685) (3,804,819) 3,844,664 (20,536,840)
(2,111,058) (306,692) 49,421 (2,368,329)
(1,349,589) (290,450) 148,992 (1,491,047)
(432,694) (1,578) (434,272)
(124,498) (18,357) (142,855)
(752,812) (332,362) (1,085,174)
(117,058) (175,715) (292,773)
(399,050) (9,305) (408,355)
(25,863,444) (4,939,278) 4,043,077 (26,759,645)
39,044,794 (3,439,858) (135,353)  $2,492,319 37,961,902
902,219 902,219
902,219 902,219
(210,518) (180,444) (390,962)
691,701 (180,444) 511,257
$49,381,974 ($2,836,551) ($135,353) $46,410,070

27

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 3 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued) |

Balance Additions / Balance
June 30, 2022 Adjustments  Retirements Transfers June 30, 2023
Nondepreciable:
Land $3,027,166 $3,514,715 $175,293 $6,717,174
Work in progress 6,132,780 2,040,300 (5,244,775) 2,928,305
Total capital assets, not being depreciated 9,159,946 5,555,015 (5,069,482) 9,645,479
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Revenue Vehicles 40,767,669 773,385 ($372,581) 3,767,917 44,936,890
Facilities and stops 9,310,585 9,310,585
Communication and data equipment 1,728,266 307,025 45,134 2,080,425
Fare revenue collection equipment 434,929 434,929
Furniture and fixtures 232,770 2,435 235,205
Administrative buildings 4,045,565 259,890 4,305,455
Maintenance buildings 1,945,690 228,875 996,220 3,170,785
Non-revenue vehicles 396,744 36,899 321 433,964
Total capital assets, being depreciated 58,862,218 1,349,119 (372,581) 5,069,482 64,908,238
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Revenue Vehicles (17,249,626) (3,699,640) 372,581 (20,576,685)
Facilities and stops (1,792,933) (318,125) (2,111,058)
Communication and data equipment (1,104,459) (245,130) (1,349,589)
Fare revenue collection equipment (429,054) (3,640) (432,694)
Furniture and fixtures (106,166) (18,332) (124,498)
Administrative buildings (525,841) (226,971) (752,812)
Maintenance buildings (37,264) (79,794) (117,058)
Non-revenue vehicles (396,744) (2,306) (399,050)
Total accumulated depreciation (21,642,087) (4,593,938) $372,581 (25,863,444)
Total capital assets, being depreciated, net 37,220,131 (3,244,819) $5,069,482 39,044,794
Right-to-use leased assets, amortizable:
Office Space 902,219 902,219
Total right-to-use leased assets, being amortizable 902,219 902,219
Less accumulated amortization:
Office space (30,074) (180,444) (210,518)
Total Right to Use Lease Assets, Amortizable net (180,444) 691,701
Total Capital Assets Net $46,380,077 $2,129,752 $49,381,974

Depreciation and amortization expense for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2023, was $4,774,382.

28

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

NOTE 4 - LONG-TERM LIABILITY |

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

Long-term liability activity was as follows for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024, and 2023:

Lease liability

Compensated absences

Lease liability
Compensated absences

Lease liability

On April 4, 2023, the District entered into a contract lease for approximately 6,465 rentable square feet at 711
Grand Avenue for the location of Marin Transit’s administrative offices. The term is for five years
commencing May 1, 2023, and expiring April 30, 2027. The base rent is $15,193 per month with a 2.1%
annual escalation, due the first day of each month commencing May 1, 2023. In accordance with GASB
Statement No. 87, the District recognized a right-to-use leased asset of $902,219 and with related accumulated

Balance at Balance at Due Within
July 1, 2023 Additions Reductions  June 20, 2024 One Year
$707,179 ($173,6406) $533,533 $181,246
126,973 $24,686 (275) 151,384 85,407
$834,152 $24,686 ($173,921) $684,917 $266,653
Balance at Balance at Due Within
July 1, 2022 Additions Reductions  June 20, 2023 One Year
$873,386 ($166,207) $707,179 $173,647
103,416 $38,731 (15,174) 126,973 85,682
$976,802 $38,731 ($181,381) $834,152 $259,329

amortization $390,962 and $210,518 as of June 30, 2024, and 2023, respectively.

At June 30, 2024, future minimum payments on the lease liabilities were as follows:

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2025 $181,246 $9,472 $190,718
2026 189,005 5,591 194,596
2027 163,281 1,576 164,857

$533,532 $16,639 $550,171
29

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 5 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE |

The following is the detail of intergovernmental revenues for the fiscal years ended June 30:

Federal revenue:

FTA
Section 5307 (ADA Set-Aside)
Section 5307 (Preventative Maintenance)
Section 5307 (Vehicle/Equipment purchase)
Section 5310 (Mobility Management)
Section 5311 grant (Stagecoach operating)
Section 5339 Discretionary

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service
National Park Service - Fare Revenue

Total federal revenue

State revenue:
TDA
State Transit Assistance (STA)
STA (Operations - Revenue Based)
STA (Operations - Population Based)
State of Good Repair (SGR)
State Renewable Energy Credits
Home Owner Property Tax Relief
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)

Total state revenue

Local revenue:

Measure A
Strategy 1.1 (Local)
Strategy 1.2 (Rural)
Strategy 1.3 (Special)
Strategy 1.4 (Capital)

Measure AA
Category 4.1 Bus Transit Service
Category 4.2 Rural/Recreational Bus Services
Category 4.3 Transit Services for Special Needs
Category 4.4 Bus Services to Schools
Category 4.5 Bus Transit Facilities

Measure B

Total local revenue

Total intergovernmental revenue

2024

Nonoperating Capital Total
$1,065,277 $1,065,277
284,002 284,002
$1,154,717 1,154,717
201,250 201,250
413 413
103,534 103,534
548,596 548,596
2,715 2,715
2,102,253 1,258,251 3,360,504
7,881,923 7,881,923
2,500,000 2,500,000
2,736,693 2,736,693
9,997 9,997
7,579 7,579
18,361 18,361
11,110 11,110
192 192
13,144,748 21,107 13,165,855
712,000 712,000
57,672 57,672
173,194 173,194
115,522 115,522
12,637,595 12,637,595
926,812 926,812
2,830,506 2,830,506
1,360,084 1,360,084
103,459 884,288 987,747
793,675 793,675
19,594,997 999,810 20,594,807
$34,841,998 $2,279,168 $37,121,166

30



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 5 - INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE (Continued) |

Federal revenue:

FTA
Section 5307 (ADA Set-Aside)
Section 5307 (Preventative Maintenance)
Section 5307 (Vehicle/Equipment purchase)
Section 5307 (ARPA)
Section 5310 (Mobility Management)
Section 5311 grant (Stagecoach operating)
Section 5311 (ARPA)

United States Department of the Interior
National Park Service
National Park Service - Fare Revenue

Total federal revenue

State revenue:
TDA
State Transit Assistance (STA)
STA (Operations - Revenue Based)
STA (Operations - Population Based)
STA (Operations - Population Based - Clipper)
State Renewable Energy Credits
Home Owner Property Tax Relief
Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)
California Department of Transportation (Caltrans)

Total state revenue

Local revenue:

Measure A
Strategy 1.1 (Local)
Strategy 1.2 (Rural)
Strategy 1.3 (Special)
Strategy 1.4 (Capital)

Measure AA
Category 4.1 Bus Transit Service
Category 4.2 Rural/Recreational Bus Services
Category 4.3 Transit Services for Special Needs
Category 4.4 Bus Services to Schools
Category 4.5 Bus Transit Facilities

Measure B

Total local revenue

Total intergovernmental revenue

2023

Nonoperating Capital Total
$1,039,640 $1,039,640
239,570 239,570
$106,360 106,360
3,589,664 3,589,664
9,330 9,330
297,303 297,303
246,000 246,000
521,982 521,982
82,332 82,332
6,025,821 106,360 6,132,181
10,909,658 10,909,658
1,500,000 1,500,000
1,521,034 1,521,034
6,915 6,915
18,298 18,298
40,988 40,988
206 206
13,956,111 40,988 13,997,099
680,000 680,000
55,080 55,080
165,410 165,410
280,123 1,264,617 1,544,740
4,579,793 4,579,793
1,131,141 1,131,141
2,594,817 2,594,817
1,098,029 1,098,029
98,966 1,529,391 1,628,357
825,311 825,311
11,508,670 2,794,008 14,302,678
$31,490,602 $2,941,356 $34,431,958

31



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 6 — RETIREMENT AND OTHER POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS |

The District contributes to the Marin County Transit District Governmental 401(a) single employer defined
contribution pension plan (the 401(a) Plan) for its employees who have attained twenty-one years of age
and have more than 1,000 hours of service. The Plan is administered by the District.

Benefit terms, including contribution requirements, for the 401(a) Plan are established and may be amended
by the District’s Board. For each employee in the 401(a) Plan at the end of the 401(a) Plan year, the District
is required to contribute 10% to 15% of annual salary, exclusive of overtime, to individual employee
accounts. Employees are not permitted to make contributions to the 401(a) Plan. For the fiscal years ended
June 30, 2024, and 2023, the District recognized pension expense of $303,697 and $280,324, respectively.

Employees are fully vested in employer contributions after six months of service. Non-vested District
contributions are forfeited upon termination. Such forfeitures are first used to pay 401(a) Plan
administrative expenses and any remaining forfeitures are used to reduce the required future employer
contribution. There were no forfeitures for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023.

The District provides a Section 457 deferred compensation plan (Section 457 Plan) to its employees.
Employees are allowed to contribute to the Section 457 Plan, but the District does not contribute to the
Section 457 Plan. The District does not currently provide other postemployment benefits (OPEB) to
employees.

The District also contracted with the County and an independent entity called Local Government Services
(LGS) for staffing until all contract employees were hired by the District during the fiscal year ended June
30, 2014. Pension and OPEB benefits were available to County and LGS contract employees. The District
does not currently have a contract with the County that defines responsibility for OPEB benefits for County
employees used by the District that may be payable upon separation. However, all former County
employees retired or left the County’s and District’s service and the District does not believe a separation
liability is applicable to the District. The contract with LGS stated that LGS is responsible for OPEB
benefits for its employees used by the District. Refer to Note 7 for the pension plan for LGS contract
employees.

NOTE 7 - PENSION PLAN |

A. General Information about the Pension Plan
Plan Description and Benefits Provided
The Marin County Transit District Service Credit Retirement Plan (the Plan) is a closed single
employer pension plan sponsored by the District for the benefit of leased employees who provided

services to the District. The Plan covers employees that worked between November 2006 and
October 2013. The Plan also does not issue a stand-alone financial report.

32

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN (Continued) |

A. General Information about the Pension Plan (Continued)

The Plan’s provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2024, are summarized as follows:

All Members
Benefit Formula 2% @ 55
Benefit Vesting Schedule 5 years service
Benefit Payments monthly for life
Retirement Age 50
Monthly Benefits, as a Percentage of Eligible Compensation 1.426% - 2.418%
Required Employee Contribution Rates N/A
Required Employer Contribution Rates N/A

Employees Covered by Benefit Terms

At June 30, 2024, the following employees were covered by the benefit terms.

2024
Retirees and Beneficiaries Currently Receiving Benefits
Vested Inactives Entitled to Deferred Annuity Benefits 4
Non-Vested Inactives who may Become Entitled to Deferred Annuity Benefits 1
Active Employees
Total 5

Contributions

Employer contributions to the Plan are actuarially determined using the Entry-Age Normal
Actuarial Cost Method (level % of pay). Under this method, any unfunded liability is amortized on
an open basis in level dollar installments over 15 years beginning on July 1, 2020.

33
Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN (Continued) |

B. Net Pension (Asset) Liability

The total pension liability was determined by a roll forward of results from an actuarial valuation

as of June 30, 2024, using the following actuarial assumptions:

Rates from the 2021 CALPERS Experience Study, Public Agency Miscellaneous, that vary by
entry age and service. 2.80% Wage inflation was added to the following sample rates:

Valuation Date June 30, 2024
Measurement Date June 30, 2024
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal (level % of pay)
Actuarial Assumptions:
Discount Rate 6.00%
Inflation 2.50%
Payroll Growth Rates fromthe 2021 CalPERS Experience
Study, Public Agency Miscellaneous
Pre-Retirement Mortality None
Post-Retirement Mortality Rates fromthe 2021 CalPERS Experience

Study, PA Misc, Healthy Retiree Mortality

Service Rate
0 6.2%
3 3.8%
5 2.8%
10 1.3%
15 1.0%
20 0.8%
25 0.7%
30 0.5%

Long-Term Expected Rate of Return

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using best-
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) for each major asset class. These ranges are combined to produce
the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected future real rates of return by the
target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. The assumed asset allocation
and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class included in the Plan’s

asset allocation as of June 30, 2024, are summarized in the following table:

34

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN (Continued) |

B.

Net Pension (Asset) Liability (Continued)

Long-Term

Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return
Cash/Short Bond 10% -0.04%
Core Bond 10% 2.20%
High Yield Bond 10% 3.94%
Large Cap Equity 20% 4.75%
Small/Mid Cap Equity 25% 5.12%
International Equity 16% 5.15%
Specialty - Energy 10% 2.34%

Total 101%

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.00 percent. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made
at the current actuarially determined contribution rate. Based on those assumptions, the pension
plan’s fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit
payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total

pension liability.

Changes in the Net Pension (Asset) Liability

The changes in the net pension (asset) liability for the Plan are as follows:

Balance at July 1, 2023

Changes on the Year:
Employer Contributions
Interest on the Total Pension Liability
Changes in Assumptions
Difference between expected and actual
Other Liability Experience (Gain)/Loss
Administrative Expenses
Net Investment Income

Net Changes

Balance at June 30, 2024

Increase (Decrease)

Total Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Pension

Liability Net Position (Asset) Liability

$474,653 $319,012 $155,641
26,011 (26,011)

28,479 28,479
(43,704) (43,704)
(7,750) 7,750
33,444 (33,444)
(15,225) 51,705 (66,930)

$459,428 $370,717 $88,711

35

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 7 — PENSION PLAN (Continued) |

C.

Changes in the Net Pension (Asset) Liability (Continued)

Sensitivity of the District’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension (Asset) Liability to Changes in
the Discount Rate

The following presents the net pension (asset) liability of the Plan, calculated using the discount
rate of 6.00 percent, as well as the net pension (asset) liability calculated using a discount rate that
is 1.0 percentage point lower (5.00%), and 1.0 percentage point higher (7.00%) than the current
rate:

1% Decrease Current Rate 1% Increase
5.00% 6.00% 7.00%
Net Pension Liability $203,946 $88,711 $538

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separate
financial report.

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions
For the year ended June 30, 2024, the District recognized pension expense of $40,401 At June 30,
2024, the District reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related

to pensions from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows

of Resources of Resources
Difference Between Actual and Expected Experience $24,907 $30,540
Changes in Assumptions 18,114
Net Difference between Projected and Actual
Earnings on Plan Investments 11,858
Total $54,879 $30,540

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions will be recognized in pension expense as follows:

Measurement Period Ended June 30

2024 $23,853

2025 10,895

2026 (7,658)

2027 (2,751)

Total $24,339
36

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES |

Commitments

The District has the following commitments as of June 30:

Contractor Purpose 2024 2023

Arntz Builders Construction - 600 Rush Landing $273,854
A-Z Bus Sales Purchase 10 Accessible Vans 975,422
Bauer's Intelligent Transportation Muir Woods Shuttle Operations $892,056 683,892
Bauer's Intelligent Transportation Ross Valley Yellow Bus Program 2,400,000 2,400,000
Bender Rosenthal Real Estate Appraisal Services 50,000
BKF Engineers Design, Engineering & PS&E for 3010/3020 Kerner Blvd 89,349 123,180
Blink Tag Website Support 210,000 132,785
Brave New Day On Call Graphics 100,000
Carpi & Clay Federal Advocacy Services Agreement 110,000 172,500
CBRE Valuation & Advisory Services Real Estate Appraisal Services 50,000
Clean Solutions Services, Inc. Bus Stop Maintenance 362,000
Consolidated Printers, Inc. Riders Guide Printing and Distribution 75,600
Eugene Burger Management Corporation 72,300
Fehr & Peers On Call Graphics 75,000
FirstNet On Board Data Services Plan 92,088
Gillig Purchase 4 - 35ft Hybrid buses and 3 - 40ft Hybrid buses 6,326,742 6,326,742
Golden Gate Bridge, Highway &
Transportation District Local fixed route service 13,859,962 36,291,750
Kimley-Horn and Associates Inc. On Call Planning Consulting Services 163,612 884,966
Lyft CAR Voucher Agreement 59,206
Marin Airporter Shuttle and fixed route services 14,628,373 28,361,719
Mark Thomas General Engineering Services 469,084 1,114,413
North Bay Taxi Taxi Voucher Program and Catch-A-Ride Pilot Agreement 338,000 235,000
Paragon Partners Consultants, Inc. Relocation & Specialty Appraisal Services 300,000
Park Engineering, Inc. Property Management Services for Rush Landing, Kerner 145,310
San Rafael City Schools Measure AA School Funding 381,866 260,453
Miller Creek Measure AA School Funding 47,926 28,590
RCN Technologies Cradlepoint Routers Purchase and Installation 227,951
Resource Environmental, Inc. Demolition contract for 3010/3020 Kerner 156,000
Roebbelen Contracting Inc. Construction Management - 3010 Kerner Improvements 280,370
Sausalito Marin City Schools Measure AA School Funding 39,742 27,106
Tiburon Peninsula Traffic Relief JPA Measure AA School Funding 309,833 211,322
Tolar Manufacturing Company, Inc. Purchase Eight Bus Shelters 75,273
Transdev Services, Inc. Marin Access Service Operations 5,689,679 18,926,119
TransTrack Solutions Data Management Platform 77,530
TripSpark/Trapeze Maintenance & Hosting Services for Demand Response 97,178
Uber Technologies Inc CAR Voucher Agreement 71,000 180,000
Verizon On Board Data Services Plan 92,088

$48,415,118  $97,609,813

Contingencies

The District receives grants from federal and state agencies that are subject to compliance audits by the
awarding agency. No such audits occurred during the fiscal year and the District’s management does not
believe that any such audits would result in material disallowed costs. However, it is possible that ineligible

costs could be identified during any such audits in the future.

37

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 8 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (Continued) |

The District contracted with LGS (LGS, a Joint Powers Authority) for employees from May 1, 2010,
through October 15, 2013. The contract required LGS to take responsibility for any pension benefits of
LGS employees used by the District and LGS made contributions to the California Public Employees
Retirement System (CalPERS) on their behalf. In June 2017, the District was made aware that CalPERS
found that LGS incorrectly enrolled six of the individuals employed by LGS and used by the District into
CalPERS membership. Due to this determination, it is unknown whether the employees will be allowed to
retain CalPERS service credits and the status of previously made pension contributions/responsibility for
any unfunded pension liability for the employees is in question. The District is working with LGS and
CalPERS to explore options for retaining CalPERS service credits and other alternatives for the six current
and/or former employees. The ultimate resolution of this matter is currently unknown.

The District is a party to claims arising in the normal course of business. The District’s management and
legal counsel are of the opinion that the ultimate liability, if any, arising from these claims will not have a
material adverse impact of the financial position of the District.

Concentrations

A significant portion of the District’s contracted transit services are provided by three transit contractors.
A change in these relationships could have a significant impact on the District.

The District receives a substantial percentage of its revenue from sales tax, fuel tax, and property tax,
including TDA, STA, and Measure A revenue. A significant change in these revenue sources could have a
significant impact on the District’s operations.

NOTE 9 - OTHER STAFF GRANTS |

Low Carbon Transit Operations Program (LCTOP)

The LCTOP was established by the California Legislature in 2014 by Senate Bill (SB) 862. The LCTOP
provides funds to transit agencies to reduce greenhouse gas emission and improve mobility through
operating and capital grants. Projects approved for LCTOP will support bus or rail services, or expand
intermodal transit facilities, and may include equipment acquisition, fueling, maintenance, and other costs
to operate those services or facilities, with each project reducing greenhouse gas emissions.

During the year ended June 30, 2023, District received the grant amount of $677,208 for the EV vehicle
and charging infrastructure. During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District earned interest of
$36,348 and $8,003, respectively, on deposits on unspent LCTOP funds. During the years ended June 30,
2024, and 2023, the District disbursed $5,567 and $0, respectively.

During the year ended June 30, 2024, the grant amount for grant amount of installation of solar panels to
support EV charging was $809,818. The District earned interest of $20,950 on deposits on unspent LCTOP
funds. The District disbursed $5,543 during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.

As of June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District has $1,533,212 and $685,211, respectively, in unspent LCTOP
funds.

38

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 9 - OTHER STAFF GRANTS (Continued) |

Cumulative receipts and disbursements for the years ended June 30, 2024, and 2023, are as follows:

Accumulated Accumulated Accumulated Unexpended
Grant Allocations Interest Amounts at
Project Name Amount Received Received Expended June 30, 2024
Installation of Solar Panels to
support EV Charging $809,815 $809,815 $20,950 ($5,543) $825,222
EV Vehicle & Charging
infrastructure 677,208 677,208 36,348 (5,566) 707,990
Total $1,487,023 $1,487,023 $57,298 ($11,109) $1,533,212
Accumulated ~ Accumulated Accumulated ~ Unexpended
Grant Allocations Interest Amounts at
Project Name Amount Received Received Expended June 30, 2023
Four Electric Vehicles $1,338,884 $1,338,884 $17,220 ($1,356,104) $0
EV Vehicle & Charging
infrastructure 677,208 677,208 8,003 685,211
Total $2,016,092 $2,016,092 $25,223 ($1,356,104) $685,211

State of Good Repair (SGR)

The Road Repair and Accountability Act of 2017, SB 1 (Chapter 5, Statutes of 2017), signed by the
Governor on April 28, 2017, includes a program that will provide additional revenues for transit
infrastructure repair and service improvements. This investment in public transit will be referred to as the
State of Good Repair program. In the fiscal years ending June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District was allocated
$261,606 and $252,014 in SGR funds, respectively. During the years ended June 30, 2024 and 2023, the
District earned interest of $26,567 and $4,287, respectively, on deposits of unspent SGR funds. The District

disbursed $9,997 during fiscal year ended June 30, 2024.

At June 30, 2024 and 2023, the District had $712,476 and $456,687, respectively, in unexpended funds.

Cumulative receipts and disbursements for the years ended June 30, 2024, and 2023, are as follows:

Accumulated ~ Accumulated Accumulated Unexpended
Funding Grant Allocations Interest Amounts at

Project Name Year Amount Received Received Expended June 30, 2024
35ft Vehicle Replacements FY24 $261,606 $200,547 $2,077 $202,624
35ft Vehicle Replacements FY23 252,014 252,014 11,505 263,519
35ft Vehicle Replacements FY22 243,345 243,345 12,985 ($9,997) 246,333
Total State of Good Repair $756,965 $695,906 $26,567 ($9,997) $712,476
Accumulated Accumulated  Accumulated Unexpended

Funding Grant Allocations Interest Amounts at
Project Name Year Amount Received Received Expended June 30, 2023
35ft Vehicle Replacements FY23 $252,014 $209,055 $1,348 $210,403
35ft Vehicle Replacements FY22 243,345 243,345 2,939 246,284
Total State of Good Repair $495,359 $452,400 $4,287 $456,687
39

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 10 - RISK MANAGEMENT |

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to, and destruction of assets;
injuries to employees; errors and omissions; and natural disasters. The risk of loss is managed by requiring
contract operators to indemnify and hold harmless the District as well as maintain minimum specified levels
of coverage. Additional coverage is provided by the County for errors and omissions, injuries to employees,
and natural disaster. The District’s insurance coverage is carried through California State Association of
Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC) in pooled programs and through a commercial insurance
carrier.

CSAC is a public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program
for counties located throughout California. The purpose of CSAC is to spread the adverse effects of losses
among the member entities and to purchase excess insurance as a group. The District’s general liability
insurance limit through CSAC was $25,000,000 with a $25,000 deductible at both June 30, 2024 and 2023.
The District’s claims have not exceeded the maximum insurance coverage, and there have been no
reductions in insurance limits during the past three fiscal years.

The District is not directly responsible for liabilities of CSAC and only has a residual equity interest in
CSAC that would result in the District’s proportional share of residual assets being distributed to the District
or its proportional share of additional premiums being required to be paid to CSAC if assets are not adequate
to satisfy liabilities, if any, if the members vote to terminate CSAC. The financial statements of CSAC are
available at CSAC’s office at: 75 Iron Point Circle, Folsom, California 95630 or at www.csac-eia.org.

| NOTE 11 - TRANSPORTATION DEVELOPMENT ACT COMPLIANCE REQUIREMENTS

Transit operators are required to either meet a TDA funding limit of 50% of total expenses or maintain a
minimum required fare revenue to operating expenses ratio in order to be eligible for TDA funding. The
District’s direct allocation of STA revenue meets the 50% expenditure limitation under TDA Section 99268,
thereby making the District exempt from fare revenue ratio requirements.

NOTE 12 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS |

The District’s Board includes members of the governing bodies of the County and the City of Novato, the
City of Mill Valley, and City of San Rafael (the Cities). The District has various transactions with the
County, Cities, and other agencies that have City and County governing body representatives on their
governing bodies.

Receivables from Golden Gate and TAM are listed on the face of the Statement of Net Position. TDA and
STA revenues listed in Note 5 are received from Golden Gate as well as various FTA and state grants.
Measure A and Measure B revenues listed in Note 5 are received from TAM.

40

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For The Years Ended June 30, 2024 and 2023

NOTE 12 —RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) |

The following table represents revenues, expenses, accounts payable, and unearned revenue to related
agencies not separately reported in the Statements of Net Position and Statements of Activities and Changes
in Net Position or Note 5:

41

2024 2023
Revenues from related parties:
Golden Gate:

Fares $1,273,308 $1,294,465

Paratransit contribution 668,028 682,849

Regional Paratransit Payment 800,005 525,969

Advertising 48,324 137,330

Other revenues 11,792 66,590

Total revenues from related parties $2,801,457 $2,707,203

Expenses to related parties:
Golden Gate - transit contract

Local transit service operations $12,939,929  $12,138,211

Vehicle repairs

Capital costs 19,941 17,036
County of Marin - fuel 851,678 891,205
County of Marin - other expenses 45,929 42,480
Marin Emergency Radio Authority - emergency radio system 33,742 26,935
Metropolitan Transportation Commission - clipper 32,487 21,276

Total expenses to related parties $13,923,706  $13,137,143
Golden Gate:

Transit contract $1,933,035 $1,819,439
County of Marin - miscellaneous 237,143 212,867
Metropolitan Transportation Commission - Clipper 9,968 7,723
Other Government Agencies 400

Total accounts payable to related parties $2,180,546 $2,040,029




Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN THE NET PENSION ASSET (LIABILITY) AND RELATED
RATIOS
FOR THE LAST 10 YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024*

Measurement Measurement Measurement Measurement
Period 2023/24 Period 2022/23 Period 2021/22 Period 2020/21
Total Pension Liability
Interest on Total Pension Liability $28,479 $26,367 $19,718 $18,515
Changes in Benefits Terms 67,432
Differences between Expected and Actual Experience (43,704) 72,196
Changes in Assumptions 52,512
Net change in Total Pension Liability ($15,225) 26,867 144,426 85,947
Total Pension Liability - Beginning $474,653 447,786 303,360 217,413
Total Pension Liability - Ending (a) $459,428 $474,653 $447.786 $303,360

Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Contributions -Employer $26,011 $36,925 $10,333
Contributions - Employee
Net investment income ($38,312) 9,590
Administrative Expenses (7,750) (7,750) (7,750) (10,333)
Investment Experience (Loss)/Gain 33,444 20,492 81,140
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 51,705 49,667 (46,062) 90,730
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 319,012 269,345 315,407 224,677
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Ending (b) $370,717 $319,012 $269,345 $315,407
Net Pension (Asset) Liability - Ending [(a) - (b)] $88,711 $155,641 $178,441 ($12,047)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of the

Total Pension Liability 80.69% 67.21% 60.15% 103.97%
Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A

Net Pension (Asset) Liability as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A

* Fiscal year 2021 was the Ist year of implementation

45
Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
FOR THE LAST 10 YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

June 30, 2024

June 30,2023 June 30, 2022  June 30, 2021

Actuarial Determined Contributions $26,011 $27,557 $9,368
Contributions in Relation to the Actuarially
Determined Contributions 26,011 36,925 $10,333
Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $0 ($9,368) $9,368 ($10,333)
Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A
Contributions as a Percentage of
Covered Payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A
Notes to Schedule:
Valuation Date June 30, 2024

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates:

Actuarial Cost Method
Asset Valuation Method
Amortization Method and Period

Investment Rate of Return
Salary Scale

Pre-Retirement Mortality
Post-Retirement Mortality

46

Entry Age Normal (level % of pay)
Market Value

Open, level dollar, 15 years starting
7/1/20

6%
2.8% wage inflation, plus rates
varying by entry age

None assumed.

Rates from the 2021 CALPERS
Experience Study, PA Misc.,
Healthy Retiree and Beneficiary
Mortality Tables

Iltem 6



Attachment A

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - OPERATIONS
BUDGETARY BASIS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
REVENUES

Fare Revenue $3,367,118 $3,367,118 $3,489,555 $122,437
Advertising & Other Revenue 60,000 60,000 48,325 (11,675)
Fee for Service 1,441,552 1,441,552 1,493,935 52,383
Interest 90,700 90,700 922,103 831,403
Measure A 942,869 942,869 942,866 3)
Measure AA 17,703,716 17,703,716 17,754,997 51,281
Measure B 895,000 895,000 793,674 (101,326)
Property Taxes 5,682,781 5,682,781 5,909,281 226,500
Redevelopment Area (RDA) Fees 67,500 67,500 84,675 17,175
State Transit Assistance (STA) 5,158,794 5,158,794 5,245,116 86,322
Transit Development Act (TDA) 7,881,923 7,881,923 7,881,923
Other State 32,300 32,300 26,132 (6,168)
FTA Funds 1,681,360 1,681,360 1,550,942 (130,418)
National Park Service 655,985 655,985 548,596 (107,389)
Cost Center Revenue Transfers (1,796,134) (1,796,134) (4,003) 1,792,131

Total revenues 43,865,464 43,865,464 46,688,117 2,822,653

EXPENDITURES

Salaries and Benefits 3,523,449 3,523,449 3,317,126 (206,323)
Consultant Services 654,585 654,585 622,871 (31,714)
Professional Service-Legal 150,000 150,000 27,563 (122,437)
Security and Maintenance 272,628 272,628 195,017 (77,611)
Customer Service
Mobility Management Support Programs 63,113 63,113 6,472 (56,641)
Grants to External Agencies 758,571 758,571 771,899 13,328
Office Supplies 398,997 398,997 349,611 (49,386)
Covid Cleaning and Supplies
General Insurance 122,000 122,000 125,419 3,419
Contract Service Operation 32,701,974 33,551,974 32,699,205 (852,769)
Membership & Prof Development 88,065 88,065 73,978 (14,087)
Mileage and Travel 25,750 25,750 23,933 (1,817)
Marketing 167,483 167,483 105,570 (61,913)
Communication 255,623 255,623 171,859 (83,764)
Fuel 3,662,108 3,662,108 2,948,794 (713,314)
Utilities 68,032 68,032 55,363 (12,669)
Vehicle Leases 32,556 32,556 27,130 (5,426)
Office - Rental and Overhead 189,479 189,479 186,839 (2,641)
Cost Center Transfers (194,600) (194,600) (171,566) 23,034

Total expenditures 42,939,813 43,789,813 41,537,083 (2,252,731)
Excess (Deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures $925,651 $75,651 $5,151,035 $5,075,384

49

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - CAPITAL PROGRAM

BUDGETARY BASIS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

REVENUES

Measure A sales tax - capitalized
Measure A sales tax - interest
Measure AA sales tax

Measure AA sales tax - capitalized
State Transit Assistance - SGA

State- Low Carbon Transit Operations Program

Fed-FTA 5307 Urbanized Area Formula
Fed-FTA 5339 Discretionary

Sale of Assets

Property Tax Transfer

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Vehicles

Purchase 4 40 ft Electric

Hybrid Battery Refresh

Hybrid Battery Replacement

7 35 ft Hybrids

Non Revenue Vehicle

Replace 5 paratransit vehicles

Paratransit Electric Vehicles

Replace 5 paratransit vehicles (2022)
Facilities and Stops

Novato Bus Stops

ADA Bus Stop Improvements

Capital Corridor Improvements
Facility

Kemer Facility Improvements

Parking Facility ROW

Fixed Route Facility

Kerner Parking Facility Improvements

Facility - Kerner Driver Break Room

Facility Improvements

Yellow Bus Parking/Facility
Technology Projects

On Board Vehicle Equipment
Ongoing Capital Expenses

Bus stop maintenance

Golden Gate capital costs

Infrastructure support

Major vehicle repairs

Total expenditures

Deficiency of revenues (under) expenditures

Original Final Variance with
Budget Budget Actual Final Budget
$115,522 $115,522 $115,522
1,100,000 1,100,000 ($1,100,000)

18,000 18,000 103,459 85,459

1,217,749 1,540,958 884,288 (656,670)

756,088 756,088 9,997 (746,091)
1,328,955 1,482,728 11,110 (1,471,618)
8,475,209 9,329,469 1,154,717 (8,174,752)
103,534 103,534
54,799 54,799
1,436,134 1,960,807 4,003 (1,956,804)
14,447,657 16,303,572 2,441,429 (13,862,143)
600,000 948 599,052
6,422,474 6,421,111 39,573 6,381,538
496,594 497,687 498,076 (389)
673,208 672,913 5,567 667,346
509,500 510,562 506,139 4,423
52,052 50,143 285 49,858
1,477,288 1,441,679 99,694 1,341,985
500,000 500,000 78,245 421,755
300,000 300,000 209,444 90,556
1,848,537 3,414,041 349,996 3,064,045
650,000 650,000 650,000
319,432 317,790 1,642
3,000,000 3,000,000 3,000,000
18,000 18,000 19,941 (1,941)
200,000 200,000 225,391 (25,391)
200,000 200,000 49,246 150,754
16,347,653 18,795,568 2,400,335 16,395,233
($1,899,996)  ($2,491,996) $41,094 ($30,257,376)

50



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULE - RECONCILIATION TO
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Excess of revenues over expenditures - budgetary basis (operations) $5,151,035
Deficiency of revenues under expenditures - budgetary basis (capital program) 41,094

Amounts not budgeted:

Capital asset additions (1,895,261)

Depreciation and amortization expense (896,201)

Lease addition (180,440)

Lease liability addition to budget 173,647

Defined Benefit Plan (14,396)

Increase in net position $2.379.477
51

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

STATISTICAL SECTION

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

STATISTICAL SECTION

This section of the Marin County Transit District’s (the District) Annual Comprehensive Financial Report
presents detailed information as a context for understanding what the information in the financial statements,
note disclosures, and required supplementary information says about the District’s overall health.

Contents Pages

Financial Trends

This segment contains trend information to help the reader understand how the District’s
financial performance and well-being have changed over time............ccceceeevinininincnirececeeee 56-58

Revenue Capacity

This segment includes information to help the reader assess the District’s most significant
own-source revenues: passenger fares and Property taXES. .....cveeveverrerrererrerieressessesessesesessessessessensens 59-64

Debt Capacity
This segment presents information intended to assist the reader in understanding and
assessing the District’s current level of outstanding debt and its ability to issue additional

AEDE TN ThE TULUTE. ...ttt e e e e et e e e e e e et e eeeseasateeeesesaaeeessessaeesssasasaeessan 65-66

Economic and Demographic Information

This segment depicts county-wide demographic and economic indicators to help the
reader understand the environment within which the District’s financial activities take place. ........... 67-68

Operating Information

These schedules contain information about the District’s operations and resources
to help the reader understand how the District’s financial information relates to the
services the District provides and the activities it Performs...........coeereeererrenienierneeeeeseeeeee 69-73

55

Iltem 6



9¢

Attachment A

Net investment in
capital assets

Restricted
net position

Unrestricted
net position

Total net position

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

STATISTICAL SECTION
FINANCIAL TRENDS
SCHEDULE OF NET POSITION
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

$ 8665148 $ 19166232 $ 20,849921 $ 20085919 $ 28758459 § 40,142,892 § 40,895229 $ 46378,836 $ 48,674,795 § 45,876,537
- 307,027 31,624 - - - . - . )

11,847,226 15,421,852 19,402,481 23,136,349 27,234,152 32,012,829 36,786,818 35,579,756 36,261,158 41,438,893

$ 20512374 S 34895111 $ 40284026 § 52222268 $ 55992.611 § 72155721 $ 77.682,047 $ 81,958,592 $§ 84935953 $ 87,315430

Iltem 6



LS

Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

FINANCIAL TRENDS
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
OPERATING REVENUES
Transit fares $ 3,669,514  § 3,586,587 $ 3,528,289  §$ 3,570,143 $ 3,303,234 §$ 2,664,354  § 1,456,012  $ 2,494,806 $ 2,986,759  $ 3,164,763
Contractual compensation 1,950,099 2,028,796 1,765,230 1,830,716 1,834,761 1,778,963 1,291,815 1,607,414 1,220,388 1,479,825
Special fares - 250,798 269,244 265,509 279,819 225,860 193,008 258,493 291,465 330,501
School bus revenues - 130,000 145,000 145,000 145,000 151,010 - 46,112 43,526 14,110
Advertising] - - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL OPERATING
REVENUES 5,619,613 5,996,181 5,707,763 5,811,368 5,562,814 4,820,187 2,940,835 4,406,825 4,542,138 4,989,199
OPERATING EXPENSES
Purchased transportation services 21,888,029 20,461,632 21,422,651 22,698,220 24,245,772 24,614,822 23,220,993 24,818,237 29,353,390 32,436,525
Depreciation and amortization 917,002 1,753,960 2,387,889 2,908,165 3,549,062 4,119,852 4,479,124 4,784,362 4,774,382 5,119,722
Salaries and benefits 1,327,913 1,631,669 1,973,470 1,881,194 2,099,316 2,420,797 2,435,258 2,527,315 2,970,674 3,255,548
Fuel 1,291,857 1,619,444 1,818,940 2,161,545 2,521,502 2,112,076 1,891,121 2,997,169 2,902,027 2,948,794
Professional services 554,304 1,003,065 1,177,446 1,440,732 1,340,332 1,352,263 1,571,188 1,696,700 602,754 665,125
General and administrative 129,360 179,181 199,985 244,554 223,930 314,814 345,271 411,724 461,010 727,186
Utilities 91,016 106,949 116,578 98,832 64,639 149,744 193,029 205,875 215,512 194,418
Marketing 114,660 127,154 114,823 150,501 116,677 126,142 96,231 56,052 127,998 105,570
Leases and rentals 92,236 94,469 96,668 47,873 126,723 137,817 140,532 143,874 26,210 27,130
Other services 66,654 61,792 51,035 26,214 50,069 48,090 23,115 51,120 26,935 33,742
Casualty and liability costs 29,444 29,580 18,083 31,526 31,798 48,404 66,488 79,764 96,077 128,991
Maintenance costs 89,988 15,961 10,448 19,195 5,575 14,578 39,422 167,280 233,618 166,482
Capital costs 330,949 109,393 9,085 98,034 17,893 (3,557) 16,696 20,455 17,036 19,941
Contract labor® - - - - - - - - - -
TOTAL OPERATING
EXPENSES 26,923,412 27,194,249 29,397,101 31,806,585 34,393,288 35,455,842 34,518,468 37,959,927 41,807,623 45,829,174
OPERATING LOSS $  (21,303,799) $ (21,198,068) $ (23,689,338) $ (25,995217) $ (28,830,474) $ (30,635,655) $ (31,577,633) $ (33,553,102) $ (37,265,485) §  (40,839,975)

Iltem 6



8¢

Attachment A

NONOPERATING REVENUES
(EXPENSES)
Intergovernmental revenue
Property tax revenue
Advertising]
Rental income
Interest income
Miscellaneous income
Interest Expense
Other revenues/gain (loss) on
disposal of capital assets
Pass through of Measure A to
Golden Gate

TOTAL NONOPERATING
REVENUES (EXPENSES)

INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE
CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS

CAPITAL CONTRIBUTIONS
Intergovernmental revenue
Other revenue

TOTAL CAPITAL
CONTRIBUTIONS

CHANGE IN NET POSITION

Net position at beginning of year
Prior period adjustment

Net position at beginning of year,
as restated

NET POSITION AT END
OF YEAR

STATISTICAL SECTION

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

FINANCIAL TRENDS
STATEMENTS OF ACTIVITIES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION (Continued)
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
$ 19,097,503 19,069,595 20,529,158 22,142,502 $ 24,340,749 25,660,130 $ 26,303,660 26,855,061 31,490,602 34,841,998
3,611,357 3,848,219 4,111,657 4,321,194 4,561,268 4,803,083 5,025,293 5,382,566 5,705,817 5,993,956
283,443 229,202 245,018 280,788 240,960 237,238 201,573 232,513 227,233 48,324
- 157,712 152,772 158,256 172,018 282,930 337,195 320,663 93,189 1
9,816 14,044 51,968 118,552 198,695 353,736 125,929 14,463 285,138 922,091
2,134 - - - - - - - - -
- - - - - - - (1,552) (16,753) (13,191)
- 88,571 1,102 2,093 - - 110,250 32,281 30,870 (80,996)
- (85,000) (85,000) (85,000) (85,000) (85,000) (232,085) (591,935) (514,606) (771,899)
23,004,253 23,322,343 25,006,675 26,938,385 29,428,690 31,252,117 31,871,815 32,244,060 37,301,490 40,940,284
1,700,454 2,124,275 1,317,337 943,168 598,216 616,462 294,182 (1,309,042) 36,005 100,309
2,374,093 12,250,751 4,038,739 10,979,056 3,126,499 15,495,044 5,225,566 5,563,381 2,941,356 2,279,168
- 7711 32,839 16,018 45,628 51,604 6,578 22,206 - -
2,374,093 12,258,462 4,071,578 10,995,074 3,172,127 15,546,648 5,232,144 5,585,587 2,941,356 2,279,168
4,074,547 14,382,737 5,388,915 11,938,242 3,770,343 16,163,110 5,526,326 4,276,545 2,977,361 2,379,477
16,437,827 20,512,374 34,895,111 40,284,026 52,222,268 55,992,611 72,155,721 77,682,047 81,958,592 84,935,953
16,437,827 20,512,374 34,895,111 40,284,026 52,222,268 55,992,611 72,155,721 77,682,047 81,958,592 84,935,953
$ 20512374 34,895,111 40,284,026 52222268 $ 55992611 72,155,721 $ 77,682,047 81,958,592 84,935,953 87,315,430

! Advertising revenue re-classified from Operating to Nonoperating Revenue beginning FY 13.
% Labeled "Staff Compensation" from FY09 to FY'12.

Iltem 6



6S

Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

REVENUE CAPACITY
PASSENGER AND FARE DATA
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
Fare revenue ' $ 3,669,514 $ 3,837,385 § 3,797,533 § 4,044,536 $ 4,024,376 $ 3,233,297 $ 1,654,777 $ 2,931,085 $ 3,359,930 $ 3,489,555
Passengers’ 3,464,628 3,332,265 3,216,894 3,293,385 3,263,451 2,643,771 1,485,512 2,427,606 2,841,652 3,054,393
Average fare per passenger $ 1.06 $ 1.15 $ 1.18  $ 1.23 $ 1.23 $ 122§ 1.11 $ 1.21 $ 1.18 $ 1.14

! Source: Marin Transit Budgetary Comparison Schedule - Operations

? Sources: Marin Transit Short Range Transit Plans, Monthly Monitoring & Performance Statistic Reports

Iltem 6



09

Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION
REVENUE CAPACITY
FARE STRUCTURE

AS OF JUNE 30, 2023
Category Cash Price Clipper Annual Pass 1-Day Pass 31-Day Pass
Adult $2.00 $1.80 - $5.00 $40.00
Youth (5-18) $1.00 $1.00 $325.00 ' $2.50 $40.00
Children Under 5 Free when accompanied by an adult
Seniors (65+) $1.00 $1.00 - $2.50 $20.00
Persons with Disabilities $1.00 $1.00 - $2.50 $20.00
ADA Mandated Service’ $4.00 - - - -
ADA Non-Mandated Service’ $4.00 - - - -

' Free to low income youth.

? Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) Regulations permit fares for ADA Mandated trips to be as high as $4.00.

’ ADA Regulations set no maximum for Non-Mandated ADA trips.

Muir Woods Fare Category1

Current Fare

Adult

Youth (16-18)
Youth (under 16)
Senior/Disabled
(without NPS Pass)

" National Park Service (NPS) pays additional

$1.50 per passenger

Source: www.marintransit.org

$3.75
$3.75
Free

$3.75

Iltem 6



19

Attachment A

Local Measure A half cent
sales tax revenue
Annual growth

Sales tax revenue available to

Marin Transit'
Percent of Measure A revenue
Annual growth

Sales tax reserve funds

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

STATISTICAL SECTION
REVENUE CAPACITY
COUNTY SALES TAX REVENUE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023° 2024
$ 25265790 $ 25,702,937 $§ 25,755,761 $ 27,507,852 $ 28,976,081 $ 27345662 $ 30,832,521 $ 34754393 $§ 35086472 $ 34,619,868
4.9% 1.7% 0.2% 6.8% 5.3% -5.6% 12.8% 12.7% 1.0% -1.3%
$ 12,874,175 $ 13,117917 § 13,144,538  § 13215609 $ 14,163,872 § 12,228,128 § 14,814,083 § 15,883,614 § 16,064917  $ 17,771,109
51% 51% 51% 48% 49% 45% 48% 46% 46% 51%
5.5% 1.9% 0.2% 0.5% 7.2% -13.7% 21.1% 7.2% 1.1% 4.6%
$ -8 -3 - $ 1,200,000 $ -3 -8 - 3 - 8 - $ -

'559% of Sales Tax Receipts after administrative reductions

2 L
Preliminary numbers

Source: Transportation Authority of Marin (TAM) Annual Financial Report, TAM Measure A Programming Workbook

Iltem 6



9

Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

STATISTICAL SECTION
REVENUE CAPACITY
PROPERTY TAX REVENUE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Property tax and
development fee revenue $ 3,611,357 §  3,855930 4,144,496 4,337,212 4,606,896 4,810,992 § 5,031,871 $ 5,404,772 $ 5,705,817 $ 5,993,956
Expended on operations 3,611,357 3,848,219 4,111,657 4,321,194 4,561,268 4,803,083 5,025,293 5,382,566 5,705,817 5,993,956
Expended on capital - 1,556,521 32,839 16,018 45,628 7,009 6,578 22,206 - -
Annual growth 4.7% 6.8% 7.5% 4.6% 6.2% 4.4% 4.6% 7.4% 5.6% 5.0%

Source: MCTD Audited Financial Statements

Iltem 6



€9

Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION
REVENUE CAPACITY
ASSESSED VALUATION OF TAXABLE PROPERTY IN MARIN COUNTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(IN THOUSANDS)
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

Secured ' $ 62,341,701 $ 66,718,112 § 70,952,207 $ 74,715394 $§ 78,744,004 $ 82,751,301 $ 86,556,017 $ 90,041,721 $ 95,865,532 *
Unsecured ° 1,530,991 1,556,521 1,566,336 1,610,799 1,790,104 2,029,049 2,301,065 2,317,828 2,416,430 *
Exempt ’ 2,037,580 2,067,204 2,079,024 2,157,806 2,336,693 2,619,669 2,883,830 2,990,976 3,054,567 *
Total Taxable

Assessed Value $ 61835112 § 66,207,429 § 70,439,519 $ 74,168387 § 74,168,387 § 87,400,019 § 82,160,681 $ 89,368,573 $ 95,227,395 *
Total Direct Tax Rate 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% 1.00% *
Growth Rate 5.9% 7.1% 6.4% 5.3% 5.5% 5.3% 4.6% 8.8% 6.6% *

' Secured property is generally real property, defined as land, mines, minerals, timber, and improvements such as buildings, structures, crops, trees, and vines.

? Unsecured property is generally personal property including machinery, equipment, office tools, and supplies.

} Exempt properties include numerous full and partial exclusions/exemptions provided by the State Constitution and the legislature that relieve certain tax payers from the burden of paying
property taxes.

* Unavailable

Source: Department of Finance - County of Marin, California

Iltem 6



79

Attachment A

County Direct Rate
Local Special Districts
Schools

Cities

Total Direct and
Overlapping 2

" On June 6, 1978, California voters approved a constitutional amendment to Article XIIIA of the California Constitution, commonly known as Proposition 13, which limits the taxing power of
California public agencies. Legislation enacted by the California Legislature to implement Article XIIIA (Statutes of 1978, Chapter 292, as amended) provides that, notwithstanding any other law,
local agencies may not levy property tax except to pay debt service on indebtedness approved by votes prior to July 1, 1978, and that each County will levy the maximum tax permitted by Article
XIIIA of $1 per $100 of full cash value. Full cash value is equivalent to assessed value, pursuant to Senate Bill 1656, Statutes of 1978. The rates shown above are percentages of assessed value.

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

STATISTICAL SECTION
REVENUE CAPACITY
DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY TAX RATES1 IN MARIN COUNTY
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

(RATE PER $100 OF ASSESSED VALUE)

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023
1.0000% 1.0000% 1.0000% 1.0000% 1.0000% 1.0000% 1.0000% 1.0000% 1.0000%
0.8156% 0.8200% 0.9221% 0.9041% 1.1128% 1.0045% 0.9722% 1.0163% 1.0260%
0.8000% 0.8114% 0.8506% 0.8381% 0.9108% 0.8414% 0.8291% 0.7552% 0.7643%
0.2519% 0.2510% 0.2394% 0.2353% 0.2357% 0.2252% 0.2165% 0.2225% 0.1994%
2.8675% 2.8824% 3.0121% 2.9775% 3.2593% 3.0711% 3.0178% 2.9940% 2.9897%

% These rates represent the maximum rate charged to taxpayers if all rates applied to them. In reality, the rates applicable to tax rate areas will vary at amounts lower than these totals.

* Unavailable

Source: Department of Finance - County of Marin, California

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

S9

DEBT CAPACITY
OUTSTANDING EBT BALANCES
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
Original Loan Date of
Lender Amount Loan Purpose 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
N/A N/A N/A N/A $ -8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - 8 - 3 - 3 - $

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION
OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES
LAST THREE FISCAL YEARS
IN THOUSANDS

2022 2023 2024

Compensated Absences $ 103,416 $ 126,973 $ 151,384
Lease Liabilities 873,386 707,179 533,533
Claims and Judgments - - -

Source: MCTD Note 4 of the Financial Statements

66

Iltem 6



L9

Attachment A

Population]

. . 1
Personal income (in thousands)

Per capita personal income'
School enrollment’
Unemployment rate’

Sources
1
2
3

ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC STATISTICS

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
261,054 260,651 260,955 259,666 259,085 257,332 259,162 256,018 * *
$ 29227230 S 30,222,883 § 32,502,500 $ 34,866,708 S 36,684,680 $ 37,461,199 $ 42,936,183 $ 43,824,350 * *
$ 111,959 $ 1,556,521 $ 124552 $ 134275 S 141,735 S 145575 S 165673 $ 171,177 * *
33,207 33,638 33,633 33,741 33,441 33,516 31,939 30,811 30,483 30,255
3.9% 3.4% 3.16% 2.62% 2.42% 4.48% 6.11% 3.03% 4.60% 4.20%

US Department of Commerce, Bureau of Economic Analysis - www.bea.gov
California Department of Education, Educational Demographics Olffice - www.ed-data.org/county/Marin, census day enrollment
Employment Development Department, Labor Market Information - www.labormarketinfo.edd.ca.gov

Iltem 6



89

Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION
ECONOMIC AND DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS
CURRENT YEAR AND TEN YEARS AGO

2024 2014
Percentage of Percentage of
Total County Total County
Employer Employees Employment Employer Employees Employment
BioMarin Pharmaceutical 3,082 2.43%  County of Marin 2,065 1.51%
County of Marin 2,436 1.92%  San Quentin State Prison 1,832 1.34%
San Quentin Prison 1,857 1.46%  Marin General Hospital 1,654 1.21%
Marin General Hospital 1,757 1.39%  Kaiser Permanente Medical Center 1,637 1.19%
San Rafael City Schools 1,241 0.98%  Autodesk, Inc 1,095 0.80%
Kaiser Permanente 902 0.71%  BioMarin Pharmaceutical 850 0.62%
Novato Unified School District 800 0.63%  Novato Unified School District 812 0.59%
Glassdoor Inc 706 0.56%  Fireman's Fund Insurance Co. 750 0.55%
Marin Community Clinics 550 0.43%  Lucasfilm Ltd. 400 0.29%
Marin County Office of Education 504 0.40%  Bradley Real Estate 385 0.28%
Total 13,835 10.91% 11,480 8.38%
Total County Employment 126,800 137,000

Note: When information is not available, periods that are available are provided as an alternative.

Sources:
County of Marin ACFR

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION
OPERATING INFORMATION
DISTRICT PROFILE
AS OF JUNE 30, 2023

Date the District was Formed
Form of Governance

Total Employees

Service Area

Area of District (in square miles)

Population of Service Area'

Local Financial Support

Number of Fixed Route Bus Routes
Revenue Service Hours

Average Passenger Trips per Revenue Hour
Number of Vehicles in Service

Bus Stops

" As 0f 2020 US Census Bureau

1964
Board of Directors, with General Manager
18
All of Marin County

Approximately 520

262,321
Measure A Sales Tax Revenue
20
205,201
14.0
72

600+

Source: MCTD Finance Department, FY2023 System Performance Report

69

Iltem 6



0L

Attachment A

Federal Revenue
Federal Transit Administration

United States Department of the
Interior - National Park Service

United States Department of the
Interior - NPS Fare Reimbursement

Total Federal Revenue

State Revenue

Transportation Development Act

State Transit Assistance

Public Transportation Modernization,
Improvement, and Service Enhancement
Account

State Renewable Energy Credits

Home Owner Property Tax Relief

Low Carbon Transit Operations
Program

Caltrans

Total State Revenue

Local Revenue

Measure A

Measure A Interest

Measure AA

Measure B

Metropolitan Transportation
Commission

Golden Gate Bridge Highway and
Transportation District

County of Marin

Miscellaneous

Total Local Revenue

Total Intergovernmental Revenue

Source: MCTD Audited Financial Statements

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

OPERATING INFORMATION
NONOPERATING INTERGOVERNMENTAL REVENUE BY SOURCE
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS
2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

s 1317,128 $ 901,433 $  1,065347 $ 1,151,839 $  1421,148 $ 3475476 S 9,207,534 § 8115859 §  5421,507 $ 1,550,942
168,665 150,865 89,009 154,736 323,371 370,245 14,177 290,671 521,982 548,596
- - - 187,050 406,475 113,828 2,302 71,414 205,830 2,715
1,485,793 1,052,298 1,154,356 1,493,625 2,150,994 3,959,549 9,224,013 8,477,944 6,149,319 2,102,253
4,542,050 4,562,778 4,440,516 4,614,306 5,109,399 5,225,171 3,817,097 6,565,228 10,909,658 7,881,923
1,310,912 1,316,134 1,576,690 1,285,220 1,909,202 2,047,902 1,680,205 2,600,376 3,021,034 5,236,693
- - - - - - 14,010 13,528 6,915 7,579
19,326 19,138 18,953 18,940 18,779 18,719 18,541 18,412 18,298 18,361
- 275,413 - 128,676 335,795 - - - - -
208 283 320 334 284 239 217 216 206 192
5,872,496 6,173,746 6,036,479 6,047,476 7,373,459 7,292,031 5,530,070 9,197,760 13,956,111 13,144,748
10,860,313 10,998,120 12,542,551 13,541,585 13,739,881 1,953,742 1,106,168 - 1,180,615 942,866
- 85,000 85,000 85,000 85,000 85,000 - - - -
- - - - - 11,212,364 9,529,277 8,263,882 9,502,745 17,858,456
863,617 730,335 627,198 974,816 991,415 956,702 910,679 808,354 825,310 793,675
- - - - - 30,000 - - - -
15,284 30,096 83,574 - - 170,742 3,453 107,121 - -
11,739,214 11,843,551 13,338,323 14,601,401 14,816,296 14,408,550 11,549,577 9,179,357 11,508,670 19,594,997
$ 19,097,503 $ 19,069,595 $ 20,529,158 $ 22,142,502 $ 24340749 $ 25660,130 $ 26303,660 S 26855061 $ 31,614,100 S 34,841,998

Iltem 6



Attachment A

Number of buses owned

Cost of assets:
Land
Work in progress

Revenue vehicles

Facilities and stops

Communication and data equipment
Fare revenue collection equipment
Furniture and fixtures

Administrative Buildings

Maintenance Buildings

Non-revenue vehicles

Right-to-use leased asset

Total cost of assets
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization
Net capital assets

Source: MCTD Audited Financial Statements

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

STATISTICAL SECTION

OPERATING INFORMATION

SUMMARY OF CAPITAL ASSETS

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
66 90 95 105 109 122 113 114 118 102
$ - 8 - 8 -8 - 8 - % 1550836 $ 1,550,836 $ 3,027,167 $ 6,717,174 $ 5,008,606
2,176,497 1,746,405 3,610,173 748,556 1,454,572 206,286 673,962 6,132,779 2,928,305 2,928,305
7,597,033 17,466,010 19,108,821 26,957,885 29,173,879 38,400,723 40,972,893 40,767,669 44,936,890 42,032,508
1,553,706 2,913,267 70,439,519 8,471,174 8,583,219 9,425,818 9,310,585 9,310,585 9,310,585 9,250,742
1,251,626 1,251,626 1,634,293 1,821,367 1,881,522 1,875,943 1,522,292 1,728,266 2,080,425 1,931,433
412,356 412,356 459,532 464,862 464,862 434,929 434,929 434,929 434,929 434,929
88,351 88,351 88,351 88,351 123,907 123,907 123,907 232,770 235,205 235,205
- - - - - 3,987,865 3,987,865 4,045,565 4,305,455 7,142,322
- - - - - - - 1,945,690 3,170,785 3,260,444
6,300 6,300 6,300 403,044 403,044 396,744 396,744 396,744 433,964 433,964
- - - - - - - 912,893 902,219 902,219
13,085,869 23,884,315 95,346,989 38,955,239 42,085,005 56,403,051 58,974,013 68,935,057 75,455,936 73,560,677
4,420,721 4,718,083 7,001,075 9,869,320 13,326,546 16,260,159 18,078,784 21,672,517 26,073,962 27,150,607
§ 8605148 § 19,166,232 $§ 88,345,914 § 29,085919 § 28,758,459 § 40,142,892 $ 40,895,229 § 47,262,540 $ 49,381,974 $ 4,641,070

Iltem 6



L

Attachment A

Contract Type

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION
OPERATING INFORMATION
SUMMARY OF SERVICE PROVIDER CONTRACTS
AS OF JUNE 30, 2023

Services Provided

Contractor

Current Term

Intergovernmental agreement
Competitively bid

Competitively bid
Competitively bid
Competitively bid
Competitively bid
Competitively bid
Competitively bid

Local Fixed Route

Community Shuttles and Fixed Route Service
Local Paratransit, Marin Access Shuttles, and
Volunteer Driver Program

Yellow Bus Service

Muir Woods Shuttle

Catch-A-Ride Program

Catch-A-Ride Program

Catch-A-Ride Program

Golden Gate Bridge Highway and
Transportation District
Marin Airporter

Transdev

Bauer's Intelligent Transportation
Bauer's Intelligent Transportation
North Bay Taxi

Uber

Lyft

October 1, 2022 — June 30, 2026
July 1, 2018 — June 30, 2025

February 1, 2022 — June 30,2025

August 1, 2023 — June 30, 2026
Feb 5, 2024 — November 1, 2024

July 1,2023 — June 30, 2025

May 31,2023 — May 31,2025

June 17,2024 — June 17, 2025

Iltem 6



€L

Attachment A

Motorbus:
Vehicles Operated in Annual Maximum Service (VOMS)
Vehicles Available for Annual Maximum Service

Total Actual Vehicle Revenue Miles
Total Actual Vehicle Revenue Hours

Unlinked Passenger Trips
Passenger Miles Traveled (PMT)

Days Operated
Demand Response:
Vehicles Operated in Annual Maximum Service (VOMS)

Vehicles Available for Annual Maximum Service

Total Actual Vehicle Revenue Miles
Total Actual Vehicle Revenue Hours

Unlinked Passenger Trips
ADA Unlinked Passenger Trips (UPT)
Passenger Miles Traveled (PMT)

Days Operated

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
STATISTICAL SECTION

VEHICLE OPERATING STATISTICS
LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
69 53 55 54 54 54 56 59 59 50
85 82 74 71 71 71 75 77 83 70
2,133,375 2,166,258 2,307,555 2,300,458 2,317,639 2,272,524 2,792,082 2,912,236 2,642,108 2,512,741
152,799 156,803 178,049 180,238 180,036 175,859 203,747 189,985 182,308 181,316
3,252,116 3,031,450 2,926 3,001,619 2,978,991 2,423,027 1,429,586 2,294,429 2,648,326 2,823,735
13,209,269 12,312,979 11,970,345 12,281,711 12,189,124 9,914,289 8,048,569 12,671,390 11,440,768 12,198,535
365 366 365 365 365 366 365 365 365 366
38 27 26 31 33 31 18 21 19 22
39 34 46 39 42 39 37 35 31 32
927,058 688,072 617,199 704,224 753,794 599,879 298,590 428,922 375,035 354,096
60,417 44,764 42,806 47,569 55,083 42,439 22,829 25972 21,800 23,885
137,131 98,483 93,410 98,068 108,076 86,049 31,166 51,300 46,102 44,100
132,138 98,236 93,174 97,832 106,918 85,409 25,880 42,843 39,079 43,226
1,039,975 811,798 757,048 772,059 717,078 592,626 210,912 375,530 367,021 327,246
365 366 365 365 365 366 365 365 365 366

Note: FY2015 was the first year the District reported its own information in the National Transit Database (NTD). Information

will be added prospectively until ten years is available

Source: National Transit Database Reports

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

OTHER REPORTS

Transportation Development Act Compliance

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

NM\MAZE

& ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING,
ON COMPLIANCE WITH THE TRANSPORTATION
DEVELOPMENT ACT AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Marin County Transit District
San Rafael, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the Marin County Transit
District as of and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, and
have issued our report thereon dated November 6, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. Our procedures included the applicable audit procedures contained in §6667 of Title
21 of California Code of Regulations and tests of compliance with the applicable provisions of the
Transportation Development Act and the allocation instructions and resolutions of the Metropolitan
Transportation Commission. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not
an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion._The results of our tests
disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

Accountancy Corporation 1 925.228.2800
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 217 F maze@mazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 77 w mazeassociates.com

Iltem 6



Attachment A

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated November 6, 2024 which is an
integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Metropolitan Transportation Commission,
management, Board of Directors, others within the District, and federal awarding agencies and pass-through
entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties;
however, this restriction is not intended to limit the distribution of this report, which is a matter of public
record.

plaze + Hesoe et

Pleasant Hill, California
November 6, 2024

78

Iltem 6



Attachment A

Single Audit

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2024

SECTION I - SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with
GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified None
_ Yes X Reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? Yes X No
Federal Awards

Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major
programs: Unmodified

Internal control over major programs:

e Material weakness(es) identified? Yes X No
e Significant deficiency(ies) identified None
Yes X Reported

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 2 CFR 200.516(a)? Yes X No

Identification of major programs:

Assistance Listing Number(s) Name of Federal Program or Cluster
20.507/20.526 Federal Transit Cluster
Dollar threshold used to distinguish between type A and type B programs: $750,000
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X  Yes No
81

Iltem 6



Attachment A

SECTION II — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Our audit did not disclose any significant deficiencies, or material weaknesses or instances of noncompliance
material to the basic financial statements. We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control
dated November 6, 2024, which is an integral part of our audits and should be read in conjunction with this
report.

SECTION III - FEDERAL AWARD FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS

Our audit did not disclose any findings or questioned costs required to be reported in accordance with Uniform
Guidance.

82

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2024

Federal Pass-Through
Federal Grantor/ Assistance Listing  Identifying Federal
Pass-Through Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Interior, National Park Service Direct Programs:
National Park Service Conservation Protection, Outreach, and Education
Muir Woods Shuttle (P18AC00483 & P23AC02143) 15.954 $555,311
Total U.S. Department of the Interior, National Parks Service 555,311
U.S. Department of Transportation Direct Programs:
Federal Transit - Formula Grants (Urban Area Formula Program) Cluster
Novato Bus Stop Shelters (CA-2021-137-00) 20.507 228
ADA Bus Stop Improvements (CA-2021-137-00) 20.507 70,693
Purchase 5 Paratransit Replacements (CA-2021-137-00) 20.507 398,151
ADA Paratransit Operations (CA-2022-158-00) 20.507 3,539
ADA Paratransit Operations (CA-2024-014-00) 20.507 1,061,738
Replace 5 Paratransit Vehicles (CA-2022-158-00) 20.507 404,911
Hybrid Battery Replacements (CA-2022-158-00) 20.507 284,002
Purchase 7 35ft Hybrid Buses (CA-2024-014-00) 20.507 30,940
Kerner Parking Facility Improvements (CA-2023-067-00) 20.507 187,198
Capital Coridor Improvements (CA-2024-063-00) 20.507 62,596
Fixed Route Facility (CA-2024-035-00) 20.526 103,534
Total Federal Transit Formula Grants Cluster Direct Program 2,607,530
Transit Services Program Cluster
Enhanced Mobility of Seniors and Individuals With Disabilities
Mobility Management (CA-2023-085) 20.513 88,750
Operating Assistance Sameday Accessible Service Urbanized Area (CA-2( 20.513 112,500
Total Transit Services Program Cluster 201,250
Total U.S Department of the Transportation Direct Program 2,808,780
US Department of Transportation Pass-Through Programs From:
California State Transportation Agency
Operations of Stagecoach 20.509 64T021-01860 413
Total US Department of Transportation Passed-Through Program 413
Total US Department of Transportation 2,809,193
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $3,364,504

See Accompanying Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

83

Iltem 6



Attachment A

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For The Year Ended June 30, 2024

NOTE 1 - BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards (the Schedule) includes the federal grant
activity of the Marin County Transit District (the District) under programs of the federal government for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2024. The information in this schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements,
Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Expenses reported on the Schedule are reported on the accrual basis of accounting. Such expenses are
recognized following the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance and/or U.S. Office of
Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-87, Cost Principles for State, Local, and Indian Tribal
Governments, wherein certain types of expenses are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursement.

NOTE 3 - INDIRECT COST ALLOCATION PLAN
The District has an indirect cost allocation plan (ICAP) approved by the United States Department of
Transportation, Federal Transit Administration (FTA) that is charged to programs where allowed under the

related agreements. The ICAP during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2024, included an ICAP rate of 21.63%
and a fringe benefit rate of 60.66% of total direct salaries and wages.

84

Iltem 6



Attachment A

NM\MAZE

& ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors
Marin County Transit District
San Rafael, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the basic financial statements of the business-type
activities and fiduciary fund of the Marin County Transit District (District), California, as of and for the
year ended June 30, 2024 and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise of
the District’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated November 6, 2024.

Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the District’s internal
control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that have not been identified.

Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District’s financial statements are free from
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed
no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards

Accountancy Corporation 1 925.228.2800
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 217 E Maze@mazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 25 w mazeassociates.com

Iltem 6



Attachment A

We have also issued a separate Memorandum on Internal Control dated November 6, 2024, which is an
integral part of our audit and should be read in conjunction with this report.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with

Government Auditing Standards in considering the District’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

oy T

Pleasant Hill, California
November 6, 2024

86

Iltem 6



Attachment A

NM\MAZE

& ASSOCIATES

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE;
AND REPORT ON THE SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

To the Board of Directors
Marin County Transit District
San Rafael, California

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited Marin County Transit District’s (District) compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of the District’s major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2024. The
District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred to
above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year ended
June 30, 2024.

Basis for Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAS); the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States (Government Auditing
Standards); and the audit requirements of Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform
Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform
Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards and the Uniform Guidance are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of the District and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in
accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of
laws, statutes, regulations, rules and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to the District’s
federal programs.

Accountancy Corporation T 925.228.2800
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 217 E Maze@mazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 w mazeassociates.com

87

Iltem 6



Attachment A

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on the District’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is
not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS,
Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance
when it exists. The risk of not detecting material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control. Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is
considered material, if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would
influence the judgment made by a reasonable user of the report on compliance about the District’s
compliance with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, Government Auditing Standards, and the Uniform
Guidance, we:

e Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the District’s compliance with the compliance requirements referred
to above and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances.

e Obtain an understanding of the District’s internal control over compliance relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances and to test and report on
internal control over compliance in accordance with the Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.

88

Iltem 6



Attachment A

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Report on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards Required by the Uniform Guidance

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and fiduciary fund of the District as
of'and for the year ended June 30, 2024, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively
comprise the District’s basic financial statements. We issued our report thereon dated November 6, 2024,
which contained an unmodified opinion on those financial statements. Our audit was performed for the
purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements that collectively comprise the basic financial
statements as a whole. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for
purposes of additional analysis as required by the Uniform Guidance and is not a required part of the
financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of federal awards is
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

W uze + Hssoenhet

Pleasant Hill, California
November 6, 2024

&9

Iltem 6



Attachment A

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment B

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2024

Iltem 6



Attachment B

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment B

MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

For the Year Ended June 30, 2024

Table of Contents
Page

Required COMMURICALIONS ...................cccooceeeeeeeeeiieieeieeeieseesteessestessestesseessesseesseessesseesesssesseensesseenes 1
Significant AUdit MALEEIS.........cocueieieieieteetee ettt ettt ettt esbe st e stesbesaesaesbesaesbesnens 1
Qualitative Aspects 0f ACCOUNTING PTactiCes.......ccvevvirierieriirierieriisieniesiesesese e ee e seesseenes 1
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit..........c.cccovveviivieninininiieccceeeceeeee e, 2
Corrected and Uncorrected MiSStateMENtS ..........cceeererierererininieeeceeeteeeee et eenes 2
Disagreements wWith Management ...........c.ccveeverierieriesiseseseseeeseseeeesseeesessessessessessessessessessens 2
Management RePreSENtations ..........ceeererererirerieeerese ettt sttt eae bbbt b e se s e 2
Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants ............cccceceevevecrenennenee. 2
Other Audit FINAINgS OF ISSUES ....c.ccuviiieiiiiiiiciieiceetteeeeeeeee ettt eeas 2
OFRET MALLETS .....euetinieieieietest ettt ettt ettt b ettt b et s e bbb et et et st e st e b e e ebesbens 2

Iltem 6



Attachment B

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



Attachment B

NM\MAZE

& ASSOCIATES

REQUIRED COMMUNICATIONS

To the Honorable Members of the Board of Directors
Marin County Transit District
San Rafael, California

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Marin County Transit District (District) for the year
ended June 30, 2024. Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our
responsibilities under generally accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards and
Uniform Guidance, as well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our
audit. We have communicated such information in the letter dated April 10, 2024. Professional standards
also require that we communicate to you the following information related to our audit:

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Accounting Policies — Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting
policies. The significant accounting policies used by the District are described in Note 1 to the financial
statements. No new accounting policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not
changed during the year.

Unusual Transactions, Controversial or Emerging Areas — We noted no transactions entered into by the
District during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or consensus. All significant
transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting Estimates — Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by
management and are based on management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events
and assumptions about future events. Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of
their significance to the financial statements and because of the possibility that future events affecting
them may differ significantly from those expected. The most sensitive estimates affecting the District’s
financial statements were:

Estimated Net Pension Liabilities and Pension-Related Deferred Outflows and Inflows of
Resources: Management’s estimate of the net pension liabilities and deferred outflows/inflows of
resources are disclosed in Note 7 to the financial statements and are based on actuarial studies
determined by a consultant, which are based on the experience of the District. We evaluated the
key factors and assumptions used to develop the estimate and determined that it is reasonable in
relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Estimate of Depreciation: Management’s estimate of the depreciation is based on useful lives
determined by management. These lives have been determined by management based on the
expected useful life of assets as disclosed in Note 1G to the financial statements. We evaluated
the key factors and assumptions used to develop the depreciation estimate and determined that it
is reasonable in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

Disclosures — The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.

Accountancy Corporation 1 925.228.2800
3478 Buskirk Avenue, Suite 217 E Maze@mazeassociates.com
Pleasant Hill, CA 94523 | w mazeassociates.com

Iltem 6



Attachment B

Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our
audit.

Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the
audit, other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. Management has corrected all such misstatements. In addition, none of the misstatements
detected as a result of audit procedures and corrected by management were material, either individually or
in the aggregate, to each opinion unit’s financial statements taken as a whole.

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely uncorrected misstatements identified
during the audit, other than those that are trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of
management. We have no such misstatements to report to the District’s Board of Directors.

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or
auditing matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial
statements or the auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the
course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in a management
representation letter dated November 6, 2024.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting
matters, similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves
application of an accounting principle to the District’s financial statements or a determination of the type
of auditor’s opinion that may be expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the
consulting accountant to check with us to determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our
knowledge, there were no such consultations with other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the District’s auditors. However, these
discussions occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a
condition to our retention.

Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information that accompanies and
supplements the basic financial statements. Our procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding
the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with
management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained
during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit the required supplementary information
and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the required supplementary information.

Iltem 6



Attachment B

We were engaged to report on the supplementary information that accompanies the financial statements,
but is not required supplementary information. With respect to this supplementary information, we made
certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form, content, and methods of preparing the
information to determine that the information complies with accounting principles generally accepted in
the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from the prior period, and the
information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements. We compared
and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to prepare the
financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

We were not engaged to report on the Introductory and Statistical Sections included as part of the Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report, but are not required supplementary information. We did not audit or
perform other procedures on this other information, and we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

ok ok skeoskok ok

This information is intended solely for the use of District Board of Directors and management and is not
intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Wlaze + /f.gcvaw.é-‘

Pleasant Hill, California
November 6, 2024

Iltem 6



Attachment B

This Page Left Intentionally Blank

Iltem 6



711 Grand Ave, #110
San Rafael, CA 94901
ph: 415.226.0855
marintransit.org

Board of Directors

Brian Colbert
President
Town of San Anselmo

Eric Lucan
Vice President
Supervisor District 5

Mary Sackett
Second Vice President

Supervisor District 1

Katie Rice
Director

Supervisor District 2

Stephanie
Moulton-Peters
Director

Supervisor District 3

Dennis Rodoni
Director
Supervisor District 4

Maribeth Bushey
Director
City of San Rafael

Fred Casissa
Alternate
Town of Corte Madera

December 2,2024

Honorable Board of Directors
Marin County Transit District
3501 Civic Center Drive

San Rafael, CA 94903

Contract with Ghilotti Bros., Inc. for the Construction of Bus
Parking Lot and Solar Canopy at 3010/3020 Kerner Blvd

Subject:

Dear Board Members:

Recommendation

Authorize General Manager to execute a contract with Ghilotti Bros., Inc. for an
amount not to exceed $3,674,402 and approve Budget Amendment 2025-03,
pending the Federal Transit Administration (FTA) response to a bid protest
appeal filed by Bauman Landscape & Construction.

Summary

Staff recommends that your Board authorize the General Manager to enter into
an agreement with Ghilotti Bros., Inc. (Ghilotti) for the construction of solar
canopies and bus parking at 3010/3020 Kerner Blvd in San Rafael. This is the
second phase of a two-phase project. The first phase, completed in April 2024,
was to demolish the two office buildings on the site. This current phase will
construct a parking facility with solar canopy, a battery backup system, and
provisions for battery electric bus charging.

Marin Transit released an Invitation for Bids (IFB) for this project on September
16,2024 and held a public bid opening on November 1, 2024, at 2:00pm. The bid
package includes specifications for paving, lighting, and fencing of the site at
3010/3020 Kerner Blvd; it also includes provisions for the site to be fully
electrified, installation of two level 2 electric vehicle chargers, a backup battery
energy storage system (BESS), and a solar canopy over the north side of the lot.
The solar canopy portion of the project is design-build.

During the open question and answer period, the District received many
questions about the Buy America requirements as they related to the solar
canopy and the BESS. It was indicated that a Buy America compliant BESS
might not be available and as a result, Marin Transit separated out the BESS as
a bid alternative. This would allow the project to move forward even if this non-
essential component was unavailable, while still leaving room for contractors
to find a compliant solution.

Item 7



Bids were received from Ghilotti, Arntz Builders Inc, and CWS Construction Group Inc. An unsealed bid
was received from Bauman Landscape and Construction, Inc (Bauman).

Bid analysis by Marin Transit staff and the Project’s Construction Manager determined that Bauman’s
bid was nonresponsive and should be rejected due to the bid being delivered unsealed. California
Public Contract Code (PCC 10304) states that all bids received shall be sealed. The apparent lowest
bidder was Ghilotti. Ghilotti’s bid was determined both responsive and responsible and met all
construction requirements, thereby making them the low bidder. The table below shows the bids
received. All bidders submitted pricing on the bid alternative.

Table 1: Bids Received

Bid Submitted by Total Bid Responsive Bid?
Bauman Landscape & Construction $2,973,915 $3,165,915 No, unsealed
Ghilotti Bros. Inc $3,462,902 $3,674,402 Yes
Arntz Builders $3,657,661 $3,868,861 Yes
CWS Construction $3,790,532.88 $4,020,532.88 Yes

Marin Transit received a bid protest from Bauman on November 7, 2024, claiming that their bid had
been sealed and that they should be awarded the contract as the low bidder on the project. Following
Marin Transit’s bid protest procedures, Marin Transit inspected the bid envelope, consulted counsel,
and further reviewed California Public Contract Code to affirm that the bid could not be accepted as
responsive as the bid was not sealed. Bauman sent a Request for Reconsideration on the decision on
November 15, 2024. Marin Transit reviewed further but did not change the decision that the bid could
not be accepted. Marin Transit’s final decision on the bid protest was sent by email to Bauman on
November 18, 2024. On November 22, 2024, Bauman filed an appeal with the Federal Transit
Administration (FTA).

The low bid is over the Engineer’s estimate by 31%. Other local agencies have also experienced bids
coming in high as the inflationary pressures stemming from COVID are still impacting the construction
industry. Staff, with support from the construction management team and design team, also reviewed
line-item pricing to determine which elements of the project were driving up the cost.

The two primary drivers of the discrepancy are higher bid prices for the electrical equipment and
items relating to the geotechnical conditions. The need for Buy America compliant electrical
equipment may not have been adequately accounted for in the Engineer’s Estimate. Combined, the
EV Bus Chargers and switchgears, which are the major electrical controls for the BESS and solar
canopy systems, exceed the engineer’s estimate by $580,000. The other significant difference is the
bid price for excavation and the solar canopy which requires footings in a challenging soil
environment with high ground water. After further review, the increased cost is warranted to account
for the difficult geotechnical site conditions.

Based on this review, staff determined the bid prices reflect the current market conditions and project
specifications and are fair and reasonable. An Intent to Award to Ghilotti was issued on November 19,
2024 and staff recommends your board award the contract to Ghilotti. Once the contract is awarded,
staff expect work to begin in early 2025 with completion before the end of the year.

Page 2 of 4

Item 7



Background

Property

Marin Transit’s 101 buses and paratransit vehicles are maintained through contracts with three
different vendors. The operations and maintenance has historically been performed through a county-
wide network of several storage and maintenance facilities owned or leased by contractors. The lack of
availability for parking and maintenance in Marin County restricts vendors who are able to compete for
the District’s service operations and Contracts because they must have access to property to meet these
needs. Marin Transit has been investing in property because the District has identified the value of
investing in permanent, District-controlled facilities. This has many benefits including to incentivize
competition for service operations contracts, reduce cost of uncertainty and reduce or minimize overall
operating cost growth by having a location for and allow the District to achieve its zero emission bus
rollout plan targets.

In July 2020, the District aquired 600 Rush Landing in Novato, primarily for use as a bus storage facility.
In July 2021, The District acquired a 10,000 square foot building on a 0.71 acre site at 3000 Kerner Blvd.
This building has been renovated to serve as the Marin Access (paratransit) Operations and
Maintenance Facility. It houses maintenance, dispatch, call center, Travel Navigators, and
administrative staff for demand response services.

3010/3020 Kerner Blvd is adjacent to the Marin Access Operations and Maintenance Facility. The District
purchased this property in July 2022 with the intention of making it into a parking facility for a portion
of Marin Transit’s Fleet.

Fleet Electrification

To meet the District’s electrification goals, a design requirement was added to make the site ready for
electric bus charging. All the conduit and provisions for future chargers will be laid so that when the
time comes to add additional chargers, it will be easier to do so. Two chargers will be installed with this
project to support the upcoming purchase of two battery-electric paratransit vehicles. The vehicles will
be a pilot to gain experience with electric vehicles in a demand response setting. The charging
infrastructure here is essential to that purchase.

The BESS initially will be hooked up to the building at 3000 Kerner to be used as backup power for the
facility, which loses power with some frequency. This will ensure that operations can continue in the
event of a planned or unplanned power outage.

As the electric fleet here grows, the BESS can be used to supply power to the buses and be used for
managed charging. This will allow for more efficient and less expensive charging of our buses.

The solar panels will be installed to meet the District’s clean energy goals. Initially the power will be
sold be used to charge the BESS, with the remaining power sold back to PG&E. As the fleet transitions
to battery electric vehicles, the panels can provide clean energy to power to Marin Transit’s electric
fleet.

These components are important to meeting Marin Transit’s fleet electrification and climate goals.

Project Timeline

Design of the new parking facility was initiated in January 2023 with the Board awarded contract to the
design engineer, BKF Engineering.

Page 3 of 4

Item 7



Building of the project was divided into two phases. The first phase was to demolish the two office
buildings on the site, which was completed in April 2024.

A construction manager was contracted in January 2024 to review the design documents for
constructability, help assemble bid documents and to manage the bidding process.

Pending board award, the District will initiate a contract with Ghilotti Bros. for the construction of these
improvements. Construction is anticipated to begin in early 2025 and be completed before December
2025.

Fiscal/Staffing Impact

This contract will commit the District to $3,674,402 in construction expenditures for the second phase
of the project. The contract will put the District $1.1 million or 31% over the project budget. While this
is significant, the project is critical for the development of the District’s zero emission charging and
vehicle parking facilities. The proposed budget amendment 2025-03 will increase the project budget,
whichisincluded in the Capital Budget as FH - Facility - 3010/3020 Kerner Improvements to $4,635,967
and allocate capital reserves to fund the additional costs.

The project funding plan includes $2.1 million in Federal Transit Administration (FTA) Section 5307
funding allocated by the Metropolitan Transportation Commission (MTC) for the Zero Emmission Bus
infrastructure. The project also includes $809,815 in State Low Carbon Transit Operations Program
(LCTOP) funds.

Respectfully Submitted,

g

Anna Penoyar
Capital Projects Manager

Attachment A: Draft Contract

Attachment B: Presentation

Page 4 of 4

Item 7



Attachment A

Contract # XXX
MARIN COUNTY TRANSIT DISTRICT
PROJECT NO. PC202505

THIS AGREEMENT made and concluded, in triplicate, this 2nd day of December, 2024 between
the Marin County Transit District, party of the first part, and Ghilotti Bros., Inc., CONTRACTOR, part of
the second part.

ARTICLE I, WITNESSETH: That for and in consideration of the payments and agreements
hereinafter mentioned, to be made and performed by the said party of the first part, and under the
conditions expressed in the Payment Bond and Performance Bond, bearing even with these presents, and
hereunto annexed, the said party of the second part agrees with the said party of the first part, at his own
proper cost and expense, to do all the work and furnish all the materials, except such as are mentioned in
the specifications to be furnished by said party of the first part, necessary to construct and complete in a
good, workmanlike and substantial manner and to the satisfaction of the District Engineer for:

3010/3020 KERNER REDEVELOPMENT

in accordance with the Special Provisions hereto annexed and also in accordance with the Standard Plans,
dated 2023, the Standard Specifications dated 2023, and the Equipment Rental Rates and General
Prevailing Wage Rates of the Department of Transportation (attached to the Contract Documents) which
said Special Provisions, Standard Plans, Standard Specifications, and Equipment Rental Rates and
General Prevailing Wage Rates are hereby specially referred to and by such reference made a part hereof.

The work to be done is shown on plans entitled:

3010/3020 KERNER REDEVELOPMENT
at
3010-3020 KERNER BOULEVARD
SAN RAFAEL, CALIFORNIA
PROJECT NO. PC202505

APPROVED: On December 2, 2024, which said project special provisions and project plans are hereby
made a part of this contract.

ARTICLE II. The said party of the first hereby promises and agrees with said Contractor to
employ, and does hereby employ, the said Contractor to provide the materials and to do the work
according to the terms and conditions herein contained and referred to for the prices hereinafter set forth,
and hereby contracts to pay the same at the time, in the manner and upon the conditions herein set forth;
and the said parties for themselves, their heirs, executors, administrators, successors and assigns, do
hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants herein contained.

ARTICLE III. The State general prevailing wage rates determined by the Director of Industrial
Relations are hereby made a part of this contract. It is further expressly agreed by and between the parties

Item 7



Attachment A

hereto that should there by any conflict between the terms of this instrument and the bid of bid of said
Contractor, then this instrument shall control, and nothing herein shall be considered as an acceptance of
the said terms of said bid conflicting herewith.

ARTICLE IV. By my signature hereunder, as Contractor, I certify that I am aware of the
provisions of Section 3700 of the Labor Code which require every employer to be insured against liability
for workmen’s compensation or to undertake self-insurance in conformance with the provisions of that
code, and I will comply with such provisions before commencing the performance of the work of this
contract.

ARTICLE V. Said Contractor agrees to receive and accept the following prices as full
compensation for furnishing all materials and for doing all the work contemplated and embraced in this
agreement; also for all loss or damage arising out of the nature of the work aforesaid, or from the action
of the elements, or from any unforeseen difficulties or obstructions which may arise or be encountered in
the prosecution of the work until its acceptance by the Marin County Transit District, and for all risks
of every description connected with the work; also for all expenses incurred by or in consequence of the
suspension on or discontinuance of work and for well and faithfully completing the work and the whole
thereof, in the manner and according to the plans and specifications, and the requirements of the Engineer
under them to wit:

Not to exceed: $3,674,402

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties of these presents have hereunto set their hands the year
and date first above written.

By:
President, Board of Directors

By:
Clerk
CONTRACTOR

By:
(Print Name)

Item 7



3010/3020 Kerner Blvd Redevelopment

CONSTRUCTION CONTRACT AWARD



Attachment B

Agenda

01

02

03

04

Project History
Overview of Project
Bidding Process

Timeline



Attachment B

Project History

3000 Kerner Purchase - July 2021
3010/3020 Kerner Purchase - July 2022

* Design Phase

* Contractissued - January 2023
 City of San Rafael Review

* PG&E Permitting

Phase 1 - Demolition - April 2024

Item 7



Project Overview

marin
transit



Attachment B

Purpose

!

1 AR

» Parking for 40 vehicles

§ el ddE o
Fdl 6 A A 1 D il
el el i

* Make-ready provisions for S
fully electric fleet Yo ]

* Solar panels to reduce
operating costs

* On-site battery storage for
energy backup and future
managed charging
potential

marin
transit




Attachment B

Project
Overview

* Parking for up to 45 vehicles

« Solar Canopies on the
northern side of lot

« Battery Back up System
* 2EVChargers
* Conduit for future charging

 Connected to 3000 Kerner
in the back

* Fencing and Lighting

@ i

@ PP
I;_ ‘-,.\;_r- I\ .".- 5 ._ - e
: ¥ s e 3
4 | % STORMWATER BASIN R R N
& = PERIMETER W ' \
2 “taf . . FENCE o k" '
piy s R

SEe :ﬁ_h-:ibn.-.; Ry
!
|

HAIN LINK BATE

PER CIVITIDRAW NGy .
TO REMAIN

.
|
|._ 1 1
. |
4 PV
] CANDPY
.
| i
N | |
: 1{_“__ | -
i a | y
1 . !
14 1 |
L
1] | PARKING LOT
,’ WITH EV ety
& N | CHARGING |
1k STATIONS '
5 o | |
1 | R —
a2 ) l | SHRUB & GROUND COVER
o | PLANTINE AREAS
R
1 Py |
B h {  CANDPY i GATE CONTROLS
! 3
% | ROLLINE FENCE GATE
L BEl | i
,]; i 4 CONCRETE WALK EXISTING
1 ]
Bt i

FRONTAGE FENCE

- (4 | als ) PO PEDESTRIAN GATE e e
. L S s " Ty b . ""?'"‘-
3 [ 1 gt e
- | 5 ' B
[TW L el el Wl m=l e | e

TN
KERNER BOULEVARD ' ltem 75-.?



Attachment B

Project
Challenges

Geotechnical Environment

* Bay mud, high water table

Buy America

Switchgear
* Availability

Permitting and Utitlies

@ i




Contractor Procurement

marin
transit



Attachment B

Contractor Procurement

Bid released: September 16, 2024
Q&A Period

* Geotechnical Reports

* Buy America

Addendum 4

* Bid Alternative - BESS System

Public Bid Opening November 1, 2024

Item 7



Attachment B

Contractor Procurement - Bids

* 3 bids received were received and 1 unsealed bid
* California Public Contracting Code

* Bid Protest

Bid Submitted by f\:suBr::l Total Bid Responsive Bid?

Bauman Landscape & Construction $2,973,915 $3,165,915 No, unsealed

Ghilotti Bros. Inc $3,462,902 $3,674,402 Yes

Arntz Builders $3,657,661 $3,868,861 Yes

CWS Construction $3,790,532.88 $4,020,532.88 Yes

marin 10

Item 7



Attachment B

Contractor Procurement - Cost

e Ghilotti Bros. Bid - $3.67 Million (31% higher than Engineer’s Estimate)

Increased Cost Drivers:

Electrical EQuipment - Buy America

Geotechnical Site Conditions - More difficult excavation
- Challenging design for solar footings

Bidding Environment - Inflationary pressures on construction
materials

marin 1

Item 7



Fiscal/Staffing Impact

marin
transit



Attachment B

Fiscal/Staffing Impact

* Projectincluded in Capital Budget - FH - Facility - 3010/3020 Kerner Improvements
* Budget Amendment 2025-03 - budget increased to $4,635,967

Funding
Federal Funding 5307 - $2,079,552
LCTOP - $809,815
Property Tax/Capital Reserves $1,625,802
Measure AA $120,798
marin 13

Item 7



Attachment B

Thank you

CONTACT

Anna Penoyar
Capital Manager

apenoyar@marintransit.org

14

transit

 ltem7



	Marin County Transit District Board of Directors
	Providing Public Comment
	General Meeting Information
	9:30 a.m.  Convene as the Marin County Transit District Board of Directors
	Adjourn

	Item 7 - 120224 Contract with Ghilotti for Kerner Construction.pdf
	Recommendation
	Summary
	Background
	Property
	Project Timeline

	Fiscal/Staffing Impact
	B - 120224 3010-3020 Kerner Construction.pdf
	3010/3020 Kerner Blvd Redevelopment
	01�02�03�04
	Project History
	Slide Number 4
	Purpose
	Project Overview
	Project Challenges
	Slide Number 8
	Contractor Procurement
	Contractor Procurement - Bids
	Contractor Procurement - Cost
	Slide Number 12
	Fiscal/Staffing Impact
	Thank you


	Item 6 - 120224 FY24 Financial Audit.pdf
	Recommendation
	Summary
	Background
	Discussion
	Fiscal/Staffing Impact

	Item 5f - 120224 Annual School Transportation Services Report.pdf
	Recommendation
	Summary
	Background
	Supplemental Service Overview
	FY2024/25 Fixed Route Changes to Support Students
	FY2024/25 Youth Transit Pass Program
	FY2024/25 Measure AA Yellow School Bus Programs
	Ross Valley Area Yellow Bus Program

	Item 5e - 120224 GM Compensation.pdf
	Recommendation
	Summary
	Fiscal/Staffing Impact

	Item 5d - 120224 Q1 Performance Report.pdf
	Recommendation
	Summary
	Fiscal/Staffing Impact
	A - FY25 Q1 Performance Report.pdf
	Quarterly Performance Report for FY 2024/25 Q1
	Report Format
	Performance Goals
	Performance Summary
	Local (Routes 17, 22, 23, 35, 36, 49, and 71)
	Community (Routes 29, 57, 219, 228, 233, 245)
	Supplemental School (Routes 613, 619, 625, and 654)
	Rural (West Marin Stagecoach Routes 61 and 68)
	Muir Woods Shuttle
	Yellow Bus
	Marin Access
	Community Engagement

	In the first quarter of FY 2024/25, staff successfully completed eighteen events, including eight Navigating Transit Presentations, eight events where informational resource tables were staffed, and two direct rider engagement events at the San Rafael...
	Ridership Trends


	Quarterly Report - Summary.pdf
	Quarterly Report - Summary


	Item 5c - 120224 First Quarter Financial Report FY25.pdf
	Recommendation
	Summary
	Background
	Discussion
	Transit Operating Expenses
	Transit Operating Revenues
	Capital Budget

	Fiscal/Staffing Impact

	Item 4b - 120224 September 2024 Monitoring Report.pdf
	Recommendation
	Summary
	Fiscal/Staffing Impact
	FY2024-25_Customer_Feedback_v1.0.pdf
	September 2024

	Monthly Monitoring Report.pdf
	Monthly Monitoring Report


	120224 Agenda.pdf
	Marin County Transit District Board of Directors
	Providing Public Comment
	General Meeting Information
	9:30 a.m.  Convene as the Marin County Transit District Board of Directors
	Adjourn





